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India is our home. India is where we started from 14
years ago when we embarked upon a journey that was
both exciting and challenging. Fromhumble beginnings
in India,wewere soon traversing theglobe, travelling to
the major centres of media and entertainment and
buildingouroffices there.Today,wearepresent in three
continents and across four time zones with sixteen
world-class facilities. We have been a part of some of
themost successful internationalmovieprojectsof the
last few years. Today, we are a global Visual
Entertainment Services group, respected and
renowned in the media space for our creativity,
technology and high service standards.

India iswherewestarted. India iswhereweare focused.
India produces more movies than any other country in
the world. Our clients in India have been with us since
we started, growing alongside us. Our clients have
always been our prime focus. And to ensure that we
continue to serve them with the very highest levels of
creativity, technology and service, we have made
substantial investments in India. We have revamped,
revitalised, renewed, relocated and reinforced our
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View-D™ process is transforming the global feature
film industry, converting2Dmovies to3Dstereoscopic
format at the highest level. Asmore andmoremovies
aremade in3Dandasmoreclassicsareconverted into
3D formats, we are confident that India will play a
pivotal roleaswebringmore top international projects
to India and retain our position as leaders in this
revolution.

India is our home. India is our global headquarters.

Theworld is ourmarket.

India is the focus of ourworld.

domestic Indian facilities and management. We
continue to invest in India.

The investments that we have made in India over the
last yearwill result in enormous international benefits
for the company. As the bedrock and powerhouse of
the global group, these investmentswill allow India to
provide even greater support to the group's
international facilities. Through our pioneering
WorldSourcing™businessmodel,weenableour clients
to tap Prime Focus's global resources across
continents and time-zones and integrate the best
'multi-local' offering with a strong and collaborative
network, resulting inmajor time and cost benefits.

Theworld isbeingsweptawayby the3Drevolution. 3D
has totally redefined the viewing experience by
bringing reality closer. Its impact on the media space
is spoken about in the same breath as the impact of
sound and colour. Prime Focus has been at the
forefront of this 3D revolution. Prime Focus was the
onlyAsian company tobeassociatedwithAvatar - the
biggest Hollywood film ever made. Our revolutionary

INDIA -THE FOCUSOFOURWORLD
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WHOWEARE

PrimeFocus is a globalVisual EntertainmentServices
group. Visual Entertainment Services is a new
definition for an industry where technology, visual
delivery platforms and content are converging and
evolving. Employing over 3,500 professionals
worldwide, working in 16 facilities across three
continents,weprovidecreativeand technical services
to the Film, Broadcast, Advertising and Media
industries.

We offer a genuine end-to-end solution from pre-
production to final delivery including visual effects,
creative 3D conversion, video and audio post-
production, digital content management and
distribution, Digital Intermediate, versioning and
adaptation, and equipment rental.

Our pioneering business model - 'WorldSourcing' -
enables our talent to share their expertise across
projects, locations, disciplines and sectors. It means
we can operate in every major market and at every
stage of a project's development. WorldSourcing has
noborders, timezonesor limits on capacity and is able
to adapt to the constantly changing needs and
ambitions of content creatorsworldwide.

We operate a network that combines global cost
advantages, resources and talent pool with strong
relationships and a deep understanding of the local
markets we operate in. A tailored approach to each
project ensures the delivery of a superior level of
service aligned with a highly competitive pricing
structure.

Mission

To build a globally competitive business through the
use of talent and technology.

To provide a platform for our people where growth =
focus + hardwork.

To provide our customers greater levels of service by
adapting and learning from them constantly.

Toearnprofit respectablybyalwaysdeliveringgreater
value formoney.

To be a leader in the business by harnessing creativity
and passion with a zeal to change convention through
conviction.

To deliver to our shareholders a commitment to
workingwith full Integrity and Intelligenceat all times.

Values

Diversity - our strength lies in the qualities and
diversity of our people.

Family - we are a family of differing backgrounds and
experiences that share a common purpose and goal.

Hunger - our hunger for creative and commercial
success means that we constantly strive for
improvement.

Adventure - ourpeople shareasenseofadventureand
a thirst for knowledge.We listen, question anduseour
insight tomake good ideas even better.

Full-blooded - we share a full-blooded passion for our
work which means we will always go the extra mile in
the pursuit of excellence.

Visionary - our visionary outlook, talent and
commitmentmeansweareable tomeetanychallenge
and succeed.
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We relocated the Prime Focus Advertising facility
from Lower Parel to Khar. This facility is currently
being renovated from the ground up, and is due to be
re-launched in September 2011. The newly revitalised
Advertising offering will include new, state-of-the-art
equipment and infrastructure and new talent, in
addition to the refurbished, dedicated studio.

Prime Focus Technologies, the dynamic and highly
successful technology arm of Prime Focus, which
during thecourseof the last yearhassigneddealswith
STAR TV, Eros International and the organisers of the
IPL cricket tournament, took possession of the
vacated offices in Lower Parel, creating an office in
Mumbai which works closely with the Prime Focus
Technologies headquarters in Bangalore on the
development of CLEAR™, its hybrid-cloud, multi-
platform content operations platform.

We also began refurbishment on the Mastermind
building inRoyal Palms, theoriginal homeof thePrime
Focus VFX division in India. Whilst most of the VFX
artists have been relocated to the neighbouring
Mainframe global headquarters, Mastermind is still
used for extraVFX capacity and is currently receiving
a full refit.

INVESTMENT INASTRONGTEAM

The revitalising of the Indian offering is spearheaded
by the newCEOof Prime Focus India. Early in 2011,Mr.
RamkiSankaranarayanan,President andCEOofPrime
FocusTechnologies,was also appointedCEOofPrime
Focus in India, in a move which saw him become
responsible for all of theoperationsandbusiness lines
of Prime Focus in India, in addition to maintaining his
leadership of Prime Focus Technologies. Mr.
Sankaranarayanan reports directly to Prime Focus
Global CEOMr. NamitMalhotra, who relocated to Los
Angeles this year to personally direct the operations
of Prime Focus in North America. Also joining Prime
Focus this yearwasMr.NavinAgarwal,who tookon the
position of Company Secretary, reporting to Mr.
NishantFadia,CFO .This renewed focusandadditional
leadership is alreadypayingdividends,withdeals such
as that signed with UTV Motion Pictures, which
involves a close collaboration with Prime Focus on a
slate of forthcoming UTV Motion Pictures
productions.

Prime Focus India is now revitalized with significant
investment inour facilities so thatwecansuccessfully
cater to the demand expected from India, and also be
the backbone for the work coming from the
internationalmarket place.

We are the largest visual entertainment services
company in India, with more than 2,500 professionals
working across both domestic and international
feature film productions, advertising and broadcast
programming.The Indianmarkethasbeengrowingand
embracing the technology developments that are
shaping world entertainment in visual effects and 3D.
Indian film and advertising budgets are getting bigger
and the industry is growing with the increase in
theatrical revenues through the growing number of
multiplexes and the success of Indian films overseas.
2010-11 witnessed several Indian movies crossing the
Rs.100croremarkat theboxoffice.This hascontinued
into the next year.

Wehavebeen revitalisingour Indianoffering toensure
that we continue to offer our loyal, local Indian client

baseworld-class creativity and technical services, and
the highest levels of customer service. This includes
investment both in our facilities, and in a strong
management team that services the Indian market
place.

INVESTMENT INOURFACILITIES

Weopenedanew, state-of-the-art, 75,000sq ft global
headquarters inMumbai.This facilityhasbeenworking
tirelessly to ensure that our Indian clients receive
unmatchedquality andservicewhen theypartnerwith
us.

InDecember2010,weannounced theopeningof anew
Film VFX and 3D conversion facility in Chandigarh
Special Economic Zone.With a proposed build-out of
50,000 sq ft, this facility will have capacity for 3,000
artists, andmarks amajor expansion to cater for both
domestic and international film projects, whilst also
providingasignificantnumberofnew jobs for the local
population.

We also reconfigured the Prime Focus facilities in
Mumbai, in linewithour futurevisionand thedemands
of themarket.

FOCUS ON INDIA

INDIA ISOURHOME. INDIA ISALSO
THEBACKBONEOFOURGLOBAL
OFFERING.WEAREREVITALISING
OUR INDIANOPERATIONSAND
GROWINGOURLEADERSHIPTO
FURTHER SERVICE THE INDIAN
FILMENTERTAINMENT, ADVERTISING
ANDBROADCASTMARKETS.

76



8
IN AMSTERDAM -ONEOFTHEBIGGESTEVENTS INTHE INDUSTRY'S CALENDAR.

OURWORKONSANJAYLEELABHANSALI'SVISUALEXTRAVAGANZA
'GUZAARISH' SAWUSPICKINGUP 'BESTSPECIAL EFFECTS' ATTHE 2011
APSARAAWARDS, ANDANEMEAWARDFOR 'VFXFORTHEBESTFILM
CONTENT'. THEPRIMEFOCUSVFXTEAM IN INDIAADDEDANOTHER
AWARDTO ITSKITTYBYWINNINGTHE 'AWARDOFEXCELLENCE' AT
ASIFA IAD 2010 FORTHEIRWORKONMANI RATNAM'S 'RAAVAN'.

WEALSORECEIVEDANEMEAWARDFOR 'VFXFORTHEBEST
TVCONTENT' FORTHEHARVEYB-BROWNDIRECTED INDIGO
AIRLINES 'ON-TIME' ADVERT,WHICHWENTONTOBAGTHEGOLD
AWARD IN FILMCRAFT (SPECIAL EFFECTS) ATGOAFEST2011.

AND INSEPTEMBER 2010, PRIMEFOCUSTECHNOLOGIESWASHONOUREDWITH
THEACCOLADE 'BESTOF IBC 2010' FORCLEAR,WHICH ITWASEXHIBITINGFOR
THEFIRSTTIME IN EUROPEATTHE INTERNATIONALBROADCASTINGCONVENTION

9'Guzaarish' - SLB Films
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MURDER 2
SHAITAN
PATIALAHOUSE
NOONEKILLED JESSICA

GUZAARISH

ANJAANAANJAANI

RAVAAN
BUMMBUMMBOLE
BADMAASHCOMPANY

TEESMAARKHAN

TANUWEDSMANU F.A.L.T.U

PROJECTS
BOLLYWOOD FILM



1312

PHILIPS 'GROOMINGRANGE'

RELIANCE 'DIGITALHD'
TOSHIBA 'SACHINCUTOUT'
INDIGOAIRLINES 'ONTIME'

DOMINO'SMEXICANWRAP
AXISBANK 'THERE'SALWAYSASOLUTION'
SAMSUNG 'GURU'

PROJECTS
ADVERTISING
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commenting, on Prime Focus' work: "It was incredibly
important to me that we have the technology, the
resources and the time to do this right. I'm very happy
with the results I've been seeing on Episode I."

Episode I was completed by Prime Focus artists in
Mumbai, Los Angeles and London, as were other
'WorldSourced™' 3D conversion projects such as
Transformers: Dark of the Moon, Green Lantern and
TheChroniclesofNarnia:Voyageof theDawnTreader.

And as lead facility on the conversion of the biggest
release of 2011 so far, Prime Focus artists in Mumbai
and London played a big part in the success of Harry
Potter and theDeathlyHallowsPart 2, which released
in July 2011 and immediately shattered opening
weekend box office records, with 60%of ticket sales
internationally coming from3D.

The WorldSourcing™ business model has also been
leveraged for FilmVFXwork. Projects such as X-Men:

FirstClass,UnknownandmostnotablyScream4, have
all been completed across the Global Digital Pipeline,
with all of the VFX shots for Scream 4 completed by
theVFX team inMumbai.

The Advertising business in London has also been
using the Global Digital Pipeline to win work from
majorEuropeanadvertisingagencies andbrandskeen
to maximise their budgets and take advantage of
reduced timelineswithout compromising quality.

These initiatives, bringing top-end international work
into India,would notbepossiblewithout aworld-class
creative offering in India and a robust and efficient
pipeline - both ofwhich Prime Focus has in place.

Prime Focuswill continue to invest locally in India, will
continue to invest internationally in its facilities and
Global Digital Pipeline, and will continue to pursue its
innovative business model to ensure it remains the
clear choice for both domestic and global clients.

We offer to the world of entertainment our
WorldSourcing™ business model - a unique global
network of integrated studios. Our Global Digital
Pipeline spreadsacross3continentsand4 timezones;
16 facilities with over 3,500 people working 24/7, 365
days, resulting inmajor time and cost benefits.

India is the bedrock of this global offering - the
powerhouse behind the global group which is helping
our international facilities to compete on the global
stage.

This continued investment in thePrimeFocus facilities
in India has benefits for the company internationally,
as well as domestically. Prime Focus' pioneering
WorldSourcing™ business model has truly come into
its own over the last year, which has seen a huge
increase in the number of projects being completed
through the Global Digital Pipeline™, using our global
network to provide our clients capacity, global talent,
and time and cost benefits.

PRIME FOCUS WORLD: STAR WARS,
HARRY POTTER, TRANSFORMERS, X-
MEN, SCREAM4

Perhaps the most notable WorldSourcing™ success
this year was the completion of the 3D conversion of
Star Wars Episode I: The Phantom Menace for
Lucasfilm, utilising View-D™, our proprietary 3D
conversion process. Prime Focus was selected by
Lucasfilm and ILM following an exhaustive testing
process,withStarWars creatorGeorgeLucashimself

FOCUS ONTHEWORLD

PRIMEFOCUSHASDEMONSTRATED ITS
STRONGCAPABILITIESTOSERVETHE
GROWINGDEMANDSOFTHEWORLD
ENTERTAINMENTBUSINESSTHROUGH
ITSWORLDSOURCING™MODEL.MR.
NAMITMALHOTRA, PRIMEFOCUS
FOUNDERANDGLOBALCEOHAS
RELOCATEDTOLOSANGELESAND
WILLDRIVETHISMARKETFURTHER.

15
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STARWARSEPISODE I: THEPHANTOMMENACE

TRANSFORMERS 3: DARKOFTHEMOON

GREENLANTERN

X-MEN: FIRSTCLASS

SCREAM4

TREEOF LIFE

SUCKER PUNCH

TRON: LEGACY

THE CHRONICLES OF NARNIA:
VOYAGEOFTHEDAWNTREADER

THEA-TEAM

PROJECTS
INTERNATIONAL FILM



James Cameron was famously quoted as saying that
every film he will hence bemaking will be in 3D. Jeffrey
Katzenberg, CEO of Dreamworks™ Animation,
predicted of 3D that, "It's the future of film-making
...withinfive-to-sevenyears,all filmswillbemadein 3D."

3D has been embraced by the audiences and the
industry alike. Audiences love it for its almost real life
entertainment and thrills. The producers, distributors
and exhibitors love it since it decreases costs through
digital distribution, increases revenue through higher
ticket prices in theatres and reduces piracy.

Almost every recent phenomenal box office success
has been in 3D - films such as Avatar, Alice in
Wonderland, HowToTrainYourDragon,Transformers:
Dark of the Moon and Harry Potter and the Deathly
Hallows: Part 2, among others. A total of US$1.2bn
ticket sales in the last four months has been from 3D
screens. This is 65% of total Gross Box Office from
only 33% of total screens - a clear sign of things to
come. [Source: International 3DSociety]

FOCUS ON 3D
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3D is not just restricted to the films. It is spreading to
television as well. There are already 9,000 theatre
screens worldwide 3D ready, and growing rapidly.
200,000 3DTVsets shipped in 2009and this figure is
expected to touch 64 million by 2018, 90% CAGR!
(Source: DisplaySearch)

Prime Focus has been at the forefront of the 3D
revolution.Weare theonlyAsian company associated
with JamesCameron'sAvatar - the biggestHollywood
filmevermade.And there is a reason for this.View-D™,
Prime Focus' proprietary process for the conversion
of2Dmoving images tostereo3D images, offersmany

advantages over other conversionmethods, including
superior quality of converted imagery, significantly
shorter production timeframes, more iterations and
creative control over virtually everypixel in the frame.

Prime Focus has demonstrated its 3D capabilities by
converting someof the biggest blockbusters globally.
We continue to invest aggressively in our facilities in
India, to ensure that as the Indian media and
entertainment industry adopts higher technologies,
we are there to provide them with the best in
technology and services.

THEPOWERAND IMPACTOF 3DHAS
BEENREVOLUTIONARY. SUCHHAS
BEENTHESUCCESSANDACCEPTANCE
OFTHISMEDIUMBYTHEGLOBAL
AUDIENCESTHATTIMEMAGAZINEWROTE
RECENTLY: "3D ISNOWGOODENOUGHTO
MAKE IT - AFTERSOUNDANDCOLOUR -
THETHIRDSEA-CHANGETOAFFECT
MOVIES. THIS REALLY ISAREVOLUTION."

19
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"PRIMEFOCUSDELIVEREDONEVERYLEVELANDHELPEDMAKEOUR3D
CONVERSIONFORHARRYPOTTERANDTHEDEATHLYHALLOWS: PART2ALL
THATWECOULDHAVEHOPEDFORANDMORE." DAVIDYATES, DIRECTOR.

‘Harry Potter and theDeathly Hallows Part 2' -Warner Bros.



Prime Focus Technologies (PFT) is the dynamic and
highly successful technologyarmofPrimeFocus.With
offices in each of Prime Focus’ major international
locations, PFTdeploys a uniquemixture of media and
IT skills to provide solutions and benefits to some of
theworld’s largest contentowners, includingSTARTV,
Eros International, IPL, BCCI, JWTand Schawk!

CLEAR™ isPFT’s award-winningunifiedmulti-platform
content operations solution, delivered through
technology and services. It is agile, cost-effective,
flexible and quick to roll-out, and is fast becoming the
workflow management infrastructure of choice with
content owners who recognise the need to remain
ahead of the game as technology advances and new
delivery platforms emerge.

CLEAR™ is supported by a suite of technology,
infrastructure, talent and tools, which includes:

• CLEAR, the award–winning technology workflow
management infrastructure, voted ‘BEST OF IBC
2010’.

• Prime Focus’ global network of studios, combining
media and IT skills to provide world-class digital
post-production services from Los Angeles to
Mumbai via NewYork and London.

• A proven architecture for change, including the
creation of a supplier eco-system, a Cloud basedTV
Digital supply chainandamulti-platformprocessing,
packaging and delivery infrastructure.

• Proprietary processes and tools, including SLA-
driven best practice frameworks and intelligent
application tools covering areas such as ingest, QC,
archive, cataloguing, Video on Demand production
and subtitling.

• Security, incorporating advanced IT, physical,
content and platform securitymeasures.

• Aflexiblebusinessmodel,whichallowsclientstodeploy
onlytheelementsofthesystemwhichtheyrequire,and
offersanumberofflexiblepaymentoptions.

FOCUSONTECHNOLOGY

PRIMEFOCUSTECHNOLOGIES IS
THEDYNAMICANDHIGHLY
SUCCESSFULTECHNOLOGYARMOF
PRIMEFOCUS,WHICH
DURINGTHECOURSEOFTHE LASTYEAR
HASSIGNEDDEALSWITH
STARTV, EROS INTERNATIONAL,
SCHAWKANDTHEBCCI .

The proof of PFT’s transformative offering is in the organisations that are using it.
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In sport, the Indian Premier League
utilises CLEAR to broadcast the
tournamentgloballyvia itsYouTubeweb
portal, to create and publish highlights
packageswhicharereadywithinminutes
of the game finishing, and to push
content to consumers’ mobile phones
within secondsof the liveevent.

By the end of the 2010 IPL tournament,
YouTubewas reporting:

• 55.7million channel views
• 31.7millionVideo onDemand views
• And 93,000 subscribers across 200
countries, making the IPL channel the
"#1 Most Subscribed Channel of All
Time in India"

The IPL mobile internet platform for
the2010 tournamentwasalsodrivenby
CLEAR. 25,000 hours of IPL video
contentwasdownloadedandviewedby
fans on theirmobile devices.

“InPFTwefoundthebestblendofTVand
Internet skills to deliver rich experiences
ontheWebandMobile.Weareextremely
pleasedwithPFT’scontributionsandthey
areagreatteamtoworkwith.”

SameerMehta, Director,WillowTV

India’s largest film studio, Eros
International, is using CLEAR to
digitize and catalogue its entire
library of movies, comprising over
1,000 titles. This initiative helps
Eros to monetize its intellectual
property by enabling the
production, repurposing and
delivery of its content globally,
across web, mobile and other new
media platforms. It also allows the
Company to archive, preserve and
rightsmanage its library.

“Earlier, when we had an order for
10-15 movies, it used to take 4-5
days to deliver the content. Last
week [with CLEAR], we delivered
45movies in oneweek”.

Sunil Pawar, Studio Manager, Eros
International

STAR TV deployed CLEAR to
facilitate its transition to HD, to
migrate its broadcast operations
to the cloud and to create an eco-
system for suppliers. Once within
the eco-system, the content is
placed at the centre of STAR’s
organisation, enabling concurrent
rather than sequential workflows.

For STARTV, CLEAR handles:

• 2,500 commercials every day
• 280 hours of new programming
everyweek(removingtheneedfor
2,245half-hourdigibeta tapes)

• And 17,500 hours of programming
content for playout in 17 different
formatseveryyear

“We see a complete transition in
the next three months. Our
advertisers are now digitally
connectedwithus, andwewill have
an end-to-end, digitally driven,
tapeless eco-system.”

Sanjay Gupta, Chief Operating
Officer for STARTV
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MANAGINGDIRECTOR'SMESSAGE
INDIA ISTHEBEDROCKOF
THEPRIMEFOCUSGLOBAL
OFFERING -THEPOWERHOUSE
BEHINDTHEGLOBALGROUP.
WITHOUT INDIA, THEPRIME
FOCUSGLOBALOFFERING
WOULDNOTEXIST.

over 3,500 people working around the clock to
provide our clients with an unmatched service. We
are focusedonour operations andpassionate about
our clients, who have beenwith us throughout these
fourteeneventful years, andhavegrownwith us. We
arecommitted todeliveringour loyal clients thebest
creativity, technologyandservices.Wewant themto
be part of the transformation of our business -
bringing 'home' our learning from other parts of the
world tohelpmakeour Indian facilities thebest they
can possibly be. India is the bedrock of the Prime
Focus global offering - the powerhouse behind the
global group. Without India, the Prime Focus global
offeringwould not exist.

Over the course of last year, we have made
significant investment in our facilities and
infrastructure in India, and are committed to
continue doing so. These investments will not only
ensure that we continue to offer our local Indian
clientsaworld-class service, but alsohaveenormous
benefits for the group globally.

As part of revitalising our operations in India, we
opened our new, state of the art, 75,000 sq.ft. global
headquarters in Mumbai, complete with 7 theatres
and over 600 artist seats offering a complete and
comprehensive end-to-end solution. In December
2010, we announced the opening of a 50,000 sq.ft.
Film VFX and 3D conversion facility at Chandigarh.
With a 3,000 artist capacity, this facility marks the
major expansion in capacity to cater for both

Dear Shareholders,

I amextremelyhappy tosharewithyou thehighlights
of an exciting and eventful year for the company.
PrimeFocus is firmly establishedat the forefront of
delivering cutting-edge and top-class creative and
technical services in the VFX , animation and post-
production space to the media and entertainment
industry globally. I am proud to say that in a short-
span of fourteen years, Prime Focus has become a
name synonymous with quality, innovation and
committed delivery.

This year the company delivered sterling results.
Here are the highlights :

• Total Income up by 12.21% toRs. 5,179.36million

• Profit AfterTax (beforeminority interest) up by
123.87% toRs. 881.88million

• NetWorth up by 82.08% toRs. 3,505.71million

• Reserves up by 87.31% toRs. 3,367.52million

We started in India in a small way in 1997. Firmly
believing inourdreamsand focusedonmaking them
come true, we have been taking steady strides to
evolve into a truly global Visual Entertainment
Services group. Today, we have sixteen facilities
spanning three continents and four time zones with
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OVERTHECOURSEOF LASTYEAR,WEHAVEMADE
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT INOURFACILITIESAND
INFRASTRUCTURE IN INDIA, ANDARECOMMITTEDTO
CONTINUEDOINGSO.THESE INVESTMENTSWILLNOT
ONLYENSURETHATWECONTINUETOOFFEROURLOCAL
CLIENTSAWORLD-CLASSOFFERING, BUTWILLALSO
HAVEENORMOUSBENEFITS FORTHEGROUPGLOBALLY.

domestic and international filmprojects, whilst also
providing a significant number of new jobs for the
local population. During the year, we also relocated
the Prime Focus advertising facility from Lower
Parel toKhar.Thecompletely renovatedKhar facility
is scheduled for September 2011 re-launch. The
Mastermind building in Royal Palms, the original
home of the Prime Focus VFX division, is also
undergoing refurbishment.

These initiatives continue to be spearheaded by the
new CEO of Prime Focus India. Early in 2011, I
appointed Mr. Ramki Sankaranarayanan, President
and CEO of Prime Focus Technologies, as the new
CEOofPrimeFocus in India, in amovewhich sawhim
become responsible for all of the operations and
business lines of Prime Focus in India, in addition to
maintaining his leadership of Prime Focus
Technologies. This renewed focus is already paying
dividendsand I amconfident thatRamkiwill continue

to drive and deliver the highest levels of service to
our clients, and returns to our investors.

I have re-located to Los Angeles this year to
personally direct the business in North America.
Prime Focus today is a name to be reckoned with in
the global media and entertainment industry. With
our sustained investment in facilitiesandpeople, and
with our commitment and focus to deliveringworld-
class creativity, technology and services, Prime
Focus is ready for its next phase of growth.

I thank all our clients, our investors, our vendors, and
most of all, our people who have always remained
focusedondeliveringmatchlessperformancedayon
day, month onmonth, year on year.

NamitMalhotra

ManagingDirector

'The Chronicles of Narnia: Voyage of theDawnTreader -WaldenMedia /Twentieth Century Fox'
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Dear Shareholders

This hasbeenamomentous year forPrimeFocus,with
notablesuccessesbothathomeandabroad.Significant
investment has been made in our facilities and
infrastructureinIndia,allowingourtalentedandcreative
staff to continue offering the highest levels of service
toourclients,bothdomesticallyandglobally.

I amproud tohavebeenentrustedwith thedirection
of Prime Focus in India, and I am fully committed to
building upon the hard work and successes which
have led the company to its current market-leading
position. I will continue to drive and deliver the
highest levels of service for our clients, the best
working conditions forour staff, andbest returns for
our investors.

I see the acceleration of digitisation globally within
the Media & Entertainment industry. What is
interesting is that theprogress is across thecontent
life cycle, right from the making of the content to
distribution, exhibition and beyond. This, dovetailed
to the insatiable demand for content for the ‘digital
consumer’ and 3D, is pressing for change. Tape to
tapeless, single screen tomulti screen, prime time to
my time, content delivered to any device, any place.
All, many facets of this change. I will classify this as
an opportunity to challenge convention and
transform thought on how content is made,
processed,managed, stored andmonetised.

Your company has moved forward aggressively to
offer technology services in addition to creative
services. It is investing in the creation of technology
and building new service lines for creative
enablement and bettermonetisation of content.

It has set up a technology development center in
Bangalore, India’s Silicon Valley, which has built
CLEARTM, the world’s first Hybrid Cloud based
Technical Infrastructure that helps manage content
and its workflows. Another first is the innovation of
setting up a TV domain specific cloud in India
connecting the content suppliers to the
broadcasters.

CLEAR today is already managing over a hundred
thousand hours of content for clients like STAR TV,
EROS, BCCI, HindustanUnilever, JWTand others. TVB
Europe Magazine gave a ‘Best of IBC2010’ award to
CLEARTMfor its innovationandcostefficiency.

WithCLEARTMandanetworkofPrimeFocus studios
worldwide, we have fully embraced this new way of
working, settingupour ‘GlobalDigital Pipeline’,which
allows our artists and associates to collaborate on
projects across geographies and timezones, and
allowsour clients to leverage theattendant cost and
time advantages.

Just as the Indian IT industry emerged tobe a strong
supplier ofTechnologyservicesover the lastdecade,
I see the same opportunity for your company in the
Media&Entertainment space.

I believe that there is no other company operating in
the M&E industry that is better placed to take
advantageof the rapid changeswhichweare seeing,
offering technical and creative services.We will not
rest on our laurels. We will continue to strive for
more. More innovation. More market share. More
value for our shareholders.

Ramki Sankaranarayanan

CEO, India

CEO’SMESSAGE
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EARNINGSPERSHARE - BASIC (IN`) PAT - BEFOREMINORITY INTEREST (` INMILLION)

FINANCIALSNAPSHOT

Particulars 2010-11 2009-10 2008-09

(` inmillion)

KEYOPERATINGFIGURES

Total Income 5179.36 4615.72 3670.50

Total Expenditure 3428.79 3468.79 2935.28

Earnings before Interest, Tax 1750.56 1146.93 735.22
andDepreciation (EBITD)

Profit BeforeTax 941.94 502.73 146.11

Profit AterTax (beforeminority interest) 881.88 393.93 157.64

KEYFINANCIAL FIGURES

NetWorth 3505.71 1925.37 1751.23

Net Current Assets 2115.18 1382.94 1816.67

Reserves and Surplus 3367.52 1797.83 1623.68

Cash and Bank Balances 299.17 212.37 613.59

Gross Block 9693.53 7431.56 7339.56

Net Block 6628.21 4816.05 4528.88

Share Capital 138.87 128.23 128.23

ShareWarrants 138.70 0.00 0.00

Earnings Per Share - Basic (IN `) 5.74 2.61 1.15
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performance. We cannot guarantee that these
forward-lookingstatementswill be realized, although
webelievewehavebeenprudent in our assumptions.
The achievement of results is subject to risks,
uncertainties and even inaccurate assumptions.
Should known or unknown risks or uncertainties
materialize, or should underlying assumptions prove
inaccurate, actual results could vary materially from
those anticipated, estimated or projected. Readers
should bear this in mind.We undertake no obligation
to publicly update any forward looking statements,
whether asa result of new information, futureevents
or otherwise.

DISCLAIMER

In this Annual Report we have disclosed forward-
looking information to enable investors to
comprehend our prospects and take informed
investment decisions. This report and other
statements - written and oral - that we periodically
make contain forward-looking statements that set
out anticipated results based on the management's
plans and assumptions. We have tried wherever
possible to identify such statements by using words
such as 'anticipate', 'estimate', 'expects', 'projects',
'intends', 'plans', 'believes' and words of similar
substance in connectionwithanydiscussionof future
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,

Your directors are pleased to present the Annual Report of the Company along with the audited Accounts for the year 
ended March 31, 2011:

1. FinAnCiAl PeRFoRMAnCe:

The Standalone and Consolidated Audited Financial Results for the year ended March 31, 2011 are as follows:

(` in lacs)

Consolidated Standalone

Particulars 2010-11 2009-10 2010-11 2009-10

income from operations 50,295.83 45,278.38 13,550.58 9,527.26

other income 1,497.74 878.85 481.63 504.28

Total Income 51,793.57 46,157.23 14,032.21 10,031.54

less : expenditure 34,287.92 34,687.89 8,047.81 4,949.02

Profit Before Interest, Depreciation and Tax 17,505.65 11,469.35 5,984.40 5,082.52

less : interest 2,630.47 2,183.40 1,386.15 1,235.60

Profit After Interest, Before Depreciation and Tax 14,875.18 9,285.95 4,598.25 3,846.92

less : Depreciation 5,455.74 4,258.70 2,395.10 1,934.97

Profit Before Tax (PBT) 9,419.44 5,027.25 2,203.15 1,911.95

less: Provision For Tax

Current Tax 
Deferred Tax

          - 
 600.63

852.30 
235.64

          - 
 227.80

613.25 
26.04

Profit After Tax 8,818.81 3,939.31 1,975.35 1,272.66

less: Minority interest 1,210.18 596.93          -        -

Profit After Tax (after adjustment of minority interest) 7,608.63 3,342.38 1,975.35 1,272.66

Add: Balance Brought Forward from previous year 10,851.92 7,509.54 10,126.92 8,854.26

Profit available for appropriation 18,460.55 10,851.92 12,102.27 10,126.92

less: Transfer To General Reserve         -   -        -    -

Balance Carried To Balance Sheet 18,460.55 10,851.92 12,102.27 10,126.92
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2. oPeRATionS Review:

   Total income of your company for the year under 
review increased to ̀  14,032.21 lacs from ̀  10,031.54 
lacs in the previous year and witnessed 39.88% 
growth. Profit before Tax, Depreciation & interest 
(PBDiT) amounted to ` 5,984.40 lacs which is 
higher by 17.74 % in comparison to previous year. 
net Profit after Tax is at ` 1,975.35 lacs as against  
` 1,272.66 lacs in previous year.

   on consolidated basis, total income of your company and 
its subsidiary stands at ̀  51,793.57 lacs. Total income 
has  increased by 12.21% over previous financial year. 
Profit before Tax, Depreciation & interest (PBDiT) was  
` 17,505.65 lacs which is higher by 52.63% in 
comparison to previous year amount of ` 11,469.35 
lacs. Profit After Tax (PAT) increased by 123.87% 
during the year under review and stands at ` 8818.81 
lacs. 

3. DiviDenD:

   in order to preserve funds for future activities, the 
Board of Directors of your Company do not recommend 
any Dividend for the year ended March 31, 2011. 

4. APPRoPRiATionS:

  no appropriations are proposed to be made for the 
year under consideration. 

5. CAPiTAl:

   During the year under review, the authorised share 
capital of the Company was increased from ` 15 
Crores to ` 20 Crores to enable the Company to meet 
the additional capital requirements.

   During the year under review, your Company has 
allotted 10,641,566 equity Shares of face value of 
Re. 1/- each to Qualified institutional Buyers under 
QiP as per Chapter viii of the SeBi Regulations 
at a price of ` 68.58 per equity Share (including a 
premium of ` 67.58 per equity Share), aggregating to 
` 729,798,596 on november 10, 2010. The amount  
was raised with object to augment long term working 
capital requirements of the Company in view of the 

expected growth in the Company’s business, prepay / 
repay debt, expand and to upgrade existing facilities, 
strengthen the financial position of our Company, fund 
other strategic initiatives and/or for other general 
corporate purposes.

   Your Company has allotted 1,000,000 warrants 
convertible into equity Shares on october 15, 2010 
to Mr. namit Malhotra, a member of the Promoters 
and Promoter Group carrying an option/ entitlement 
to subscribe to equivalent number of equity Shares 
on a future date not exceeding 18 months from the 
date of allotment of such warrants. each warrant shall 
be convertible into one equity share of nominal value 
of ` 10/- each at a price not less than the minimum 
price determined in accordance with the provision of 
Chapter vii of SeBi (iCDR) Regulations.

   To augment and improve liquidity of Companys’s equity 
share and enhance shareholder’s value, Company’s 
equity share of ̀  10/- each fully paid up was subdivided 
into 10 equity shares of ` 1 fully paid up. The record 
date fixed for the purpose of sub division of equity 
shares of the company was november 1, 2010.

   The Company had issued FCCB of USD 55 mn on 
December 12, 2007 and during the year under review, 
no bonds have been converted into equity shares of 
the Company.

6. SUBSiDiARieS:

  we have six direct subsidiary companies including two 
foreign subsidiary companies.

   in accordance with the general circular no. 2/2011 dated  
February 08, 2011 issued by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs,  the annual accounts of these subsidiary 
companies are not  being attached with the balance 
sheet of the Company. The  Company will make available 
the annual accounts of the subsidiary companies and 
related detailed information to any  member of the 
Company who may be interested in obtaining  the same. 
The annual accounts of the subsidiary companies will  
also be kept open for inspection at the registered office 
of the Company and that of the respective subsidiary 
companies. The  consolidated financial statements 
presented by the Company include the financial results 
of its subsidiary companies.
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7. DiReCToRS:

   in accordance with the requirements of the Companies 
Act, 1956, Mr.Kodi Raghvan Srinivasan and Mr. 
Padmanabha Gopal Aiyar, independent and non 
executive Directors of the Company retire by rotation at 
the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible 
offer themselves for re-appointment. As stipulated in 
terms of Clause 49 of the listing agreement with the 
stock exchanges, the brief resume of Mr.Kodi Raghvan 
Srinivasan and Mr. Padmanabha Gopal Aiyar, will be 
provided in the notice convening 14th Annual General 
Meeting of the Company.

  Mr.Hari Padmanabhan resigned from the Board of 
Directors the Company with effect from February 
14, 2011. The Board wishes to place on record its 
appreciation for his valuable contribution during his 
tenure as member of the Board.

8.  CoRPoRATe GoveRnAnCe RePoRT AnD 
GeneRAl SHAReHolDeR inFoRMATion:

   As required by Clause 49 (vi) of the listing agreement 
entered into by the Company with the stock exchanges, 
a detailed report on Corporate Governance is provided as 
Annexure which forms part of the Directors’ Report. The 
General Shareholders information has been provided as 
Annexure which also forms part of the Directors’ Report. 
The Company is in compliance with the requirement 
and disclosures that have to be made in this regard. 
The Practicing Company Secretary’s’ Certificate on 
compliance with corporate governance requirements by 
the Company is attached to the Corporate Governance 
Report and forms part of the Directors Report.

9. PUBliC DePoSiTS:

   During the year under review, the Company did 
not accept any Deposits within the meaning of the 
provisions of Section 58A of the Companies Act, 1956.

10. PARTiCUlARS oF eMPloYeeS:

   in terms of the provisions of Section 217(2A) of 
the Companies Act, 1956, read with the Companies 
(Particulars of employees) Rules, 1975 as amended, the 
names and other particulars of the employees are set out 
in the annexure to the Directors’ Report. Having regard 

to the provisions of Section 219(1)(b)(iv) of the said Act, 
the Annual Report excluding the aforesaid information is 
being sent to all the members of the Company and others 
entitled  thereto. Any member interested in obtaining 
such particulars may write to the Company Secretary at 
the registered office of the Company.

11.  DiReCToRS’ ReSPonSiBiliTY STATeMenT 
U/S 217 (2AA) oF THe CoMPAnieS ACT, 
1956:

  Pursuant to Section 217 (2AA) of the Companies Act, 
1956, the Directors confirm to their best knowledge and 
belief that:

�� ●� �In�the�preparation�of�annual�accounts,�the�applicable�
accounting standards have been followed and there 
are no material departures;

�� �●�� �They� have� selected� such� accounting� policies� and�
applied them consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so 
as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs 
of the Company as at 31st March, 2011 and of the 
profit and loss account of the Company for the year 
ended on that date;

�� ●� �They�have�taken�proper�and�sufficient�care�for�the�
maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 1956 for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud 
and other irregularities;

� ●�� �They�have�prepared�the�annual�accounts�on�a�going�
concern basis.

12. AwARDS AnD ACHieveMenTS: 

  During the year, the Company has received several awards. 
Some prominent awards received are as follows: 

	 •  CGTantra Community Awards 2011 for Best vFX in 
Commercial for Zen estilo ad.

	 •	 	Apsara Awards 2011 for Best visual effects for 
‘Guzaarish’

	 •	 	eMe Awards 2011 for Best Film Content ‘Guzaarish’ 

	 •	 	eMe Awards 2011 for the Best Tv Content for 
indigo Airlines ‘on-Time’ advert.

	 •	 	Award of excellence at ASiFA iAD 2010 for ‘Raavan‘
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13. AUDiToRS AnD AUDiToRS’ RePoRT:

   M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Associates, Chartered Accountants 
resigned as Statutory Auditors of the Company and M/s. 
MZS & Associates, Chartered Accountants were appointed 
in their place at the extra ordinary General Meeting held 
on April 30, 2011 as Statutory Auditors of the Company. 

   M/s. MZS & Associates, Chartered Accountants, the 
Statutory Auditors hold office until the conclusion of 
the ensuing Annual General Meeting and are eligible for 
reappointment. The members are requested to consider 
their re-appointment and to fix their remuneration. 
The retiring auditors have, under Section 224 (1B) of 
the Companies Act, 1956, furnished confirmation of 
their eligibility for the re-appointment.

   As regards the emphasis  and qualifications made by 
the Auditors as stated in paragraph number 4 and  5 of 
their report on the accounts of Prime Focus limited and 
paragraph 5 of their report on the Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the Company respectively, attention is 
invited to note no. 19 (c), (d) and (e) of Schedule 16 
on Significant Accounting Policies and notes forming 
part of the Accounts of the Company and note no. 16 
(c), (d) and (e) of Schedule 18 of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements of the Company, wherein the detail 
explanation has been provided which in the opinion of 
the Board of Directors are self explanatory.

14.  ConSeRvATion  oF eneRGY, TeCHnoloGY 
ABSoRPTion AnD FoReiGn eXCHAnGe 
eARninGS AnD oUTGo:

 i.  Conservation of Energy and Technology 
Absorption: 

    Although the Company is not engaged in 
manufacturing activities, the Company makes 
every effort to conserve energy as far as possible in 
its post production facilities, Studios, offices, etc. 
The company also makes significant measures to 
reduce energy consumption by using/purchasing 
energy efficient equipments. we purchase PCs, 
laptops, air conditioners etc that meet environment 
standards, wherever possible and replace old 
equipment with more energy-efficient equipment. 
our energy costs constitutes a very small part of 
our total expenses, the financial impact of these 
measures is not material but we constantly evaluate 

new developments and invest into latest energy 
efficient technology. 

   Your company is predominantly a service provider 
and research & development is carried out as an 
integral part of the activities of the Company. The 
Company adopts the latest trends in the technology 
development and introduces the same so as to 
ensure reduction in cost with best quality output.

 ii. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

    Activities relating to export, initiatives to 
increase exports, Developments of new export 
markets for Products and Services and Export 
Plan

   The Company has continued to maintain focus and 
avail of export opportunities based on economic 
considerations. During the year, the Company has 
exports worth ` 6262.94 lacs.

(` in lacs)

Particulars 2010-2011 2009-2010

Foreign exchange earned: 
Technical Service receipts 2793.84 484.81

Foreign exchange outgo: 
Payment on other accounts 197.64 324.00

 15. ACKnowleDGeMenTS:

   Your Directors would like to express their appreciation 
for the assistance and co-operation received from the 
financial institutions, banks, Government authorities, 
customers, vendors and members during the year 
under review. Your Directors also wish to place 
on record their deep sense of appreciation for the 
committed services by the executives and staff of the 
Company.

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

 Sd/-

 Naresh Malhotra

Chairman and Whole-time Director

 Place: Mumbai

 Date: June 20, 2011
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Economic ovErviEw
 in its twice-yearly world economic outlook published in April 
2011, the international monetary Fund (imF) has confirmed 
that the global economic recovery is proceeding steadily. it 
has estimated GDP growth at 4.4% for the current year 
and has projected a 4.5% growth in the next year.

 while the US GDP grew at 3.1% in 2010, the euro zone 
continued to struggle with a growth of about 1% in GDP. The 
situation in the UK remained grim, considering that in February 
2010, the authorities revised the GDP growth numbers to 
1.7% from 1.8% for the current year, and from 2.3% to 
2.2% for the year 2012. in the first quarter of 2011, the GDP 
actually contracted by 0.5%, largely due to a massive cut in 
spending, subdued wages and squeezed household budgets.

 Emerging markets, especially those in india and china, 
continued their growth momentum, with 8.8% and 10% GDP 
growth respectively. in india, the economy is fast moving 
forward on the back of impressive growth in consumption, rise 
in salary-levels, rapid urbanisation and overall growth in the 
manufacturing and service sectors. inflation does continue 
to remain a worry and concern, with the government raising 
interest rates to rein in growing inflation.

inDUSTry ovErviEw
 After being impacted adversely by the global downturn in 
economy in 2008 and 2009, the global entertainment and 
media (E&m) industry has entered a positive growth phase 
in 2010, according to the Global Entertainment and media 
outlook : 2010-14 report by Price waterhouse coopers (Pwc). 
This report estimates the global E&m spending grew by 4.6% 
in the year 2010. over the next five years, the E & m spending 
is estimated to rise to USD  1.9 trillion in 2015, growing at a 
compounded Annual Growth rate (cAGr) of 5.7%.

 region-wise, the US continued to be the single-largest 
market at US$ 726 million in 2010 and is growing at a 

cAGr of 5.6%. Europe and middle East combined are the 
second-largest market with a size of US$ 580 million and 
cAGr of 6.1%. Asia-Pacific is the fastest growing market 
with a size of US$ 425 million and cAGr of 9.2%, led by 
explosive growths in china and india.

 Sector-wise, Television Distribution is the largest segment 
at US$ 230 billion with a cAGr of 8.3%, closely followed 
by Television network (Broadcast and cable) growing at a 
cAGr of 6.6%. The Film Entertainment segment is US$ 104 
billion and expected to grow at cAGr of 5.3%. The highest 
growth is expected to come from the video Gaming segment 
at 11.4% cAGr and which is worth US$ 46.0 billion in 2010. 
The music segment is pegged to grow at 5.2% cAGr with 
an estimated size of US$ 47.9 billion in 2010.

 (source:  Entertainment and Media Outlook : 2010-2014 
report by Price Waterhouse Coopers (PWC)

The year also saw some clear trends emerging in the 
industry :

 2010 marks the first time in history that  5 out of the top 
10 and only the 5th time that  2 out of the top 5 highest 
grossing films were animation films. Toy STory 3 grossed 
over US$ 1 billion. in fact, Toy STory 3 is the highest 
grossing animated film ever and the first animated film 
to have grossed US$ 1 billion. with Harry Potter and the 
Deathly Hallows Part i, inception,  Shrek Forever After and 
The Twilight Saga – Eclipse also in the top 10, animation 
and vFX is now big business.

 Digital technology continues to increase its dominance 
across all segments of the industry. Unprecedented changes 
in technology and consumer behaviour are making the 
industry more fragmented and diverse.

 As 3D invades more and more of our daily lives through 3D 
televisions and 3D games with motion sensors, there is a 
growing readiness to pay for content driven by improved 
customer experience and convenience.
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THE inDiAn mArKET
 After a lacklustre 2009, the year 2010 was one filled with growth 
and dynamism for the industry.  The industry registered a 
healthy growth of 11% over 2009 and touched inr 652 billion. 
This trend is expected to continue in 2011 when the industry 
is estimated to grow by 13%. This interesting year also saw 
an influx of new content distribution platforms, as well as 
growth in regional markets. There was a marked resurgence 
in advertising spends and DTH subscribers touched grew to 
almost 28 million by the end of 2010, a tremendous growth. 
Digitisation continued to be a key driver of growth, with greater 
adoption of digital prints by the film studios.  with the rollout 
of 3G and new devices like tablets, new media comprising 
of gaming, digital advertising  and animation and vFX are 
growing much faster. Animation and vFX stands apart insofar 
as growth opportunities are concerned, with a huge potential  
for growth in film-restoration and 2D-3D conversion.

 As per Ficci-KPmG report 2011, film was the only segment 
of the industry that did not grow in 2010. The dismal 
performance of 2009 continued in 2010, with size shrinking 
to inr 83 billion from inr 89 billion in the previous year, a 
decline of 6.7%. As in 2009, the prime reason for this decline 
was lack of availability of good quality content. 

 2010 also saw unprecedented growth in the DTH platform.  
The net subscriber base increased by over 75% as compared 
to 2009 and 12 million new subscribers were added, making 
the total number of subscribers 28 million at the end of 
2010. The Television segment grew by 15.5% in 2010, and 
is expected to touch inr 630 million by 2015, making it 
half the industry size and the second largest segment.

inDiAn AnimATion AnD vFX
 The indian animation and vFX segment grew at 17.5% in 
2010 over 2009 to reach inr 26.6 million. The growth was 
led by vFX and post production, which grew at 42% and 
17%, while animation grew at 10%.

 Even though seven animated movies were being made in 
2010, only three (Toonpur Ka Superhero, Luv-Kush – The 
warrior Twin and ramayana – The Epic) were eventually 
released in the theatres, where they received lukewarm 
success. A primary reason for this is lack of distribution 
partners. on the other hand, globally, it was a year of super 

success for animated films. Two out of the top five and five 
out of the top ten highest grossing films were animated 
films. Toy Story 3 grossed over US$ 1 billion.

 The quantum of work in the animation segment continued 
to be dominated by Tv,  which accounted for 60% of all 
work done in animation. Direct to DvD and movies for 
theatres accounted for 20% each of the total quantum of 
work in this segment.

 The vFX segment continued to play an ever-increasing role 
in movies world-wide. of the top ten highest grossing movies 
of 2010, iron man2, inception, Tron: Legacy and clash of 
the Titans all heavily used vFX. in 2009, nine of the top ten 
highest grossing movies relied heavily on vFX. in the indian 
film industry too, the demand for vFX is growing as indian 
film-makers explore newer genres like sci-fi and mythology.

BUSinESS ovErviEw
 Prime Focus Limited (Prime Focus) is a leading visual 
entertainment services company in Asia, and the largest 
in india. The company started in 1997 in mumbai as a 
post production house. Today, with a pan-india presence 
in mumbai, Delhi, chennai, Bangalore, Hyderabad and 
chandigarh, the company has transformed itself into a one-
stop shop providing crEATivE and TEcHnicAL services for 
the film, broadcast, commercials, music, gaming and media 
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industries.  it is part of the global Prime Focus group which has 
offices in major markets like London, new york, Los Angeles 
and vancouver. The company works with marquee clients 
that include the biggest names in the industry: warner Bros, 
Universal, Paramount, 20th century Fox, James cameron, 
ogilvy, JwT, BBc, Saatchi & Saatchi, yash raj Films, Dharma 
Productions, red chillies Entertainment and many more.

 The company continues its aggressive foray into the indian 
media and entertainment space with a combined focus on 
building its resources and introducing cutting edge new products. 
The company provides a unique ‘multi-local’ advantage to 
its customers via the use of its Global Digital PipelineTm. The 
company offers a full range of products and services, thereby 
reducing the need for multiple vendors and resulting in higher 
efficiencies of scope, scale and size for its customers.

 The company has also launched SPF worLDvErSioninGTm, 
a service that enables smooth and seamless roll out of 
global and regional marketing campaigns. The company has 
partnered with ScHAwK! – the world’s largest print supplier 
- to deliver cLEAr cPmTm, a total campaign management 
tool. SPF worLDvErSioninGTm brings the synergies of the 
global footprint of both companies together, enabling tailor-
made control and coordination to suit clients/agencies’ 
specific requirements.

oPErATionAL HiGHLiGHTS
During the year, Prime Focus played a critical part in many 
international and indian projects:

BOLLYWOOD

1. murder 2 6. Anjaana Anjaani

2. Shaitan 7. ravaan

3. Patiala House 8. Bumm Bumm Bole

4. no one Killed Jessica 9. Badmaa$h company

5. Guzaarish

ADVERTISING PROJECTS

1. Philips ‘Grooming range’ 5. Domino’s mexican wrap

2. reliance ‘Digital HD’ 6.  Axis Bank ‘There’s 
Always a Solution’

3. Toshiba ‘Sachin cut out’ 7. Samsung ‘Guru’

4. indiGo Airlines ‘on Time’

INTERNATIONAL FILMS

1.  Star wars Episode i: 
The Phantom menace

6. Tree of Life

2.  Transformers 3: Dark of 
the moon

7. Sucker Punch

3. Green Lantern 8. Tron: Legacy 

4. X-men: First class 9.  The chronicles of 
narnia: voyage of the 
Dawn Treader

5. Scream 4 10. The A-Team

UK BROADCAST PROJECTS

1. Great British menu 5.  vatican - The Hidden 
world

2.  mary Portas: Secret 
Shopper

6. America The Story of Us

3. The House That made me 7.  Stephen Hawking’s 
Universe

4.  Take That ‘Look Back, 
Don’t Stare’

UK ADVERTISING PROJECTS 

1. Lucozade ‘yes’ 5. o2 ‘Thinking of you’

2. chanel ‘Gabrielle’ 6.  nokia ‘Happy 
navigators’

3. relentless ‘virtues’ 7. Stella Artois

4.  ghd ‘At the Stroke of 
midnight’
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TEcHnoLoGy AnD SErvicES
 PrimE FocUS continues to remain at the forefront in 
providing innovative creative and technical services in india. 
it is also one of the few players to offer its customers both 
width and depth across service categories and across time-
zones.  Spread over 3 continents and 4 time-zones, the 
company has a skills bank of over 3,500 highly qualified 
people working around the clock 365 days a year, and offers 
compulsive time and cost savings to its clients. The company 
today handles all aspects of content, from pre-production to 
final delivery. it operates at all levels and points in the value 
chain: from creating, capturing, crafting, and circulating to 
conserving content, thus giving flexibility and freedom to 
producers.

 The company’s worldSourcingTm business model leverages Prime 
Focus’ unique global network of integrated studios working over 
its Digital Global PipelineTm, and has been used to deliver many 
high-end projects over the course of the last year.

View-DTM

 view-DTm   is a pioneering product in the conversion of 2D 
to stereo 3D images. This product was developed in-house 
through a robust r&D team.  The process can be leveraged 
over the Global Digital PipelineTm, allowing Prime Focus 
facilities in Los Angeles, vancouver, London and mumbai to 
all contribute shots to the same project.  This technology 
also offers a viable alternative to shooting with twin cameras, 
thereby resulting in savings of 30% to 40% in production 
costs. Entire libraries of content can be converted and 
repurposed for a new medium.

CLEARTM 

 cLEArTm is another proprietary technology developed in-house 
by Prime Focus. it is a revolutionary multi-platform content 
operations infrastructure that allows content owners to take full 
control of their digital assets and associated business processes 
and manage them throughout the entire content life-cycle : 
from creation to process and distribution, to preservation. 
cLEArTm is ready to use, fully flexible and customisable to any 
workflow requirement with best in class security measures 
to avoid content-misuse. it can be deployed in weeks, rather 
than months and years, thus resulting in immediate savings in 
costs of physical media, transfer and delivery.

 cLEArTm services some of the largest content owners in 
the world: STAr Tv, ESPn STAr Sports, Sony, HBo, Eros 
international, iPL, Bcci and many others. 

SPF WORLDVERSIONINGTM

 SPF worLDvErSioninGTm is a new service to assist with the 
smooth rollout of global and media marketing campaigns.  
Prime Focus has partnered with ScHAwK! – the world’s largest 
print supplier, to deliver a campaign management tool – cLEAr 
cPmTm, which provides a seamless interface for Tv, online and 
print management delivery. The service helps manage the entire 
process and has the capability of providing the clients/agency 
with real-time input, status and tracking of the campaign. 

AwArDS won DUrinG THE yEAr
	 ●	 	‘Best	 Special	 Effects’	 for	 ‘Guzaarish’	 at	 2011	 Apsara	

Awards

	 ●	 	EME	 Award	 for	 ‘VFX	 for	 the	 Best	 Film	 Content’	 for	
‘Guzaarish’

	 ●	 ‘Award	of	Excellence’	at	ASIFA	IAD	2010	for	‘	Raavan’

	 ●	 	EME	Award	for	‘VFX	for	the	Best	TV	Content’	for	‘On-
Time’ (indiGo Airlines)

	 ●	 	Gold	Award	 in	 ‘Filmcraft	 (Special	Effects)’	 at	Goafest	
2011 - ‘on-Time’ (indiGo Airlines)

	 	●	 	CLEAR™	 awarded	 ‘BEST	 OF	 IBC	 2010’	 at	 the	
international Broadcasting convention in Amsterdam 
in September 2010

oPPorTUniTiES & THrEATS
 with the industry bouncing back with double-digit growth 
in all sectors except films and with the near horizon looking 
exciting and promising, the industry holds a lot of positives 
and opportunities in both the traditional as well as new 
media spaces.

 with digitisation and digital platforms growing aggressively 
(last year saw a record increase of 12 million subscribers in 
DTH base) TrAi has revised the date for digitisation of the 
entire industry to 31st march, 2015 in a phased manner and 
the DTH subscriber base is expected to increase to 70 million 
by 2015. However, profitability continues to remain an issue, 
particularly with high taxation rates (aggregating to 30%-35% 



41

of total revenues). The average monthly subscription hovers 
between rs. 160-195 which is low, in line with the typicality 
of indian markets of stiff resistance to pay for content.

Archiving and restoration services are in a nascent stage 
in india, but have a tremendous prospect of growth in the 
coming years.  To preserve the rich film heritage, the ministry 
of information and Broadcasting has allocated a corpus fund of 
inr 6.6 billion. Besides preserving content, digitally archiving 
and restoring it also gives the content owner the added 
flexibility of delivering it across different delivery platforms.

 The film segment continues to search for quality content as 
most films failed to make a mark at the box office.  while 
many big budget films with top stars fared moderately, 
films with original story-lines and content tuned to an 
evolved audience continued to do well, proving that there is 
definitely a market beyond the ‘stars’.  Unless filmmakers, 
already facing spiralling costs of production and marketing, 
manage to make films with a strong audience connect, the 
film industry will continue to have selective success.

 in terms of growth prospects, 3D and vFX are poised to 
offer even larger opportunities. rapid advances in 3D 
technology have increased its penetration beyond theatres 
to homes in the form of 3D television sets and 3D gaming. 
Gaming is expected to grow to US$ 90 billion by 2015.

Source: Future Source Consulting

 vFX today is a critical part of filmmaking, both in Hollywood 
as well as in india. Five of the top ten and two of top five 
highest grossing films had vFX (including animation). with 
its inherent cost advantages, india is advantageously placed 
to reap the benefits of the double-digit growth expected in 
the vFX industry for the next few years. 

 The proliferation of the internet and the recent rollout of 3G is 
having a profound effect on usage and consumption patterns 
in new media.  Today, consumers are not merely demanding 
content, but they are also dictating how they want it, where 
they want it and when they want it. This is opening up new 
avenues and opportunities in creating value by way of context, 
coverage and convenience of content to consumers.

 with too many players, each offering only a part of the 
solution, fragmentation remains a cause for concern, as does 
revenue leakages. The indian consumers’ reluctance to pay 
for content is a constraint the industry still has to overcome. 

riSK mAnAGEmEnT
 The company has effective risk management in place 
to meet the risks and uncertainties that the company 
foresees. The company takes full cognisance of the fact 
that effective risk management is important in delivering 
sustained returns to its shareholders.

1.  Entertainment and media is an industry that is highly 
impacted by changes in macro-economic conditions.  
The company’s services and products are extensively 
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used in creating content for films and television.  
As production of films and content for television is 
directly affected by adverse economic conditions, the 
company’s operations will also be affected by this. 

  However, the company has a diverse portfolio of 
products and services that will help resist any such 
economic adversity. with world-class technologies 
in digital restoration of content and the capability of 
leveraging its global reach and talent, the company is 
also at the forefront of the new media revolution, and 
therefore, is sufficiently capable of adapting itself in 
case of adverse economic conditions.

2.  The company operates basically in the creative and 
technical services sector, which does not have high 
entry barriers. This allows a lot of new entrants to come 
and start offering same/similar services, and thereby, 
increase competition. The company understands that 
its products and services need to be different from those 
offered by the competition. The company is confident 
that it has pioneering products and services that make 
it stand apart from the competition. Bundled with 
the unique global backbone of worldSourcing Tm that 
integrates studios across the globe, the company also 
has products and services that are used at all points 
on the value chain in content creation. The company 
has established a reputation with leading players over 
the years due to its top quality products and offerings. 
The company believes that with its diversified product 
offering, global reach and resources, and local 
presence,  the company’s products and services are 
uniquely different from its competitors and hence, the 
company will continue to enjoy a competitive edge.

3.  The company operates in an industry that is 
characterised by rapid innovations in technology and 
changing consumer behaviour. Each new technology 
involves huge capital investment in hardware and 
software requirements. The company is aware of the 
fact that it has to remain abreast of these changes to 
maintain its position as a leader.

  Toward this, the company has taken adequate measures 
by ensuring that its products and services are the 
latest both in technology as well as evolving industry 
needs. The company keeps tapping the changing 
pulse of the industry and consumer needs across the 
globe and its dedicated r&D department ensures that 
its products and services are upgraded. The company 

is also at the forefront in innovation, as evidenced 
through its  SPF worLDvErSioninGTm , view-DTm 

and cLEArTm products.  The company continues to 
focus on developing ground-breaking products and 
technologies. The company also invests in updating 
its systems and upgrading its infrastructure to meet 
evolving challenges and needs.

4.  As the company has international operations and its 
revenues are also received in currencies like GBP, 
USD and Euro, it is exposed to risks in fluctuation of 
exchange rates which can affect its profitability.  The 
company exercises sufficient care and due caution 
in ensuring that its risk on account of fluctuations in 
exchange rate is covered and the company is insulated 
to the maximum extent possible. However, the company 
does not trade in foreign exchange derivatives.

5.  The company’s personnel are vital to the successful 
operation of the company. Any major attrition of 
these highly skilled personnel will have a detrimental 
affect on the company’s operation and profitability. 
The company is proud of its world-class work force 
and has in place sufficient and appropriate systems 
to ensure its people are satisfied and happy. with a 
strong emphasis on values, the company continues to 
be a preferred place to work, and to attract some of 
the best talent in the industry.  The company’s work-
force is now over 3,500 across the globe. Attrition 
rates are in-line with the industry.

oUTLooK
There is a lot to look forward to in the forthcoming year. 
with the industry estimated to grow at a cAGr of 14% 
and reach a size of inr 1275 billion, all segments of the 
industry are positively placed for sustained growth. Prime 
Focus is well-poised and positioned to ride this wave of 
growth and expansion of opportunities.

The new media, comprising of gaming, digital advertising, 
and Animation and vFX, are set to dominate growth in the 
industry, with cAGr of 31%,28% and 19% respectively 
till 2015.  Another strong emerging area of growth is in 
the 3D segment. movies like Avatar have been game-
changers and with advances in technology (both hardware 
and software), 3D is set to permeate beyond the theatrical 
experience to homes and gaming by way of 3D televisions 
and 3D gaming. Services like restoration archiving are 
also expected to take off and grow substantially. 
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 Prime Focus is the largest visual Entertainment Services 
player in india and a leading player in Asia. with a geographic 
presence across three continents and a unique global network 
of integrated studios located in all the major markets in the 
world, Prime Focus offers its  spectrum of services in 4 time-
zones on a 24/7 basis. Prime Focus has a range of creative 
and technical products and services that are aimed at all value 
points and functions in the industry. From content creation to 
conservation and from crafting to circulation, it has products 
like SPF worLDvErSioninGTm, cLEArTm and view-DTm that 
deliver compulsive time and cost advantages for customers. 

 The future outlook for the company is bright and optimistic 
and the company expects to take full advantage of its 
unique competencies, capabilities and capacities to further 
strengthen its position as a leading player.

HUmAn rESoUrcES
 Prime Focus continues to respect and recognise the importance 
of its people. The company continually strives to achieve best-
in-class working conditions for its people to ensure that they 
continue to maintain highest levels of performance, productivity 
and innovation, and are motivated to drive the company ahead 
as a leader. The company keeps updating and upgrading its Hr 
processes and policies to ensure that merit and performance 
are recognised and rewarded, and its employees are satisfied.

 The company had over 3,500 employees as at 31st march 
2011. The company continues to recognise that people are 

critical in achieving success on a sustainable basis, and that 
retaining its employees keeping them motivated is a challenge. 
The company is confident of meeting this challenge, and does 
not foresee any major attrition happening during the year.

FinAnciAL PErFormAncE  
 The total income of the company increased to rs. 5,179.36 
million compared to rs. 4,615.72 million in the previous 
year, a rise of 12.21%.  EBiDTA improved from rs. 1,146.93 
million in the previous year to rs. 1,750.56 million in the 
current year, registering a growth of 52.63%. The Profit 
before Tax for the current year stood at rs. 941.94 million 
against rs. 502.72 million in the previous year, indicating 
a rise of 87.37%.  The Profit after Tax (before minority 
interest) increase to rs. 881.88 million from rs. 393.93 
million in the previous year, an increase of 123.87%.

cAUTionAry STATEmEnT
 Statements in the management Discussion and Analysis 
describing the company’s objectives, projections, estimates 
and expectations may be ‘ forward looking statements’ within 
the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. 
Actual results could differ materially from those expressed 
or implied. important factors that could influence the 
company’s operations include economic developments within 
the country, demand and supply conditions in the industry, 
input prices, changes in government regulations, tax laws 
and other factors such as litigation and industrial relations. 

overall industry 

size (inr Bn)*
2007 2008 2009 2010

GAGr 

(2007-10)
2011P 2012P 2013P 2014P 2015P

cAGr 

(2010-15)

Television 211 241 257 297 12% 341 389 455 533 630 16%

Print 160 172 175 193 6% 211 231 254 280 310 10%

Film 93 104 89 83 -3% 91 98 109 120 132 10%

radio 7 8 8 10 11% 12 15 18 21 25 20%

music 7 7 8 9 5% 9 11 13 16 19 17%

out of Home 14 16 14 17 6% 19 22 24 27 30 12%

Animation and vFX 4 7 8 10 32% 13 17 23 31 38 31%

Gaming 4 7 8 10 32% 13 17 23 31 38 31%

Digital Advertising 4 6 8 10 39% 13 18 22 28 36 28%

Total 516 579 587 652 8% 738 834 957 1104 1275 14%

Source: KPmG analysis and industry interviews 
*Taken for calendar years 
note: numbers have been rounded to the nearest integer
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

1. Company’s philosophy on Code of GovernanCe:
  The Company’s corporate governance philosophy rests on the pillars of integrity, accountability, equity, transparency 

and environmental responsibility that conform fully with laws, regulations and guidelines. The company’s philosophy 
on corporate governance is to achieve business excellence and maximizing shareholder value through ethical business 
conduct. The Company’s philosophy also includes building partnerships with all stakeholders – employees, customers, 
vendors, service providers, local communities and government. The Company has always set high targets for the 
growth, profitability, customer satisfaction, safety and environmental performance and continues its commitment to 
high standards of corporate governance practices. during the year under review, the Board continued its pursuit of 
achieving its objectives through the adoption and monitoring of corporate strategies and prudent business plans. 

  The Company is in compliance with all the requirements of the corporate governance code as per Clause 49 of the 
listing agreement with the stock exchanges.

2. Board of direCTors:
  The Board of directors provide strategic direction and thrust to the operations of the Company, thereby enhancing 

the value of the stakeholders.

 a) Composition of Board of Directors and details of other directorships held

   The Board of directors of the Company has an optimum combination of executive and non-executive directors 
and is in conformity with Clause 49 of the listing agreement. The names and categories of the directors on the 
Board, the number of directorships and committee positions held by them in other public limited Companies as 
on march 31, 2011 are as under :

sr. 
no

name of director Category of director no. of 
directorship*

membership held 
in Committee of 

directorship# 

Chairmanship 
held in 

Committee of 
directors #

1. mr. naresh malhotra Chairman & Whole 
Time director

1 nil nil

2. mr. namit malhotra managing director 1 nil nil
3. mr. rakesh radheyshyam 

Jhunjhunwalla
non-executive 
director

8 nil nil

4. mr. Chandir Gidwani non - executive director 5 1 1
5. mr. Kodi raghavan srinivasan non - executive 

director(independent)
nil nil nil

6. mr. padmanabha Gopal 
aiyar

non - executive 
director(independent)

nil nil nil
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sr. 
no

name of director Category of director no. of 
directorship*

membership held 
in Committee of 

directorship# 

Chairmanship 
held in 

Committee of 
directors #

7. mr. rivkaran Chadha non - executive 
director(independent)

nil nil nil

8. mr. hari padmanabhan## non - executive 
director(independent)

n.a n.a n.a

  *  This excludes directorship held in private Companies, foreign Companies, Companies formed under section 
25 of the Companies act, 1956 and alternate directorships. 

  #   in accordance with Clause 49, memberships/Chairmanships of only the audit Committees and shareholders’/
investors’ Grievance Committees in all public limited companies (excluding prime focus limited) have been 
considered.

  ## resigned with effect from february 14, 2011.

 b) Board Meetings:

   during the year 2010-2011, the Board met five times on may 15, 2010; august 10, 2010, august 27, 2010; 
november 15, 2010; february 14, 2011. The gap between two board meetings did not exceed four months. 
apart from physical meetings, the Board of directors also considered and approved certain matters by circular 
resolutions, which were as a matter of good corporate practice ratified at the next meeting of the Board. 

  attendance of each director at Board meetings for the year 2010-11 and last annual General meeting:

Name of the Director No. of Meetings 
Held

No. of Meetings 
Attended

Attendance at last 
Annual General Meeting

mr. naresh malhotra

mr. namit malhotra

mr. Kodi raghavan srinivasan

mr. rakesh Jhunjhunwalla

mr. padmanabha Gopal aiyar

mr. rivkaran Chadha

mr. hariharan padmanabhan*

mr. Chandir Gidwani

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

2

2

--

4

5

--

2

present

present

absent

absent

absent

present

absent

absent

  * resigned with effect from february 14, 2011
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3. Board CommiTTees:
 A. Audit Committee:

   The audit Committee of the Company has been constituted as per the requirements of Clause 49 of the listing 
agreement. The composition of the audit committee is in compliance of Clause 49(ii) (a) of the listing agreement. 
as on date, it consists of three members. The Chief financial officer, representatives of the statutory auditors 
and senior officials of the company are invited to attend the meetings of the audit Committee from time to time, 
as and when required. The Company secretary of the Company acts as the secretary to the audit Committee.

  i. as on march 31, 2011, the audit Committee comprises of the following members of the Board:

Sr. No Name of the Member Particulars Category

1. mr. rivkaran Chadha Chairman independent & non-executive director

2. mr. Kodi raghavan srinivasan member independent & non-executive director

3. mr. namit malhotra member managing director

  ii. during the year 2010-11 the audit Committee met five times on the following dates:
   may 15, 2010; august 10, 2010; august 26, 2010, november 15, 2010 and february 14, 2011.

  iii. attendance of the directors in the audit Committee meeting:

Name Of the Director  No. of Meeting Attended

mr. rivkaran Chadha 5

mr. Kodi raghavan srinivasan 3

mr. namit malhotra 2

  iv. Terms of reference:

    The broad terms of reference includes the following as is mandated in Clause 49 of the listing agreement 
and section 292a of the Companies act, 1956:

   a.  oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to 
ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

   b.  recommend to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, replacement or removal of 
statutory auditors and fixation of audit fees.

   c.  approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by them.

   d.  review with the management the annual and quarterly financial statements before submission to the 
Board for approval.

   e.  reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue 
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than 
those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency 
monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations 
to the Board to take up steps in this matter.

   f.  reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, and adequacy of the 
internal control systems.
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   g.  reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit 
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage 
and frequency of internal audit.

   h.  reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is 
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting 
the matter to the board.

   i.  discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as 
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

   j.  To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 
shareholders (in case of non payment of declared dividends) and creditors.

   k.  To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism, in case the same is existing.

   l.  approval of appointment of Cfo (i.e., the whole-time finance director or any other person heading the 
finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience & background, 
etc. of the candidate.

   m.  Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit Committee.

 B. Remuneration Committee:

   as on march 31, 2011, the remuneration Committee comprised of non executive independent directors viz. mr. 
rivkaran Chadha, mr. Kodi raghavan srinivasan and mr. G.p.aiyar. mr. rivkaran Chadha is the Chairman of the 
Committee. The Committee deals with the remuneration policy for the directors of the Company. during the 
year 2010-2011, the remuneration Committee met once on may 15, 2010.

  Attendance of each Director at Remuneration Committee Meetings for the year 2010-11:

Name of the Director No. of Meetings held No. of Meetings Attended

mr. rivkaran Chadha 1 1

mr. Kodi raghavan srinivasan 1 1

mr. padmanabha Gopal aiyar n.a. n.a.

  Detail of Directors Remuneration paid for the year ended March 31, 2011 is as below:

Name of Director Remuneration Paid (`) Sitting Fees(`) Total (`)
mr. naresh malhotra 30,00,000/- nil 30,00,000/-
mr. namit malhotra 30,00,000/- nil 30,00,000/-
mr. rakesh Jhunjhunwala nil nil nil
mr. padmanabha Gopal aiyar nil 80,000/- 80,000/-
mr. rivkaran Chadha nil 1,00,000/- 1,00,000/-
mr. Kodi raghavan srinivasan nil 40,000/- 40,000/-
mr. hariharan padmanabhan* nil nil nil
mr. Chandir Gidwani nil 40,000/- 40,000/-

  * resigned with effect from february 14, 2011
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 C. Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievance Committee:

   The Board of directors had constituted ‘shareholders’/investors’ Grievance Committee’ which functions with the 
objective of looking into redressal of shareholders’/investors’ grievances. 

  as on 31st march, 2011, the Committee consists of:-

  Chairman  mr. rivkaran Chadha

  members  mr. Kodi raghavan srinivasan

      mr. naresh malhotra

4. manaGemenT disCussion and analysis reporT:
 management discussion and analysis report forms part of the annual report.

5. General Body meeTinGs: 
 i. General Meeting

  a. annual General meeting:

  location and time, where last three annual General meetings were held is given below:

Financial Year Date    Location Time
2007-2008 december 31, 2008* ramee Guestline hotel, regent hall, 757, s. v. 

road,Khar West, mumbai – 400 052.
11.00.a.m

2008-2009 september 25, 2009 ramee Guestline hotel, regent hall, 757, s. v. 
road, Khar West, mumbai – 400 052.

11.00 a.m

2009-2010 september 30, 2010 prime focus office, main frame iT park, 
Building – h, royal palms, near aarey Colony, 
Goregaon (east), mumbai – 400 065

11.30 a.m

   *necessary approval was received from registrar of Companies, mumbai, for extension of time  for holding this 
annual General meeting.

  b. extraordinary General meeting:

  There were no extra ordinary General meeting held in the financial year 2010-2011.

 ii. Postal Ballot 

  There were no resolutions passed by postal ballot in the financial year 2010-2011.
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 iii. Special Resolutions:

  details of special resolutions passed in the General meetings during the last three financial years are as follows:

Date of General 
Meeting

Number of Special 
Resolutions passed

Details of Special Resolutions

september 30, 2010 8 1.  re-appointment of mr. naresh malhotra as Chairman 

and Whole time director for the period of five years.

2.  re-appointment of mr. namit malhotra as managing 

director for the period of five years

3.  alteration of articles of association by deleting article 

no. 191 to 194 of section B of part ii

4.  increase in authorized share Capital of the Company

5.  issue of 10,00,000 Warrants, convertible into equity 

shares, on preferential basis to promoters

6.  raising of funds by issue via placement to Qualified 

institutional Buyers (QiB) / adr / Gdr / fCCB and / or 

any other Convertible instrument(s) and also preferential 

allotment of shares or warrants or other convertible 

instruments to the extent of usd 50 million

7.  approval of employees stock option plan (esop)

8.  approval of employees stock option plan (esop) to 

employees of subsidiary Companies including step 

down subsidiaries

6. disClosures:
 a.  Related Parties transactions

   There were no transactions of a material nature undertaken by your Company with its promoters, directors or the 
management, their subsidiaries or relatives that may have a potential conflict with the interests of the Company. 
suitable disclosures as required by the accounting standard (as 18) have been made in the annual report. 

 b. Compliances by the Company 

   There are no instances of non - compliance by your Company of penalties, strictures imposed by stock exchange 
or seBi or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets during the last three years. 
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 c. Whistle Blower Policy

   Though there is no formal Whistle Blower policy, the Company takes cognizance of complaints made and 
suggestions given by the employees and others. no employees have been denied access to the audit Committee 
in this regard.

 d. CEO/CFO certification

   in terms of requirements of Clause 49 (v) of the listing agreement, the managing director and the Chief 
financial officer of the Company certifies to the Board in the prescribed format for the year under review and 
the same has been reviewed by the audit Committee and taken on record by the Board. 

 e. Compliance with mandatory and non mandatory requirements

   The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of the listing agreement. 
The Company has complied with the non-mandatory requirements of constitution of the remuneration 
Committee.

7. Code of ConduCT:
  The Company has laid down a Code of Conduct for all its Board members and senior management personnel for 

avoidance of conflicts of interest and ensuring the highest standard of honesty, dedication and professionalism 
in carrying out their functional responsibilities. The Code of Conduct is in consonance with the requirements of 
Clause 49 of listing agreement. The Code of Conduct is posted on the Company’s website. The Code has been 
circulated to all the members of the Board and the senior management and the Compliance of the same have been 
affirmed by them. 

  The annual report of the Company contains a declaration to this effect duly signed by the managing director and 
the same is annexed to this report.

8. means of CommuniCaTion:
 a.  The Board of directors of the Company approves and takes on record the quarterly, half yearly and yearly 

financial results in the format prescribed by Clause 41 of the listing agreement within prescribed time limit 
of the close of the respective period. Quarterly results are submitted to the stock exchanges in terms of the 
requirements of Clause 41 of the listing agreement.

 b.  The quarterly/annual financial results are regularly submitted to stock exchanges in accordance with the listing 
agreement and published in one english daily, and one marathi daily. 

 c.  The Company has its own website and all the vital information relating to the Company is displayed on the said 
website. The address of the website is www.primefocusworld.com

9. General shareholder informaTion:
 a. Annual General Meeting: Date, time and venue –

  on september 30, 2011 at 11.30 a.m. at: prime focus office, main frame iT park,

  Building –h, royal palms, near aarey Colony, Goregaon (east), mumbai- 400 065.
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 b. Financial Calendar: April 1, 2011 to March 31, 2012

 c. Date of Book Closure: September 23, 2011 to September 30, 2011 (both days inclusive)

 d. Listing on Stock Exchanges:

  The Company’s equity shares are listed on the following exchanges:

  i. Bombay stock exchange limited (Bse)

   phiroze Jeejobhoy Towers

   dalal street, fort, mumbai – 400 001.

   Tel: + 91-22-22721233/34

   fax: +91 – 22- 22723719/2272 3027

  ii. national stock exchange of india limited (nse)

   exchange plaza,

   Bandra Kurla Complex

   Bandra east, mumbai – 400 051

   Tel: +91-22- 26598100-8114

   fax: +91-22- 26598237/38

   The Company’s Zero Coupon foreign Currency Convertible Bonds are listed on the following exchange:

   singapore exchange securities Trading limited (sGX-sT),

   2, shenton Way, # 19-00, sGX Centre i, singapore 068804.

   isin Code Xs0335455175

   The annual listing fees have been paid to all exchanges as applicable.

 e. Stock Code: 

  Bombay stock exchange limited   : 532748

  national stock exchange of india limited (nse) : pfoCus

  isin       : ine367G01038
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 f.  Market Price Data: The price of the Company’s share-high, low during each month in the last financial year 
on the stock exchanges were as under: 

Month Bombay Stock Exchange Limited National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.

High Price 
(`)

Low Price 
(`)

Volume (No. 
of Shares) 

High Price 
(`)

Low Price 
(`)

Volume (No. 
of Shares) 

april, 10 36.55 24.00 3801254 36.50 24.05 8191951

may, 10 33.30 25.72 152155 33.50 25.60 164414

June, 10 31.40 25.72 190646 31.39 25.70 269674

July,10 37.86 30.06 758631 37.96 29.80 989969

august,10 60.69 38.50 3701230 60.70 38.31 5179465

september,10 69.40 57.00 1943165 69.40 57.20 2622327

october,10 75.30 65.25 1524304 74.80 65.65 2121603

november, 10 79.85 59.00 7271522 80.00 58.65 11228744

december, 10 68.50 46.30 2934819 68.30 47.10 5064477

January, 11 73.35 49.10 4592751 73.40 48.50 2133094

february,11 56.70 41.00 1035849 57.20 41.00 1957815

march,11 57.00 40.75 4678543 57.20 40.20 4823809

   *Company has made stock split/ subdivision of equity shares from face value of ` 10/- each to ` 1/- each vide 
ordinary resolution passed at 13th annual General meeting held on september 30, 2010. accordingly, share 
price data have been adjusted for period prior to stock split/subdivision.

Bombay Stock Exchange Limited National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.



53

 f. Performance of share price of the Company in comparison with the broad based indices.

  prime focus share price compared with Bse sensex & nse nifty (month-end closing):

Month BSE NSE

Share Price Sensex Share Price NSE Nifty

april, 10 31.27 17558.71 31.13 5278.00

may, 10 26.89 16944.63 26.75 5086.30

June, 10 31.33 17700.90 31.25 5312.50

July,10 37.86 17868.29 37.96 5367.60

august,10 57.17 17971.12 57.38 5402.40

september,10 68.00 20069.12 68.25 6029.95

october,10 66.70 20032.34 66.65 6017.70

november, 10 64.20 19521.25 64.25 5862.70

december, 10 64.50 20509.09 64.55 6134.50

January, 11 52.75 18327.76 53.05 5505.90

february,11 42.10 17823.40 42.65 5333.25

march,11 51.45 19445.22 51.45 5833.75

   * Company has made stock split/ subdivision of equity shares from face value of ` 10/- each to ` 1/- each vide 
ordinary resolution passed at 13th annual General meeting held on september 30, 2010. accordingly, share 
price data have been adjusted for period prior to stock split/subdivision.

Prime Focus Vs BSE Sensex Prime Focus Vs NSE Nifty
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 g.  Status of Unclaimed Dividend: The dividend for the following financial years remaining unclaimed for seven 
years will be transferred by the Company to the investors education and protection fund established by the 
Central Government (iepf) pursuant to section 205 C of the Companies act, 1956 according to the schedule 
given below. shareholders who have not so far encashed their dividend warrant (s) or have not received the same 
are requested to seek issue of duplicate warrant (s) by writing to link intime india private limited, registrar and 
Transfer agents confirming non- encashment/non receipt of dividend warrant (s). once the unclaimed dividend 
is transferred to iepf, no claim shall lie in respect thereof.

Financial 
Year

Date of AGM/ Board 
Meeting

Due for transfer to 
IEPF

Amount of Unclaimed Dividend 
as on March 31, 2011(`)

2007-2008 July 30, 2007 august, 2014 14,731.50

 h. Registrar and Share Transfer Agent:

  link intime india private limited
  C-13 pannalal silk mills Compound,
  l.B.s. marg, Bhandup, 
  mumbai - 400 078.
  phone no: 25963838 
  fax no.:  25946969

 i. Demat Connectivity Agent: 

  The company has connectivity with the nsdl and Cdsl through m/s link intime india private limited

  dematerialization of shares and liquidity:

   The Company’s shares are activated with both depositories namely national securities depository limited 
(nsdl) and Central depository services limited (Cdsl).

   The total number of shares dematerialized as on march 31, 2011 are 13,88,65,726 shares representing 99.99 % 
of paid-up share Capital.

 j. Secretarial Audit:

   a practicing Company secretary carries out secretarial audit to reconcile the total admitted capital with the national 
securities depository limited (nsdl) and Central depository services limited (Cdsl) and total issued and listed 
capital. The secretarial audit report confirms that the total issued/paid up capital is in agreement with the total 
number of shares in physical form and the total number of dematerialized shares held with nsdl and Cdsl.

 k.  Outstanding GDR’S/ADR’S OR Warrants or any Convertible Instrument, conversion dates and likely 
impact on equity:

   The Company has allotted 10,00,000 warrants convertible into equity shares on october 15, 2010 to mr. namit 
malhotra, a member of the promoters and promoter Group carrying an option/ entitlement to subscribe to 
equivalent number of equity shares on a future date not exceeding 18 months from the date of allotment of 
such warrants. each warrant shall be convertible into one equity share of nominal value of rs. 10/- each at 
a price not less than the minimum price determined in accordance with the provision of Chapter vii of seBi 
(iCdr) regulations

    on december 12, 2007, the Company issued 550 fCCB of a face value of usd 1,00,000 each aggregating to usd 
55.00 million and as at march 31, 2011; no bonds have been converted into equity shares of the Company.
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 l.  Registered Office  and address for Correspondence: 

  navin agarwal, 
  Company secretary
  prime focus limited
  registered office:
  2nd floor, Building – h, main frame iT park,
  royal palms, aarey Colony, Goregaon (east),
  mumbai – 400 065, india.
  phone: +91-22-4209 5000
  fax: +91-22-4209 5001

 m. Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2011: 

   The broad shareholding distribution of the Company as on march 31, 2011 with respect to categories of investors 
was as follows:

Sr. No. Category No. of Equity Shares Percentage %
1. promoter & promoter Group 6,90,62,720 49.73
2. mutual funds / uTi 23,53,151 1.69
3. fii’s 1,95,23,284 14.09
4. Bodies Corporate 2,06,20,732 14.84
5. public 2,42,66,560 17.47
6. Clearing member 19,46,733 1.40
7. non resident indians (including repatriable) 10,33,266 0.74
8. Trusts 11,000 0.01
9.  non-nationalized Banks 50,000 0.03

Total 13,88,67,446 100.00

Promoter & 
Promoter Group

49.73%

Mutual Funds / UTI
1.69%

FII’s
14.08%

Bodies Corporate
14.84%

Public
17.47%

Clearing Member
1.40%

Non Resident Indians
(including Repatriable)

0.74% Trusts
0.01%

Non-Nationalized
Banks
0.03%
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    The broad shareholding distribution of the Company as on March 31, 2011 with respect to 
holdings was as follows:

Range No. of Shareholders Percentage %  No. of Shares Percentage %  

1 - 500

501 - 1000 

1001 - 2000

2001 - 3000

3001 - 4000

4001 - 5000

5001 - 10000

10001 and above

7,326

1,404

669

265

132

164

269

334

69.36

13.29

6.33

2.51

1.25

1.55

2.55

3.16

13,65,799

11,64,897

10,42,826

6,82,342

4,79,225

7,85,010

20,48,756

13,12,98,591

0.98

0.84

0.75

0.49

0.35

0.57

1.47

94.55

ToTal : 10,563 100.00 13,88,67,446 100.00

  Annual Declaration by the Managing Director pursuant to the Listing Agreement

   as the managing director of prime focus limited and as required by Clause 49(i) (d) (ii) of the listing agreement 
with the stock exchanges, i hereby declare that all the Board members and senior management personnel of 
the Company have affirmed compliance with the Company’s Code of Conduct for the financial year ended march 
31, 2011.

Namit Malhotra

Managing Director

Date: June 20, 2011
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To,

The members

Prime Focus Limited

2nd floor, Building – h, main frame iT park,

royal palms, aarey Colony, Goregaon (east),

mumbai – 400 065, india.

We have examined all relevant records of Prime Focus Limited (the Company) for the purpose of certifying compliance 
of the conditions of Corporate Governance under Clause 49 of the listing agreement with Bombay stock exchange 
limited and national stock exchange of india limited for the financial year ended 31st March 2011. We have obtained 
all the information and explanations to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of this 
certification. 

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. our examination was 
limited to the procedure and implementation thereof. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of 
the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

on the basis of our examinations of the records produced, explanations and information furnished, we certify that the 
Company has complied with:

 (a) all the mandatory conditions of the said Clause 49 of the listing agreement.

 (b)  the non-mandatory requirement of the said Clause 49 of the listing agreement with regard to constitution of 
the remuneration Committee.

For S. N. ANANTHASUBRAMANIAN & CO.

S. N. Ananthasubramanian
C. P. No.: 1774

Date: June 20, 2011

Place: Thane

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE 
CERTIFICATE
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Auditors’ report

To,

The Members of Prime Focus Limited

1.  We have audited the attached balance sheet of Prime Focus Limited (‘the Company’) as at March 31, 2011 and also 
the related profit and loss account and the cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2011 annexed thereto. 
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

2.  We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We 
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003, as amended by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 
(Amendment) order, 2004, issued by the Central Government of India in terms of Sub-Section (4A) of section 227 
of ‘ The Companies Act, 1956’ of India (‘the Act’) and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the 
Company as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we enclose 
in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

4.  As more fully described in Note 19 to Schedule 16 to the financial statements, the Company has not revalued the 
FCCB of $ 55 million at the exchange rate prevailing as at March 31, 2011, March 31, 2010, March 31, 2009 and 
March 31, 2008, which in our opinion is not in accordance with Accounting Standard 11 “The Effects of Changes 
in Foreign Exchange Rates” and has also not provided for the premium payable on redemption of these FCCB. 
Had the Company revalued the FCCB’s as at March 31, 2011, the profit for the year ended March 31, 2011 and 
the reserves as at that date would have been lower by ` 13.48 million and ` 278.54 million respectively and 
Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference account would have been ` 13.48 million. Further, had the 
Company provided for the premium on redemption, the securities premium as at March 31, 2011 would have been 
lower by ` 598.16 million. Consequent to the above, the FCCB balance at March 31, 2011 would have been higher 
by ` 890.18 million. This had caused the previous auditors to qualify their audit opinion on the financial statements 
relating to preceding year.

5. Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to above, we report that:

 i.  We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit;

 ii.  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears 
from our examination of those books; 
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 iii.  The balance sheet, profit and loss account and cash flow statement dealt with by this report are in agreement 
with the books of account; 

 iv.  Subject to our comment in paragraph 4 above, in our opinion, the balance sheet, profit and loss account and 
cash flow statement dealt with by this report comply with the accounting standards referred to in sub-section 
(3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956;

 v.  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors, as on March 31, 2011, and taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, we report that none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2011 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of section 274 of the Companies Act, 
1956;

 vi.  In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and subject to 
our comments in paragraph 4 above, the said accounts give the information required by the Companies Act, 
1956, in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India;

  a. in the case of the balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2011;

  b. in the case of the profit and loss account, of the profit for the year ended  March 31, 2011; and

  c. in the case of cash flow statement, of the cash flows for year ended March 31, 2011.

For MZS & Associates 

Chartered Accountants   

Firm Registration No: 106400w

Abuali Darukhanawala

Partner (M. No. 108053)

Place: Mumbai

Date : June 20, 2011
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ANNexuRe ReFeRReD TO IN PARAGRAPh [3] OF OuR RePORT OF eveN DATe
Re: Prime Focus Limited

i. (a)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation 
of fixed assets.

 (b)  We have been informed that all the fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during 
the year. however, there is a regular programme of verification. For the assets physically verified by the 
management during the year, the Company is in process of reconciling the assets physically verified with the 
books of account.

 (c) There was no substantial disposal of fixed assets during the year.

ii.  The Company does not have any inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(ii) (b) and (c) of the Companies 
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (as amended) (“CARO’) are not applicable to the Company.

iii.  As informed, the Company has neither granted nor taken any loans, secured or unsecured to/from companies, 
firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 (‘the Act’). 
Accordingly, clauses 4(iii) (b), (c), (d), (f) and (g) of CARO are not applicable to the Company.

iv.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have been explained that major 
purchase of fixed assets is of specialized equipments, for which comparative quotes cannot be obtained in all the 
case, considering the above, we believe that there is an adequate internal control system commensurate with the 
size of the Company and the nature of its business, for the purchase of fixed assets. During the course of our audit, 
no significant weakness has been noticed in the internal control system in respect of these areas. However, the 
internal control system for the sale of film related services is inadequate since the Company does not have formal 
documentation with customers in few cases, which is an industry issue per management. In our opinion this is a 
continuing failure to correct major weakness in the internal control system.

v. (a)  According to the information and explanations provided by the management, we are of the opinion that the 
particulars of contracts or arrangements referred to in section 301 of the Act that needs to be entered into the 
register maintained under section 301 have been so entered.

 (b)  In respect of transactions made in pursuance of such contracts or arrangements exceeding value of Rupees five 
lakhs entered into during the financial year, because of the unique and specialized nature of the items involved 
and absence of any comparable prices, we are unable to comment whether the transactions were made at 
prevailing market prices at the relevant time.

vi. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

vii.  The Company has an internal audit system, the scope and coverage of which, in our opinion requires to be enlarged 
to be commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

viii.  To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost 
records under clause (d) of sub-section (1) of section 209 of the Act for the services of the Company.

ix. (a)  undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, investor education and protection fund, or employees’ state 
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, wealth-tax, service tax customs duty, cess have generally been regularly 
deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has  been slight delay in a few cases. The provisions 
relating to excise duty are not applicable to the Company.

   Further, since the Central Government has till date not prescribed the amount of cess payable under section 
441A of the Companies Act, 1956, we are not in a position to comment upon the regularity or otherwise of the 
company in depositing the same.
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 (b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident 
fund, investor education and protection fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, wealth-tax, service tax, 
sales-tax, customs duty, cess and other undisputed statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a 
period of more than six months from the date they became payable. The provisions relating to excise duty are 
not applicable to the Company.

 (c)  According to the books of accounts of the Company, there are no dues outstanding of income-tax, sales-tax, 
wealth-tax, service tax, customs duty and cess on account of any dispute. The provisions relating to excise duty 
are not applicable to the Company.

x.  The Company has no accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and it has also not incurred cash losses in 
the current and immediately preceding financial year.

xi.  As per the information and explanations given to us by the management, we are of the opinion that the Company 
has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institution, bank or debenture holders.

xii.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the documents and records produced to us, 
the Company has not granted loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures 
and other securities,

xiii.  In our opinion, the Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi / mutual benefit fund / society. Therefore, the provisions of 
clause 4(xiii) of the CARO are not applicable to the Company.

xiv.  In our opinion, the Company is not dealing in or trading in shares, securities, debentures and other investments. 
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(xiv) of the CARO are not applicable to the Company.

xv.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken 
by others from bank or financial institutions. 

xvi.  Based on information and explanations given to us by the management, term loans were applied for the purpose for 
which the loans were obtained.

xvii.  According to the information and explanations given to us, and on an broad examination of the balance sheet of the 
Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term investment.

xviii.  The Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties or companies covered in the register 
maintained under section 301 of the Act.

xix.  The Company has unsecured debentures outstanding during the year on which no security or charge is required to be created,

xx.  The Company has not raised money by public issues during the year, except for issue of shares through Qualified 
Institutional Placement to Qualified Institutional Buyers.

xxi.  Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial 
statements and as per the information and explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud on or 
by the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

For MZS & Associates
Chartered Accountants   
Firm Registration No: 106400w

Abuali Darukhanawala
Partner (M. No. 108053)

Place:  Mumbai
Date : June 20, 2011



62

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2011

(Amount in `)
Particulars Sch No 31.03.2011 31.03.2010

SOURCES OF FUNDS  
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS 
Share Capital 1 138,867,446 128,225,880 
Share Warrant 138,695,000  - 
Reserves and Surplus 2 2,885,598,392 1,990,951,456 

3,163,160,838 2,119,177,336 
LOAN FUNDS 
Secured Loans 3 1,196,666,690 1,518,716,022 
Unsecured Loans 4 2,162,696,800 2,162,696,800 

3,359,363,490 3,681,412,822 
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (NET) 5 187,302,752 164,522,724 

6,709,827,080 5,965,112,882 
APPLICATION OF FUNDS 
FIXED ASSETS 6 
Gross Block 3,241,155,538 2,183,590,961 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation / Amortisation 1,014,742,332 776,505,056 
Net Block 2,226,413,206 1,407,085,905 
Add : Capital Work in Progress (including Capital Advances) 52,365,953 600,694,204 

2,278,779,159 2,007,780,109 
INVESTMENTS 7 2,302,296,996 2,302,272,496 
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES 
Sundry Debtors  8 1,073,178,596 677,701,400 
Cash and Bank Balances 9 110,206,389 151,804,967 
Other Current Assets (Unbilled Revenue) 56,315,230 62,187,006 
Loans and Advances 10 1,122,347,170 888,985,987 

2,362,047,385 1,780,679,360 
Less : CURRENT LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS 
Current Liabilities 11 230,593,402 124,119,677 
Provisions 12 2,703,058 1,499,406 

233,296,460 125,619,083 
NET CURRENT ASSETS 2,128,750,925 1,655,060,277 

6,709,827,080 5,965,112,882 
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 16  

The schedules referred to above and notes to accounts form an integral part of the Balance Sheet.
As per our report of even date   For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For MZS & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 106400w 

Abuali Darukhanawala Naresh Malhotra Namit Malhotra Navin Agarwal
(Partner) (Chairman and Whole-

time Director)
(Managing Director) (Company Secretary)

Membership No.108053

Place : Mumbai 
Date  : June 20, 2011 
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(Amount in `)
Particulars Sch No 31.03.2011 31.03.2010

SOURCES OF FUNDS  
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS 
Share Capital 1 138,867,446 128,225,880 
Share Warrant 138,695,000  - 
Reserves and Surplus 2 2,885,598,392 1,990,951,456 

3,163,160,838 2,119,177,336 
LOAN FUNDS 
Secured Loans 3 1,196,666,690 1,518,716,022 
Unsecured Loans 4 2,162,696,800 2,162,696,800 

3,359,363,490 3,681,412,822 
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (NET) 5 187,302,752 164,522,724 

6,709,827,080 5,965,112,882 
APPLICATION OF FUNDS 
FIXED ASSETS 6 
Gross Block 3,241,155,538 2,183,590,961 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation / Amortisation 1,014,742,332 776,505,056 
Net Block 2,226,413,206 1,407,085,905 
Add : Capital Work in Progress (including Capital Advances) 52,365,953 600,694,204 

2,278,779,159 2,007,780,109 
INVESTMENTS 7 2,302,296,996 2,302,272,496 
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES 
Sundry Debtors  8 1,073,178,596 677,701,400 
Cash and Bank Balances 9 110,206,389 151,804,967 
Other Current Assets (Unbilled Revenue) 56,315,230 62,187,006 
Loans and Advances 10 1,122,347,170 888,985,987 

2,362,047,385 1,780,679,360 
Less : CURRENT LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS 
Current Liabilities 11 230,593,402 124,119,677 
Provisions 12 2,703,058 1,499,406 

233,296,460 125,619,083 
NET CURRENT ASSETS 2,128,750,925 1,655,060,277 

6,709,827,080 5,965,112,882 
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 16  

The schedules referred to above and notes to accounts form an integral part of the Balance Sheet.
As per our report of even date   For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For MZS & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 106400w 

Abuali Darukhanawala Naresh Malhotra Namit Malhotra Navin Agarwal
(Partner) (Chairman and Whole-

time Director)
(Managing Director) (Company Secretary)

Membership No.108053

Place : Mumbai 
Date  : June 20, 2011 

PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2011

(Amount in `)
Particulars Sch No 31.03.2011 31.03.2010
INCOME 
Income from Operations 1,355,058,259 952,725,593 
Other Income 13  48,162,737 50,428,044 

1,403,220,996 1,003,153,637 
EXPENDITURE 
Operating Costs 14 804,781,319 494,901,551 
Interest 15 138,614,865 123,560,270 
Depreciation 6 239,509,622 193,496,726 

1,182,905,806 811,958,547 
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 220,315,190 191,195,090 
PROVISION FOR TAX 
Current Tax 50,402,617 61,325,086 
Less : MAT Credit Entitlement (50,402,617)  - 

 - 61,325,086 
Deferred Tax 22,780,031 2,603,856 
TOTAL TAX EXPENSE 22,780,031 63,928,942 
PROFIT AFTER TAX 197,535,159 127,266,148 
Balance brought forward from previous year 1,012,692,279 885,426,131 
SURPLUS CARRIED TO BALANCE SHEET  1,210,227,438 1,012,692,279 

EARNINGS PER SHARE 
Basic - Nominal Value of Shares ` 1/-  1.49 0.99 
Diluted - Nominal Value of Shares ` 1/-  1.26 0.89 
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS  16 

The schedules referred to above and notes to accounts form an integral part of the Profit and Loss Account.
As per our report of even date   For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For MZS & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 106400w 

Abuali Darukhanawala Naresh Malhotra Namit Malhotra Navin Agarwal
(Partner) (Chairman and Whole-

time Director)
(Managing Director) (Company Secretary)

Membership No.108053

Place : Mumbai 
Date  : June 20, 2011 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2011

(Amount in `)
 Particulars 31.03.2011 31.03.2010

A. Cash flow from Operating activities
Net Profit before taxation  220,315,190  191,195,090 
Adjustments for :
Depreciation  239,509,622  193,496,726 
(Profit)/ Loss on sale of Fixed Assets  (1,559,543)  13,000 
(Profit)/ Loss on sale of Investments  -  (2,025,000)
Foreign exchange (Gain)/Loss (net)  25,595,790  21,293,707 
Interest Income  (36,215,199)  (30,675,625)
Dividend Income  (23,306)  (26,381)
Interest Expense  138,614,865  123,560,271 
Bad Debts Written Off  271,750  1,705,718 
Provision for Doubful Debts  32,600,000  31,000,000 
Undertaking Fees  -  (11,310,427)
Sundry Credit Balances Written Back  -  (1,934, 892)
Provision for Gratuity  1,203,652  274,554 
Operating profit before working capital changes  620,312,821  516,566,741 
Movements in working capital :
Decrease / (Increase) in Sundry Debtors  (432,219,432)  (328,993,840)
Decrease / (Increase) in Loans and Advances  (83,856,192)  (30,616,456)
Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilities  116,828,506  45,463,736 
Cash generated from operations  221,065,703  202,420,180 
Direct Taxes Paid (net of refunds)  27,557,967  (53,386,673)
Fringe Benefit Tax Paid  -  (191,675)
Exchange Rate Difference  24,958,123  13,577,538 
Net Cash from Operating activities  273,581,793  162,419,370 

B. Cash flow from Investing activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets  (506,802,777)  (170,092,301)
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets  4,106,670  5,000 
Purchase of Current Investments  -  (3,500)
Purchase of Investment in Subsidiaries  (24,500)  - 
Share Application in Subsidiary  326,981,383  (127,527,166)
Loans given to Subsidiary  (488,383,775)  - 
Sale of Current Investments  -  7,025,000 
Inter- Corporate Deposits given  (64,500,000)  (1,000,000)
Inter- Corporate Deposits received back  16,552,116  1,000,000 
Margin Money and Fixed Deposits under lien  14,716,777  114,226,241 
Interest Received  21,412,404  19,462,878 
Dividends Received  23,306  26,381 
Net Cash from Investing activities  (675,918,396)  (156,877,467)
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2011

(Amount in `)
 Particulars 31.03.2011 31.03.2010

C. Cash flow from Financing activities
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings  292,978,765  367,890,206 
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings  (539,481,175)  (342,277,093)
Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings  350,000,000  250,000,000 
Repayment of Short Term Borrowings  (426,963,699)  (312,921,569)
Proceeds from issuance of Share Warrants  138,695,000  - 
Proceeds from issuance of QIP  729,798,596  - 
Expenses on issuance of QIP  (22,045,253)  - 
Interest Paid  (147,675,144)  (170,440,986)
Dividends Paid (103)  (48)
Net Cash from Financing activities  375,306,987  (207,749,490)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  (27,029,616)  (202,207,587)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the year  36,203,948  238,292,902 
Unrealised Gain/(Loss) on Foreign Currency Cash and Cash equivalents  19,100  118,633 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the year  9,193,432  36,203,948 
Components of Cash and Cash equivalents, as at March 31, 2011
Cash  427,031  268,238 
With Banks:
 On Current Accounts  6,946,401  33,215,710 
 On Fixed Deposits  1,820,000  2,720,000 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the year  9,193,432  36,203,948 
Bank deposits having maturity of more than 90  days  99,857,575  114,574,353 
Interest Accrued on bank deposits  1,155,382  1,026,666 
Cash and Bank Balance (Refer Schedule 9)  110,206,389  151,804,967 

As per our report of even date   For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For MZS & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 106400w 

Abuali Darukhanawala Naresh Malhotra Namit Malhotra Navin Agarwal
(Partner) (Chairman and Whole-

time Director)
(Managing Director) (Company Secretary)

Membership No.108053

Place : Mumbai 
Date  : June 20, 2011 
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2011 

(Amount in `)
Particulars 31.03.2011 31.03.2010 

Schedule 1 
SHARE CAPITAL 
Authorised : 
200,000,000 Shares of ` 1/- each 
(Previous year 15,000,000 Shares of ` 10/- each)  200,000,000  150,000,000 
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up: 
138,867,446 Shares of ` 1/- each (Previous year 12,822,588 Shares of  
` 10/- each) (Refer Note 8 & 9 to Schedule 16) 

 138,867,446  128,225,880 

Of the above : 
i.  36,000,000 Equity Shares of ` 1/- each (Previous year 3,600,000 

Equity Shares of ` 10/- each) each were allotted as fully  paid up 
pursuant to scheme of arrangement for consideration other than cash. 

ii.  40,000,000 Equity Shares of ` 1/- each (Previous year 4,000,000 
Equity Shares of ` 10/- each) were allotted as fully paid up bonus 
shares by capitalisation of Reserves. 

 138,867,446  128,225,880 
Schedule 2 
RESERVES AND SURPLUS 
Securities Premium at the beginning of the year  964,859,177  964,859,177 
Add : Addition on account of QIP  719,157,030  - 
Less : Issue Expenses Pertaining to QIP   22,045,253  - 
Securities Premium at the end of the year  1,661,970,954  964,859,177 
General Reserve at the beginning of the year  13,400,000  13,400,000 
General Reserve at the end of the year  13,400,000  13,400,000 
Profit and Loss Account  1,210,227,438  1,012,692,279 

 2,885,598,392  1,990,951,456 
Schedule 3 
SECURED LOANS 
Loans from Banks (Refer Note 3 to Schedule 16) 
Term Loans  508,702,418  620,905,292 
(Amount repayable within one year ` 260,254,521/- 
(Previous year ` 214,085,190/-)) 

Buyers Credit  313,676,577  443,311,546 
(Amount repayable within one year ` 130,352,069/- 
(Previous year ` 264,737,680/-)) 

Cash Credit/Over Draft  115,868,506  191,263,774 
Short Term Demand Loan   250,000,000  250,000,000 
Loans from Others  
Vehicle Finance  8,419,189  13,235,410 
(Amount repayable within one year ` 4,545,620/- (Previous year ` 4,733,070/-)) 

 1,196,666,690  1,518,716,022 

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2011 
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2011 

(Amount in `)
Particulars 31.03.2011 31.03.2010 

Schedule 4 
UNSECURED LOANS 
Zero Coupon Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds 
(Refer Note 19 to Schedule 16) 

2,162,696,800 2,162,696,800 

550 (Previous year 550) Bonds @ USD 100,000 each 
aggregating to USD 55,000,000 (Previous year USD 55,000,000) 

 2,162,696,800  2,162,696,800 

Schedule 5 

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY 

Difference in depreciation and other differences in block of assets 

as per tax books and financial books 242,610,953 177,001,361 

Gross Deferred Tax Liability 242,610,953 177,001,361 

DEFERRED TAX ASSET 

Provision for Doubtful Debts  54,765,092 10,536,900 

Differences due to accelerated amortisation of intangibles under Income 
Tax Act 

 103,061  140,611 

Share Issue Expenses   440,048  1,801,126 

Gross Deferred Tax Asset 55,308,201 12,478,637 

Net Deferred Tax Liability 187,302,752 164,522,724 
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2011 

Schedule 6 

FIXED ASSETS 

(Amount in `)
Description of asset  Gross Block  Depreciation Net Block  

 As on  
01.04.2010 Additions Deductions 

 As on  
31.03.2011 

 As on  
01.04.2010 Deductions For the Year 

 As on  
31.03.2011 

 As on  
31.03.2011 

 As on  
31.03.2010 

(A) TANGIBLE ASSETS 

Building  68,228,276 433,410,762 1,635,000 500,004,038 5,593,927 312,657  6,991,575  12,272,845 487,731,193  62,634,349 

Plant & Machinery 1,895,415,458 412,939,940 151,722 2,308,203,676 713,455,269  - 191,575,023 905,030,292 1,403,173,384 1,181,960,189 

Furniture & Fixtures 88,124,012 97,281,868 527,737 184,878,143 26,992,627 129,512 17,534,062 44,397,177 140,480,966 61,131,385 

Office Equipments 22,678,559 40,533,284  - 63,211,843 9,046,686  - 7,599,126 16,645,812 46,566,031 13,631,873 

Vehicles 36,728,921 1,502,828 1,630,803 36,600,946 8,818,764 804,398 3,616,536 11,630,902 24,970,044 27,910,157 

Total (A) 2,111,175,226 985,668,682 3,945,262 3,092,898,646 763,907,273 1,246,567 227,316,322 989,977,028 2,102,921,618 1,347,267,953 

(B) INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Goodwill 5,320,000  -  - 5,320,000 5,320,000  -  - 5,320,000  -  - 

Rights 30,000,000  -  - 30,000,000  -  -  -  - 30,000,000 30,000,000 

Software 37,095,735 75,841,157  - 112,936,892 7,277,783  - 12,167,521 19,445,304 93,491,588 29,817,952 

Total (B) 72,415,735 75,841,157  - 148,256,892 12,597,783  - 12,167,521 24,765,304 123,491,588 59,817,952 

Total (A + B) 2,183,590,961 1,061,509,839 3,945,262 3,241,155,538 776,505,056 1,246,567 239,483,843 1,014,742,332 2,226,413,206 1,407,085,905 

Previous year 2,201,901,774 58,582,973 76,893,786 2,183,590,961 583,008,330  - 193,496,726 776,505,056 1,407,085,905 

Capital Work In Progress *  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  52,365,953 600,694,204 

* Note:- Borrowing Cost included in Capital Work In Progress - ` Nil (Previous year ` 93,764,502/-) 

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2011 
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2011 

(Amount in `)
Particulars 31.03.2011 31.03.2010 

Schedule 7 

INVESTMENTS 

Long Term Investments (At Cost) 

Trade 

In Subsidiary Companies 

Quoted, fully paid up 

Prime Focus London Plc, UK  610,703,583 610,703,583 

19,567,003 (Previous year: 19,567,003) equity shares of 5 pence each 

Market Value ` 238,552,428/- (Previous year: ` 150,345,934/-)

Unquoted, fully paid up 

Prime Focus Technologies Pvt. Ltd. 75,500 51,000 

7,550 (Previous year: 5,100) equity shares of ` 10/- each  

Flow Post Solutions Pvt. Ltd. 51,000 51,000 

5,100 (Previous year: 5,100) equity shares of ` 10/- each  

Prime Focus International Ltd. 1,690,349,846 1,690,349,846 

21,748,973 (Previous year: 21,748,973) equity share of 1/- pound each 

Prime Focus Motion Pictures Ltd.  500,000  500,000 

50,000 (Previous year: 50,000) equity shares of ` 10/- each 

GVS Software Pvt. Ltd.  100,000  100,000 

10,000 (Previous year: 10,000) equity shares of ` 10/- each 

Other than trade  

Unquoted - fully paid up 

The Shamrao Vithal Co-operative Bank Ltd.  100,000  100,000 

4,000 (Previous year : 4,000) shares of ` 25/- each 

Mainframe Premises Co-Operatie Society Ltd.  3,500  3,500 

350 (Previous year : 350) shares of ` 10/- each 

Current Investments 

Other than Trade Quoted 

Cinemax India Ltd.  413,567  413,567 

9,172 (Previous year : 9,172) equity shares of ` 10/- each 

Market Value ` 3,87,517/- (Previous year ` 584,129/-) 

2,302,296,996 2,302,272,496 

Aggregate amount of quoted Investments  611,117,150  611,117,150 

Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments 1,691,179,846 1,691,155,346 

Investments purchased and sold during the year: (Refer Note 21(b) to Schedule 16) 
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2011 

(Amount in `)
Particulars 31.03.2011 31.03.2010 

Schedule 8 

SUNDRY DEBTORS 

Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months 

Unsecured, considered good  500,607,339  188,871,555 

Unsecured, considered doubtful (Net of Service Tax)  63,600,000  31,000,000 

Other debts 

Unsecured, considered good  658,339,640  568,611,792 

 1,222,546,979  788,483,347 

Less: Service Tax  85,768,383  79,781,947 

 1,136,778,596  708,701,400 

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts (Net of Service Tax)  63,600,000  31,000,000 

 1,073,178,596  677,701,400 

Included in Sundry Debtors are : 

i.  Amount receivable from subsidiaries ` 494,259,645/- (Previous year: ` 131,811,672/-) 

Schedule 9 

CASH AND BANK BALANCES 

Cash on hand 427,031 268,238 

Balances with Scheduled banks 

In Current Accounts 6,946,401 33,215,710 

In Fixed Deposit Accounts (Refer Note below) 102,832,957 118,321,019 

110,206,389 151,804,967 

Note : 

i.  As margin for Letter of Credit / Buyers Credit - ` 13,904,144/- 
(Previous year ` 42,831,484/-) 

ii.  Lien on Fixed Deposit against Bank Guarantee availed - 
` 35,953,432/- (Previous year - ` 33,369,679/-) 

iii.  As margin for Term Loan - ` 50,000,000/- 
(Previous year - ` 37,500,000)/- 

iii.  Accrued interest on Fixed Deposits - ` 1,155,381 
(Previous year - ` 1,026,667) 

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2011 
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2011 SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2011 

(Amount in `)
Particulars 31.03.2011 31.03.2010 

Schedule 10 

LOANS AND ADVANCES 

Unsecured - Considered Good 

Advances recoverable in Cash or in Kind or for value to be received 131,905,383 158,236,580 

Deposits 133,512,913 54,848,443 

Inter Company Deposits 156,081,944 94,934,931 

Share Application (Pending Allotment) (Refer Note 6 to Schedule 16) - 361,571,656 

Loans to subsidiary (Refer Note 6 to Schedule 16) 492,046,944 - 

Advances to subsidiaries (Refer Note 6 to Schedule 16) 86,538,699 69,575,123 

MAT Credit Entitlement 50,402,617 - 

Advance Payment of Taxes  71,858,670 149,819,254 

(Net of Provision for Tax - ` 121,650,956/- (Previous year ` 90,011,398/-)) 

1,122,347,170 888,985,987 

Schedule 11 

CURRENT LIABILITIES  

Sundry creditors 

Total Outstanding dues to Micro and Small Enterprises  
(Refer Note 4 to Schedule 16) 

- - 

Dues of creditors other than Micro and Small Enterprises 164,851,806 94,339,231 

Owed to Group Company 28,369,431 - 

Other Liabilities 7,746,415 3,817,277 

Bank Book Overdraft 693,679 2,894,405 

Interest Accrued but not due 6,064,822 8,746,293 

Advances from Customers 22,852,517 14,307,636 

Unclaimed Dividend * 14,732 14,835 

230,593,402 124,119,677 

* Note: Appropriate amount shall be transferred to “Investor Education and Protection Fund” if and when due. 

Schedule 12 

PROVISIONS 

Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note15(a) to Schedule 16) 2,703,058 1,499,406 

2,703,058 1,499,406 
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 
 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2011 
(Amount in `)

Particulars 31.03.2011 31.03.2010 

Schedule 13 

OTHER INCOME 

Dividend 

 Long Term Investments - Non Trade 23,306 26,381 

Interest Income 

  Bank Deposits (TDS - ` 1,344,185/- (Previous year - ` 2,030,697/-)) 13,954,061 12,516,440 

 Others (TDS - ` 1,251,582/- (Previous year - ` Nil)) 22,261,138 18,159,185 

Profit on Sale of Investment - 2,025,000 

Profit on Sale of Asset 1,559,543 -

Undertaking Fee - 11,310,427 

Excess Provision Write Back - 1,934,892 

Insurance Claim Received 2,172,666 - 

Miscellaneous Income (Refer Note 20 to Schedule 16) 8,192,023 4,455,719 

48,162,737 50,428,044 

Schedule 14 

OPERATING AND OTHER EXPENSES 

Personnel Expenses 

 Salaries, Staff Remuneration and Bonus 117,910,325 80,508,985 

  Contribution to Provident and Other Fund (Refer Note 15(b) to 
Schedule 16) 

4,188,996 2,039,638 

 Gratuity (Refer Note 15(a) to Schedule 16) 1,203,652 274,554 

 Staff Welfare 3,886,512 1,929,000 

Technician Fees 304,532,491 175,527,374 

Technical Services Payments 34,711,103 6,461,751 

Communication Cost 11,568,548 7,846,371 

Consumables Stores 16,721,501 19,322,661 

Director’s Sitting Fees 262,000 180,000 

Electricity Charges 45,918,120 23,805,592 

Insurance Cost 8,771,686 6,725,964 

Legal and Professional Fees 13,519,869 7,267,803 

Loss on sale of Assets (net) - 13,000 

Rates and Taxes 2,261,673 1,145,933 

Rebates and Discount 25,813,992 24,668,323 

Rent 33,796,375 31,380,774 
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(Amount in `)
Particulars 31.03.2011 31.03.2010 

Traveling and Conveyance  32,545,505 11,830,663 

Miscellaneous Expenses 46,348,111 19,235,040 

Repairs & Maintenance 

 Repairs and Maintenance-Equipment 24,397,121 13,481,149 

 Repairs and Maintenance-Studio/Office Premises 15,469,597 4,513,426 

Bad Debts Written Off 271,750 1,705,718 

Provision for Doubtful Debts 32,600,000 31,000,000 

Exchange Loss (net)  25,595,790 21,293,707 

Auditor’s Remuneration 

 As Auditor 

 Audit Fees 2,400,000 2,000,000 

 In Other Matters 86,602 744,125 

804,781,319 494,901,551 

Schedule 15 

FINANCIAL EXPENSES 

Interest on Working Capital Finance 52,812,584 55,695,953 

Interest on Term Loan 67,561,198 18,722,226 

Interest on Buyer’s Credit 15,057,566 36,373,261 

Interest on Others 1,160,535 1,845,036 

Bank Charges 2,022,982 10,923,794 

138,614,865 123,560,270 

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2011 
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Schedule 16

1. Nature of operatioNs:
  prime focus Limited is engaged in the business of post production and Visual effects services for films and 

television content.

2. statemeNt of sigNificaNt accouNtiNg poLicies:
 a. Basis of Preparation

   the financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects in respects with the Notified 
accounting standards by companies accounting standards rules, 2006 (as amended) and the relevant provisions 
of the companies act, 1956. the financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention 
on an accrual basis. the accounting policies have been consistently applied by the company, are consistent with 
those used in the previous year.

 b. Use of Estimates

   the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the 
reporting period.  although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events 
and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates. 

 c. Fixed Assets

   fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. cost comprises the purchase price and any 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Borrowing costs relating 
to acquisition of fixed assets which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are also 
included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use.

 d. Depreciation

   Depreciation is provided using the straight Line method as per the useful lives of the assets estimated by the 
management, or at the rates prescribed under schedule XiV of the companies act, 1956 whichever is higher.

Asset Group Rates (SLM) Schedule XIV Rates (SLM)

Buildings 1.63% 1.63%
plant & machinery - computer Based assets  16.21% 16.21%
plant & machinery - Non computer Based assets 7.07% - 14.29% 7.07%
furniture & fixtures and electrical fittings 10.00% 6.33%
office equipments 16.21% 13.91%
Vehicles 9.50% 9.50%

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 
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 e. Intangible Assets

  Film Rights

   the company amortizes film costs using the individual-film-forecast method. under the individual-film-
forecast method, such costs are amortized for each film in the ratio that current period revenue for such 
films bears to management’s estimate of remaining unrecognized ultimate revenue as at the beginning of the 
current fiscal year. management regularly reviews and revises, where necessary, its total estimates on a film-
by-film basis, which may result in a change in the rate of amortization and/or a write down of the intangible 
asset to fair value. 

  Software

  software is amortized on straight line basis over its estimate of useful life which is estimated to be six years.

 f. Impairment

   the carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment 
based on internal/external factors.  an impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset 
exceeds its recoverable amount.  the recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value 
in use.  in assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value at the 
weighted average cost of capital.  

 g. Leases

   Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased item 
are classified as operating leases. operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the profit and Loss 
account on a straight line basis over the leased term.

 h. Investments

   investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current 
investments. all other investments are classified as long-term investments. current investments are carried at 
lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual investment basis. Long-term investments are carried 
at cost. However, provision for diminution in value is made to recognize a decline other than temporary in the 
value of the investments.

 i. Revenue Recognition

   revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and 
the revenue can be reliably measured. 

   technical services receipts are recognized on the basis of services rendered and when no significant 
uncertainty exists as to its determination or realisation using proportionate completion method.

   unbilled revenue represents revenue recognized based on proportionate completion not yet invoiced to the customers.

  revenue from tV program production services are recognized on delivery of the episodes.

   interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the 
rate applicable.

   Dividends are recognized when the shareholders’ right to receive payment is established by the Balance sheet date. 
Dividend from subsidiaries is recognized even if same are declared after the balance sheet date but pertains to 
period on or before the date of Balance sheet as per the requirement of schedule Vi of the companies act, 1956.

  undertaking fees is recognized on accrual basis over the tenure of the undertaking given.
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 j. Foreign Currency Transactions

  Initial Recognition

   foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount 
the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

  Conversion

   foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in 
terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the 
transaction; and non-monetary items which are carried at the fair value or other similar valuation denominated 
in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined. 

  Exchange Differences

   exchange differences, in respect of accounting periods commencing on or after December 7, 2006, arising on 
reporting of long-term foreign currency monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially 
recorded during the period, or reported in previous financial statements, in so far as they relate to the acquisition 
of a depreciable capital asset, are added to or deducted from the cost of the asset and are depreciated over the 
balance life of the asset, and in other cases, are accumulated in a “foreign currency monetary item translation 
Difference account” in the enterprise’s financial statements and amortized over the balance period of such long-
term asset/liability but not beyond accounting period ending on or before march 31, 2012.

   exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items not covered above, or on reporting such monetary 
items of company at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported 
in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise.

 k. Income Taxes

   tax expense comprises of current, deferred and fringe benefit tax.  current income tax and fringe benefit tax is 
measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the income tax act, 1961 
enacted in india. Deferred income taxes reflects the impact of current year timing differences between taxable 
income and accounting income for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years.

   Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the 
balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists 
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities 
relate to the taxes on income levied by same governing taxation laws. Deferred tax assets are recognized only 
to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against 
which such deferred tax assets can be realised. in situations where the company has unabsorbed depreciation 
or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual certainty supported by 
convincing evidence that they can be realised against future taxable profits.

   at each balance sheet date the company re-assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets.  it recognizes  unrecognized 
deferred tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be 
that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

   the carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. the company writes-down 
the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtually 
certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax 
asset can be realised. any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or 
virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available.
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   minimum alternative tax (mat) credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing 
evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.  in the year in which the 
mat credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in 
guidance Note issued by the institute of chartered accountants of india, the said asset is created by way of a 
credit to the profit and loss account and shown as mat credit entitlement. the company reviews the same at 
each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of mat credit entitlement to the extent there is no 
longer convincing evidence to the effect that company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

 l. Segment Reporting 

   the company’s operations predominantly relate to providing end-to-end post production services to the media 
and entertainment industry viz., films and television. the company’s operating businesses are organized and 
managed according to the services and are identified as reportable segment based on the dominant source and 
nature of risks and returns as primary and secondary segments. the analysis of geographical segments is based 
on the areas in which major operating divisions of the company operate.

 m.  Earnings Per Share

   Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.  the weighted 
average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for events of bonus issue; bonus 
element in a rights issue to existing shareholders; share split; and reverse share split (consolidation of shares).

   for the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to 
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for 
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

 n. Provisions 

   a provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable 
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can 
be made. provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required 
to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. these are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted 
to reflect the current best estimates. 

 o. Cash & Cash Equivalents

   cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand, short term investments with 
original maturity of three months or less and fixed deposits with banks.

 p. Derivative Instruments

   as per the icai announcement, accounting for derivative contracts, other than those covered under as-11, are 
marked to market on a portfolio basis, and the net loss after considering the offsetting effect on the underlying 
hedge item is charged to the income statement. Net gains, if any, are ignored.

 q. Retirement and other Employee Benefits

  post employment benefits and other long term benefits:

   retirement benefits in the form of provident fund and family pension fund is a defined contribution scheme and 
the contributions are charged to the profit and loss account of the year when the contributions to the respective 
funds are due. Liability in respect thereof is determined on the basis of contributions as required under the 
statue/rules. there are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective trusts.
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   gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation done as 
per projected unit credit method, carried out by an independent actuary at the end of the year. 

3. DetaiL of cHarges proViDeD for secureD LoaNs:

Nature Value Security
term Loan ` 56,767,678/- i.  subservient charge on the movable fixed assets and receivables of 

the company.

ii. personal guarantee of the promoter Director. 

iii. pledge of shares by promoters.

iv. escrow of rent payment receivable by promoters.
term Loan ` 130,888,966/- i.  first charge on the company’s entire Book Debts, Bills whether 

documentary or clean, outstanding monies, receivables, both present 
and future and term Deposits.

ii.  first charge on the fixed assets of the company, both present and 
future (except royal palms property).

iii. personal guarantees of the promoter Director.

term Loan ` 248,616,978/- i. first charge against the property financed & project assets.

ii. personal guarantees of the promoter Director.

term Loan ` 72,428,796/- i. first charge against the equipment financed.
Buyers credit ` 313,676,577/- i.  first charge on the company’s entire Book Debts, Bills whether 

documentary or clean, outstanding monies, receivables, both present 
and future and term Deposits.

ii.  first charge on the fixed assets of the company, both present and 
future (except royal palms property).

iii. personal guarantees of the promoter Director.
cash credit / 
over Draft

` 92,269,598/- i.  first charge on the company’s entire Book Debts, Bills whether 
documentary or clean, outstanding monies, receivables, both present 
and future. 

ii.  first charge on the fixed assets of the company, both present and 
future.

iii. personal guarantees of the promoter Director.
cash credit / 
over Draft

` 23,598,908/- i. first charge on current asset. 

ii. personal guarantee of Director.

iii. pledge of shares by promoters.
short term 
Demand Loan

` 250,000,000/- i.  first charge on current asset. 

ii.  personal guarantee of Director.

iii.  pledge of shares by promoters.
Vehicle Loan ` 8,419,189/- i. first charge on the Vehicles financed.

4.  the company does not have suppliers who are registered as micro, small or medium enterprise under the micro, 
small and medium enterprises Development act, 2006 as at march 31, 2011. the information regarding micro, small 
and medium enterprises has been determined on the basis of information available with the management.
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5. segmeNt iNformatioN:
  the company is presently operating an integrated post production setup. the entire operations are governed by the 

same set of risks and returns and hence have been considered as representing a single segment. the said treatment 
is in accordance with the guiding principles enunciated in the accounting standard on segment reporting (as-17). 

 Geographical Segment

   although the company’s major operating divisions are managed in india, the following table shows the distribution 
of the company’s consolidated sales by geographical market, regardless of where the services were provided:

 Income from Operations by Geographical Area (amount in `)  

2011 2010

india 728,764,158 807,375,018

united Kingdom 272,809,439 23,898,957

u.s. 342,978,448 116,716,311

canada 10,258,844 3,914,337

other countries 247,370 820,970

1,355,058,259 952,725,593

 Segment Assets by Geographical Area and additions to Segment Assets (amount in `)

Segments Assets Additions to Fixed Assets 
and Intangibles

2011 2010 2011 2010

india 3,442,288,474 3,140,018,104 1,061,509,839 58,582,973

united Kingdom 265,096,292 36,405,615 Nil Nil

u.s. 223,389,322 106,233,480 Nil Nil

canada 7,550,103 446,019 Nil Nil

other countries 1,655,526 4,172,164 Nil Nil

3,939,979,717 3,287,275,382 1,061,509,839 58,582,973

6. reLateD party DiscLosures:
 a. List of Parties where control exists, irrespective of transactions:

  i) Subsidiary Companies

   prime focus London plc.

   prime focus international Limited (formerly known as prime focus investments Limited)

   prime focus technologies private Limited

   flow post solutions private Limited

   gVs software private Limited

   prime focus motion pictures Limited
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  ii) Step-down Subsidiaries

   Subsidiary of Prime Focus International Limited

   prime focus international services uK Limited

   prime focus North america, inc 

   1800 Vine street LLc (subsidiary of prime focus North america, inc)

   prime focus VfX services i inc     

   prime focus VfX services ii inc 

   prime focus VfX technology inc

   prime focus VfX pacific inc

   prime focus VfX usa inc

   prime focus VfX australia pty Limited

   Subsidiary of Prime Focus London Plc.

   prime focus Visual entertainment services Limited

   Vtr media investments Limited

   pf film uK Limited (formerly known as 37 Dean street Limited)

   pf Broadcast & commercial Limited

   Busy Buses Limited

   prime focus technologies uK Limited

   amazing spectacles Limited (subsidiary of Vtr media investments Limited)

   clipstream Limited

    meanwhile content Limited (formerly known as united sound & Vision Limited) (subsidiary of Vtr media 
investments Limited)

   prime focus productions 1 Limited (subsidiary of Vtr media investments Limited)

   prime focus productions 2 Limited (subsidiary of Vtr media investments Limited)

   prime focus productions 3 Limited (subsidiary of Vtr media investments Limited)

   prime focus productions 5 Limited (subsidiary of Vtr media investments Limited)

 b. List of related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

  i) Key Management Personnel     

   mr. Naresh malhotra - chairman and Whole-time Director

   mr. Namit malhotra – managing Director

  ii) Relatives of Key Management Personnel

   mr. premnath malhotra 

  iii) Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by Key Management Personnel or their relatives 

    Blooming Bud coaching private Limited

   N2m reality private Limited
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 c. Particulars of Related Party Transactions

 (amount in `)

S. No 2011 2010

1 Key Management Personnel*

a.  remuneration 
 Namit malhotra 3,000,000 3,000,000
 Naresh malhotra 3,000,000 3,000,000

6,000,000 6,000,000

B. share Warrant application received

 Namit malhotra 138,695,000 Nil
138,695,000 Nil

c.  payment made towards purchase of shares of prime focus 
technologies pvt. Ltd.

 Namit malhotra 24,500 Nil

24,500 Nil
D. Balance outstanding at the year end – remuneration payable 

 Namit malhotra 192,528 168,700

 Naresh malhotra Nil 170,147

192,528 338,847

2 Relatives of Key management Personnel

a. professional fees

 premnath malhotra Nil 140,000

Nil 140,000

3 Step-down Subsidiaries #

a. revenue

 i. prime focus North america, inc 342,973,442 116,716,311

 ii. prime focus VfX services ii, inc 10,258,844 3,914,337

B. technical service payments

 i. prime focus North america, inc 12,613,875 Nil

 ii. prime focus VfX services ii, inc 990,444 Nil

c. Loans and advances - given 

 i. prime focus North america, inc 1,688,996 2,512,327

 ii. prime focus VfX services ii, inc 1,688,996 12,224,533

D. Loans and advances - repaid 

 i. prime focus North america, inc (4,837,954) Nil

 ii. prime focus VfX services ii, inc (10,709,905) (1,648,150)
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 (amount in `)

S. No 2011 2010

e. Balance outstanding at the year end

 i. Debtors

  1. prime focus VfX services ii 7,550,102 446,019

  2. prime focus North america, inc 223,389,322 106,233,480

 ii. advances to subsidiary

  1. prime focus North america, inc (14,549,789) 1,238,238

  2. prime focus VfX services ii 1,051,702 11,011,923

4 Subsidiaries

a. revenue 

 i. prime focus London plc 272,809,439 22,974,961

 ii. prime focus technologies private Limited 302,675 93,055

B. technical service payments

 i. prime focus London plc Nil Nil

c. share application

 i. prime focus London plc Nil 234,044,490

 ii. prime focus international Limited Nil 127,527,166
D. Loans and advances - given 

 i. prime focus London plc 494,576,300 19,191,769

 ii. prime focus technologies private Limited 99,445,016 35,248,646
e. Loans and advances - repaid 

 i. prime focus London plc 33,279,560 Nil

 ii. prime focus technologies private Limited 68,685,371 7,598,450

f. interest on loans to subsidiary

 i. prime focus London plc 7,415,166 Nil

 ii. prime focus technologies private Limited 8,405,965 5,340,411
g. Balance outstanding at the year end 
 i. Debtors

  1. prime focus London plc. 262,893,927 25,009,912

  2. prime focus technologies private Limited 426,294 122,262

 ii. advances to subsidiary

  1. prime focus London plc. (13,819,643) 11,000,415

  2. flow post solutions private Limited 4,972 4,972

  3. prime focus motion pictures Limited 584,747 584,747

  4. prime focus technologies private Limited 84,897,278 45,734,828
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 (amount in `)

S. No 2011 2010

 iii. Loans to subsidiary

  1. prime focus London plc. 492,046,944 Nil

 iv. share application money

  1. prime focus international Limited Nil 127,527,166

  2. prime focus London plc. Nil 234,044,490

5
Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by Key 
Management Personnel or their relatives
a. rent
 i. Blooming Bud coaching private Limited 24,000,000 24,000,000
B. Deposits given
 i. N2m reality private Limited 70,000,000 Nil
c.  Balance outstanding at the year end – Deposits
 i. Blooming Bud coaching private Limited 48,000,000 48,000,000
 ii. N2m reality private Limited 70,000,000 Nil

   * Key management personnel have given personal guarantee and have pledged part of their share holdings for 
borrowings obtained by the company. (refer note 3 to schedule 16)

   # company has given guarantee for lease taken by step down subsidiaries (prime focus North america inc.) 
(refer note 14 (v) to schedule 16).

7. Leases:
  a.  the company has taken the premises on non-cancellable operating lease basis. the tenure of lease is for 60 months 

and further expandable for 10 years without non cancellation clause on mutual consent with escalation clause. 
future lease rentals in respect of the said premises taken on non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

(amount in `)

2011 2010

Lease payments due within one year 2,500,000 2,500,000

Lease payments due later than one but not later than five years 3,646,000 6,146,000

Lease payments due later than five years Nil Nil

 b.  the company has taken certain premises on cancellable operating lease basis. the tenure of the lease ranges 
from 11 to 180 months.

 c.  amount of lease rental charged to the profit and loss account in respect of operating leases is ` 33,796,375/- 
(previous year ` 31,380,774/-).
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8. stocK spLit/suB-DiVisioN of equity sHares: 
  the company has sub-Divided the existing 12,822,588 nos. of equity shares from every oNe equity share of ` 10/- 

each into teN equity shares of ̀  1/- each (i.e. 12,822,588 equity shares of ̀  10/- each in the capital of the company 
on which the sum of ` 10/- is credited as fully paid up into 128,225,880 equity shares of ` 1/- each of which the 
sum of ` 1/- is credited as fully paid up.) the record date fixed for the purpose of sub division of equity shares of the 
company was November 1, 2010.

9. quaLifieD iNstitutioNs pLacemeNt:
  the company has allotted 10,641,566 equity shares of face value of ` 1/- each to qualified institutional Buyers 

under qip as per chapter Viii of the seBi regulations at a price of ` 68.58 per equity share (including a premium 
of ` 67.58 per equity share), aggregating to ` 729,798,596 on November 10, 2010. further the floor price in respect 
of the aforesaid qualified institutions placement, based on the pricing formula as prescribed in regulation 85 of 
chapter Viii of seBi regulations is ` 68.58 per equity share and the relevant Date for this purpose in terms of 
regulation 81 of chapter Viii of seBi regulations is November 4, 2010.

10. issue of WarraNts:
  pursuant to the Board approval dated august 27, 2010 and shareholders’ approval dated september 30, 2010, the 

company has allotted 1,000,000 warrants convertible into equity shares on october 15, 2010 to mr. Namit malhotra, 
a member of the promoters and promoter group carrying an option/entitlement to subscribe to equivalent number of 
equity shares on a future date not exceeding 18 months from the date of allotment of such warrants. each warrant 
shall be convertible into one equity share of nominal value of ` 10/- each at a price not less than the minimum price 
determined in accordance with the provision of chapter Vii of seBi (icDr) regulations. the company has received 
from mr. Namit malhotra, a sum equivalent to 25% of the price of the equity share to be issued in surrender/ 
exchange of each of such warrant.

11. earNiNgs per sHare (eps):

2011 2010

Net profit as per profit and loss account including exceptional items for calculation 
of basic and diluted eps. ` 197,535,159 ` 127,266,148

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic eps. 
(refer Note 8 and 9 to schedule 16) 132,540,816 128,225,880

add : Weighted average number of equity shares which would be 
issued on conversion of fccB. 19,527,595 19,527,600

add : Weighted average number of equity shares which would be 
issued on conversion of Warrants. 4,575,342 -

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating diluted  eps. 156,643,754 147,753,480

Basic eps ` 1.49 ` 0.99

Diluted eps ` 1.26 ` 0.89
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12.  No amortization has been done for film rights in the current year as the rights are not exercisable in the current 
year. since the rights are available for a period of more than 10 years the useful life of the rights is considered to be 
more than 10 years.

13. capitaL commitmeNt: 
 (amount in `)

2011 2010

i.  estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account 
and not provided for: 57,921,682 52,943,001

14. coNtiNgeNt LiaBiLities Not proViDeD for: 
 (amount in `)

2011 2010

i.  on account of undertakings given by the company in favour of customs 
authorities at the time of import of capital goods under epcg scheme. the 
company is confident of meeting its future obligations on such undertakings 
in the normal course of business.

693,529,871 748,591,339

ii.  on account of undertaking given on future probable obligation on behalf of 
subsidiary company in the course of acquisitions made. 
(refer Note 25 to schedule 16) 

60,966,157 61,080,721

iii.  matters pending with tax authorities (Block assessment). company has 
been advised that it has a valid case based on similar decided matters.

112,684 112,684

iv.  matters pending with tax authorities towards addition made by the tax 
authorities for the ay 2007-08. company has gone for an appeal to cit 
(appeals) and has made full payment of demand under protest.

5,271,860 5,271,860

v. guarantee for Lease taken by step-down subsidiary. 44,631,320 
(usD 1,000,000)

44,979,660 
(usD 1,000,000)

vi. premium on conversion of fccB (refer Note 19 (c) to schedule 16) 598,162,095 420,381,905

15. gratuity aND otHer post-empLoymeNt BeNefit pLaNs: 
 a. Define benefit plans: 

   the company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. every employee who has completed five years or more of 
service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. 
this plan is unfunded.

   the following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognized in the profit and loss account 
and the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the respective plans.
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 Profit and Loss account
 Net employee benefit expense (recognized in employee cost)

(amount in `)
Particulars March 31, 2011 march 31, 2010
current service cost 1,203,652 736,074
interest cost on benefit obligation - 88,726
expected return on plan assets - -
Net actuarial( gain) / loss recognized in the year - (540,246)

past service cost - -
Net benefit expense 1,203,652 274,454
actual return on plan assets Not applicable Not applicable

 Balance sheet 

(amount in `)
Details of Provision for gratuity March 31, 2011 march 31, 2010
Defined benefit obligation 2,703,058 1,499,406
fair value of plan assets. - -
Amount recognized in the balance sheet 2,703,058 1,499,406

 Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows: 

(amount in `)
Particulars March 31, 2011 march 31, 2010

opening defined benefit obligation 1,499,406 1,224,852
interest cost - 88,726
current service cost 1,203,652 736,074
Benefits paid - -
actuarial (gains) / losses on obligation - (540,246)
Closing defined benefit obligation 2,703,058 1,499,406

 Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

  the company does not fund the gratuity nor it has plans presently to contribute in the next year and hence the 
disclosure relating to fair value of plan assets is not applicable.

 the principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the company’s plans are shown below:

Particulars March 31, 2011

%

march 31, 2010

%

Discount rate 8.25% 7.75%

expected rate of return on assets Not applicable Not applicable

employee turnover 2% 2 %

  the estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.
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 Amounts for the current and previous year are as follows:  [AS15 Para 120(n)] 

(amount in `)
Particulars March 31, 2011 march 31, 2010
Defined benefit obligation 2,703,058 1,499,406
plan assets - -
surplus / (deficit) (2,703,058) (1,499,406)
experience adjustment on plan liabilities (gain) / loss - (320,360)
experience adjustment on plan asses - -

 b. Defined Contribution Plan: 

   amount recognized as an expense and included in schedule – 14 as contribution to provident fund ̀  2,777,813/- 
(previous year ` 1,585,924/-).

16. Directors remuNeratioN:
         (amount in `)

Particulars March 31, 2011 march 31, 2010
salaries 6,000,000 6,000,000
perquisites Nil Nil  
contribution to provident fund Nil Nil  

TOTAL 6,000,000 6,000,000 

Computation of Net Profit in accordance with Section 349 of the Companies Act, 1956 for calculation 
of remuneration payable to Directors

(amount in `)
Particulars March 31, 2011 march 31, 2010
profit as per profit and Loss account 197,535,159 127,266,148
add:  

Directors’ remuneration 6,000,000 6,000,000 
(Loss)/profit on sale of fixed assets as per section 349 of the companies 
act, 1956 1,559,543 (13,000)
Net profit as per section 349 of the companies act, 1956 205,094,702 133,253,148

maximum remuneration allowed to managing and Whole time Directors at 
10% of the net profits as calculated above 20,509,470 13,325,315
remuneration paid to Directors 6,000,000  6,000,000                    

17.  Details of loans given to subsidiaries and associates and firms/companies in which directors are 
interested: 

 1. prime focus London plc :

  Balance as at march 31, 2011: ` 492,046,944/-. (previous year ` Nil)

  maximum amount outstanding during the year ` 492,046,944/- (previous year ` 241,870,474/-)
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 2. prime focus technologies private Limited :

  Balance as at march 31, 2011: ` 84,897,278/- (previous year ` 41,624,979/-)
  maximum amount outstanding during the year ` 85,244,098/- (previous year ` 45,258,248/-)

18.  uNHeDgeD foreigN curreNcy eXposure:
 (amount in `)

  (March 31, 2011)  (March 31, 2010) Purpose

Buyer’s credit (Liability)

265,901,172 
(usD 5,957,724 @ closing 
rate of 1 usD = ` 44.63)

439,771,909 
(usD 9,777,138 @ closing 
rate of 1 usD = ` 44.98)

for import of equipments.

47,775,405 
(eur 753,999 @ closing 
rate of 1 eur = ` 63.36)

3,539,637 
(eur 58,175 @ closing rate 

of 1 eur = ` 60.84)
for import of equipments.

Zero coupon foreign 
currency convertible 
Bonds (Liability)

2,162,696,800 
(usD 55,000,000)

2,162,696,800 
(usD 55,000,000)

for strategic acquisitions 
and / or strategic alliances 
outside of india.

sundry Debtors (assets)
493,833,351 

(usD 5,005,214 caD 164,266 
&  gBp 3,665,810)

136,872,866 
(usD 2,484,470 & gBp 

366,247)

amount receivable for 
services rendered to overseas 
subsidiary and others.

Loans and advances 
(assets)

 493,098,646 
(usD 11,024,701 caD 22,882)

Nil
advances given to overseas 
subsidiary and others.

investment in foreign 
subsidiary – prime focus 
London plc (assets)

610,703,583 
(gBp 7,522,444)

610,703,583 
(gBp 7,522,444)

investment in subsidiary

investment in foreign 
subsidiary – prime 
focus international 
Limited (assets)

1,690,349,846 
(usD 43,000,000)

1,690,349,846 
(usD 43,000,000)

investment in subsidiary.

investment in foreign 
subsidiary – prime focus 
London plc (assets)

Nil
234,044,490 

(usD 4,600,000)
share application in 
subsidiary.

investment in foreign 
subsidiary – prime 
focus international 
Limited (assets)

Nil
127,527,166 

(usD 2,753,011)
share application in 
subsidiary.

19. foreigN curreNcy coNVertiBLe BoNDs (fccB):
 a.  on December 12, 2007, the company issued 550 foreign currency convertible Bonds (fccB’s) of a face value of 

usD 100,000 each, aggregating to usD 55.00 million (equivalent – ` 2,162,696,800/-). the net proceeds from the 
issue of the Bonds are to be used for strategic acquisitions and/or strategic alliances outside of india, for investment 
into wholly owned subsidiaries and/or joint ventures outside of india, for announced and future acquisitions, for 
foreign currency capital expenditure or for any other use, as may be permitted under applicable laws or regulations 
from time to time.
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 b.  as per the terms of the issue, the holders have an option to convert fccB into equity shares at a reseted 
conversion rate of ` 110.90 per equity share. further, under certain conditions, the company has the option to 
redeem the bonds on or after December 12, 2010. unless previously converted or redeemed or purchased and 
cancelled, the company will redeem these bonds, at 143.66% at the end of the five years from the date of issue 
i.e. on December 13, 2012. as at march 31, 2011, no bonds have been converted into equity shares of ̀  1/- each 
and the entire balance of 550 bonds have been included and disclosed in the schedule of “unsecured Loans”.

  c.  the fccB’s as detailed above are compound instruments with an option of conversion into specified number 
of shares and an underlying foreign currency liability with the redemption at a premium in the event of non 
conversion at the end of the period. the bonds are redeemable only if there is no conversion of bonds earlier.  
the payment of premium on redemption is contingent in nature, the outcome of which is dependent on uncertain 
future events. Hence no provision is considered necessary nor has been made in the accounts in respect of such 
premium amounting to ` 598,162,095/- (previous year ` 420,381,905/-). However, in the event of redemption, 
the premium payable would be adjusted against the balance in the securities premium account.

 d.  the management is of the opinion that the bonds are a non monetary liability and hence, the exchange gain/ 
loss on translation of fccB liability in the event of redemption have not been recognized.

 e.  Had the company revalued the bonds as at march 31, 2011 considering it as a long term monetary liability, the profit 
for the year ended march 31, 2011 would have been lower by ` 39,062,293/- (previous year: ` 46,124,146/-) . 
the reserves as on that date would have been lower by ` 252,963,508/- (previous year: ` 265,060,354/-) and 
foreign currency monetary item would have been ` 39,062,293/- (previous year: ` 46,124,146/-).

20. misceLLaNeous iNcome:
  as the company is engaged in providing post production services, net income of ` 3,475,819/- (previous year  

` 1,955,719/-) from production of tV programme (gross ` 13,600,000/-(previous year ` 27,096,993/-) less: direct 
cost of ̀  10,124,181/- (previous year ̀  25,141,274/-)) is disclosed under other income as miscellaneous income.  the 
revenue of the company for the year including revenue from tV production income is ` 1,368,658,259/-  (previous 
year ` 979,822,586/-).

21. iNVestmeNts:
  a.  investments include ` 610,703,583/- (previous year: ` 610,703,583/-) in prime focus London plc, uK [‘pf uK’], 

a subsidiary company. pf uK has been recording profits since march 2009. the market value of shares as on 
march 31, 2011 is ` 238,552,428/- (previous year: ` 150,345,934/-). the share trading of the company were 
suspended on march 31, 2011, and hence the last traded price on september 29, 2010 of pence 17 has been 
considered for calculation of market value of investments.

   these being long term and strategic investments and also in view of the projected profitable operations of these companies, 
the management is of the view that there is no diminution other than temporary in the value of these investments. 

 b. Investments purchased and sold during the year:
(amount in `)

Particulars
Face 
Value

As at March 
31, 2010

Purchased 
During the 

Year

Redeemed 
During the 

Year

As at March 
31, 2011

trade unquoted units
prime focus technologies pvt. Ltd. 
– equity shares ` 10/- 51,000 24,500 - 75,500
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22. earNiNgs iN foreigN curreNcy – oN receipt Basis:
(amount in `)

Particulars March 31, 2011 march 31, 2010

technical service receipts 279,377,620 47,932,431

interest received 6,163 548,911
279,383,783 48,481,342

23. eXpeNDiture iN foreigN curreNcy – oN paymeNt Basis: 
        (amount in `)

Particulars March 31, 2011 march 31, 2010

a. on interest & finance charges 19,378,466 30,563,043

b. on other accounts 385,050 1,836,798

19,763,516 32,399,841

24. c i f VaLue of imports:
(amount in `)

Particulars March 31, 2011 march 31, 2010

capital goods 205,955,120 322,731,165

25.  During the fy 2008-09 the company was allotted 505,050 ordinary shares of 5 pence each in prime focus London 
plc, a subsidiary of the company, as fully paid up, for consideration other than cash, for providing an undertaking on 
certain future obligations, to the vendors under the share purchase agreement entered by prime focus London plc. 
to acquire machine effects Limited. the outcome is dependent on certain future events for which no reliable estimate 
can be made. further, in current year, the company has filed a suit in the Bombay High court alleging that the terms 
of the undertaking are not tenable and hence no provision is considered necessary.

26. previous year’s figures have been regrouped where necessary to confirm to this year’s classification. 

the schedules referred to above and notes to accounts form an integral part of the Balance sheet and profit and Loss account.
as per our report of even date   For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For MZS & Associates 
chartered accountants 
firm registration No.: 106400w 

Abuali Darukhanawala Naresh Malhotra Namit Malhotra Navin Agarwal
(partner) (chairman and Whole-

time Director)
(managing Director) (company secretary)

membership No.108053

place : mumbai 
Date  : June 20, 2011 
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Balance Sheet aBStract and company’S 

General BuSineSS profile
(` in Lacs)

1. registrationdetails                                                                                                                         
 Registration Details : 11-108981
 State Code : 11
 Balance Sheet Date : March 31,2011
2. capital raised during the year
 Public Issue : Nil
 Rights Issue : Nil
 Bonus Issue : Nil
 Private Placement (Refer Note 9 to Schedule 16) : 7297.99
3. position of mobilisation and deployment of funds
 Total Liabilities : 69,431.24
 Total Assets : 69,431.24
 Sources of Funds
 Paid up Capital : 1,388.67
 Share Warrants : 1,386.95
 Reserves and Surplus : 28,855.98
 Secured Loans : 11,966.67
 Unsecured Loans : 21,626.97
 Deferred Tax Liability : 1,873.03
 Application of Funds
 Net Fixed Assets : 22,787.79
 Investments : 23,022.97
 Net Current Assets : 21,287.51
 Miscellaneous Expenditure :            Nil
 Accumulated Losses :            Nil
4. performance of the company
 Total Income : 14,032.21
 Total Expenditure : 11,829.06
 Profit Before Tax : 2,203.15
 Profit After Tax : 1,975.35
 Earning Per Share (Basic) :     1.49 
 Dividend Rate :            Nil
5. Generic names of principal products of the company
 Item Code No.           : N.A.
 Product / Description : Digital and Post Production Services

for and on behalf of the Board of directors

naresh malhotra namit malhotra navin agarwal
(Chairman and Whole-time Director) (Managing Director) (Company Secretary)

Place : Mumbai 
Date  : June 20, 2011 
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name of the 
Subsidiary 
company

the 
financial 

year / 
period 
of the 

Subsidiary 
company 
ended on

holding company date from 
which they 

became 
Subsidiary 
company 

number 
of Shares 

held by the 
company 
with its 

nominees 
in the 

Subsidiary 
at the 

end of the 
financial 

year of the 
Subsidiary 
company

extent of 
interest 

in the 
Subsidiary 

company

net aggregate amount of the subsidiary  company’s 
profit /(loss) so far as it consern the members of yhe 

holding company  

not dealt in the holding 
company’s accounts 

dealt with in the 
holding company’s 

accounts 

 for the 
financial year 
ended 31 st 
march 2011 

for the 
previous 
financial 

year of the 
subsidiary 

company since 
it became the 

company’s 
subsidiary 

for the 
financial 

year 
ended 
31st 

march 
2011

for the 
previous 
financial 

year of the 
subsidiary 
company 
since it 

became the 
company’s 
subsidiary 

Prime focus London 
Plc

31-Mar-11 Prime Focus Limited 28-Apr-06 19,567,003 59.96%  (881,204)  (10,585,268)  -  - 

Prime Focus Visual 
Entertainment 
Services Limited

31-Mar-11 Prime Focus London 
Plc

28-Apr-06 1,000 100%  (37,681,264)  563,601,039  -  - 

VTR Media Investment 
Limited 

31-Mar-11 Prime Focus London 
Plc

28-Apr-06 2 100%  385,832  (449,456,150)  -  - 

Amazing Spectacles 
Limited

31-Mar-11 VTR Media Investment 
Limited 

28-Apr-06 2 100%  -  (20,218,312)  -  - 

Clipstream Limited 31-Mar-11 Prime Focus London 
Plc

28-Apr-06 2 100%  -  (56,845,074)  -  - 

Meanwhile Content 
Limited

31-Mar-11 VTR Media Investment 
Limited 

28-Apr-06 2 100%  (452,946)  9,622,399  -  - 

Machin Effects 
Limited* 

31-Mar-11 Prime Focus London 
Plc

18-Jan-08 100 100%  30,488,958  (53,752,414)  -  - 

PF Film UK Limited2 31-Mar-11 Prime Focus London 
Plc

2-Dec-08 1 100%  -  -  -  - 

PF Broadcast & 
Commercial Limited

31-Mar-11 Prime Focus London 
Plc

12-Jan-11 1 100%  178,833,986  -  -  - 

Busy Buses Limited 31-Mar-11 Prime Focus London 
Plc

1-Apr-10 3 100%  -  -  -  - 

Prime Focus 
Technologies UK 
Limited

31 Mar 11 Prime Focus London 
Plc

13 Aug 10 1 100%  -    -    -  - 

Prime Focus 
Productions 1 Limited

31 Mar 11 VTR Media Investment 
Limited 

1 Dec 10 1 100%  -    -    -  - 

Prime Focus 
Productions 2 Limited

31 Mar 11 VTR Media Investment 
Limited 

1 Dec 10 1 100%  -    -    -  - 

Prime Focus 
Productions 3 Limited

31 Mar 11 VTR Media Investment 
Limited 

1 Dec 10 1 100%  -    -    -  - 

Prime Focus 
Productions 5 Limited

31 Mar 11 VTR Media Investment 
Limited 

1 Dec 10 1 100%  -    -    -  - 

Prime Focus 
International Ltd1 

31-Mar-11 Prime Focus Limited 19-Dec-07 21,748,973 100%  5,936,780  4,594,606  -  - 

Prime Focus 
International Services 
UK Limited

31 Mar 11 Prime Focus 
International Ltd 

23 Mar 11 1 100%  -    -    -  - 

Statement purSuant to Section 212 of the companieS act, 1956 relatinG to 

company’S intereSt in SuBSidiary companieS for the year ended march 31, 2011
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name of the 
Subsidiary 
company

the 
financial 

year / 
period 
of the 

Subsidiary 
company 
ended on

holding company date from 
which they 

became 
Subsidiary 
company 

number 
of Shares 

held by the 
company 
with its 

nominees 
in the 

Subsidiary 
at the 

end of the 
financial 

year of the 
Subsidiary 
company

extent of 
interest 

in the 
Subsidiary 

company

net aggregate amount of the subsidiary  company’s 
profit /(loss) so far as it consern the members of yhe 

holding company  

not dealt in the holding 
company’s accounts 

dealt with in the 
holding company’s 

accounts 

 for the 
financial year 
ended 31 st 
march 2011 

for the 
previous 
financial 

year of the 
subsidiary 

company since 
it became the 

company’s 
subsidiary 

for the 
financial 

year 
ended 
31st 

march 
2011

for the 
previous 
financial 

year of the 
subsidiary 
company 
since it 

became the 
company’s 
subsidiary 

Prime Focus VFX 
service I, Inc

31-Mar-11 Prime Focus 
International Ltd 

1-Apr-08 100 Common 
Voting 

100%  3,408  (995,792)  -  - 

Prime Focus VFX 
service II, Inc 

31-Mar-11 Prime Focus 
International Ltd 

1-Apr-08 100 Common 
Voting & 

1000 Class B

100%  (20,582,501)  7,128,648  -  - 

Prime Focus VFX 
Technology,  Inc 

31-Mar-11 Prime Focus 
International Ltd 

1-Apr-08 100 Common 
Voting & 1 

Class B

100%  (1,648,141)  (2,478,459)  -  - 

Prime Focus VFX 
Pacific ,  Inc 

31-Mar-11 Prime Focus 
International Ltd 

1-Apr-08 1 Common 
Voting 

100%  (32,727,911)  61,068,923  -  - 

Prime Focus VFX USA,  
Inc 

31-Mar-11 Prime Focus 
International Ltd 

1-Apr-08 100 Common 
Voting 

100%  78,913,393  (38,871,550)  -  - 

Prime Focus VFX 
Australia Pty. Ltd.

31-Mar-11 Prime Focus 
International Ltd 

1-Apr-08 100 Common 
Voting 

100%  18,876  1,179  -  - 

Prime Focus North 
America, Inc

31-Mar-11 Prime Focus 
International Ltd 

1-Apr-08 5,100 100%  428,057,989  96,191,196  -  - 

1800 Vine street,  Inc 31-Mar-11 Prime Focus North 
America, Inc

1-Apr-08 - 100%  (5,270,949)  (24,800,210)  -  - 

Prime Focus 
Technologies Pvt. Ltd. 

31-Mar-11 Prime Focus Limited 8-Mar-08 7,550 75.50%  18,793,070  675,515  -  - 

Flow Post Solutions 
Pvt. Ltd. 

31-Mar-11 Prime Focus Limited 28-Feb-08 5,100 51%  -  (15,975)  -  - 

Prime Focus Motion 
Pictures Ltd. 

31-Mar-11 Prime Focus Limited 22-Aug-08 50,000 100%  -  (10,515)  -  - 

GVS Software Pvt. 
Ltd. 

31-Mar-11 Prime Focus Limited 1-Apr-08 10,000 100%  -  (10,515)  -  - 
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name of the 
Subsidiary 
company 

country of 
registration 

 capital  reserves total assets total liabilities investment 
other than 

investment in 
subsidiary 

turnover profit befor 
taxation 

provision 
for 

taxation

profit after 
taxation 

proposed 
dividend

Prime focus 
London Pic

U.K.  116,929,075 471,228,017  1,503,668,000 1,503,668,000 Nil  1,062,568  (1,451,676)  -  (1,451,676)  - 

Prime Focus 
Visual 
Entertainment 
Services Limited

U.K.  71,715 492,733,583  679,558,733  679,558,733 Nil  2,002,319,034  (62,075,278)  -  (62,075,278)  - 

VTR Media   
Investment 
Limited 

U.K.  143 (288,925,293)  52,517,900  52,517,900  -  -  635,610  -  635,610  - 

Amazing 
Spectacles 
Limited

U.K.  143  (143)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Clipstream 
Limited 

U.K.  143  (66,897,208)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Meanwhile 
Content Limited

U.K.  143  (2,609,641)  -  -  -  -  (746,173)  -  (746,173)  - 

Machin Effects 
Limited* 

U.K.  7,172  (7,172)  -  -  -  -  50,226,833  -  50,226,833  - 

PF Film UK 
Limited2

U.K. 1  -  1  1  -  -  -  -  -  - 

PF Broadcast 
& Commercial 
Limited

U.K.  1  300,612,176  401,117,041  401,117,041  -  299,488,822  296,935,007  -  296,935,007  - 

Busy Buses 
Limited

U.K.  143  (143)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Prime Focus 
Technologies UK 
Limited

U.K.  1   -  1    1    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Prime Focus 
Productions 1 
Limited

U.K.  72  - 72 72  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Prime Focus 
Productions 2 
Limited

U.K.  72  - 72 72  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Prime Focus 
Productions 3 
Limited

U.K.  72  - 72 72  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Prime Focus 
Productions 5 
Limited

U.K.  72  - 72 72  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Prime Focus 
International 
Ltd1 

U.K. 1,559,729,774  10,364,625  1,570,167,835  1,570,241,271  -  -  5,936,780  -  5,936,780  - 

Prime Focus 
International 
Services UK 
Limited

U.K.  1   -  1    1    -    -    -    -    -    - 

Prime Focus VFX 
service I, Inc.

Canada  460  (1,472,779)  7,566,863  7,566,863  -  -  3,408  -  3,408  - 

Prime Focus VFX 
service II, Inc.

Canada  27,251,941  61,155,492  361,025,202  361,025,202  -  110,503,418  (20,582,501)  -  (20,582,501)  - 

Prime Focus VFX 
Technology,  Inc.

Canada  460  (17,970,490)  34,161,723  34,161,723  -  22,581,680  (1,648,141)  -  (1,648,141)  - 

Statement purSuant to Section 212 (8) of the companieS act, 1956 relatinG to 
SuBSidiary companieS for the year ended march 31,2011
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name of the 
Subsidiary 
company 

country of 
registration 

 capital  reserves total assets total liabilities investment 
other than 

investment in 
subsidiary 

turnover profit befor 
taxation 

provision 
for 

taxation

profit after 
taxation 

proposed 
dividend

Prime Focus VFX 
Pacific ,  Inc.

Canada  460  60,557,154  200,733,786  200,733,786  -  396,986,147  (32,727,911)  -  (32,727,911)  - 

Prime Focus VFX 
USA,  Inc.

U.S.A.  460  (72,923,422)  181,853,513  181,853,513  -  241,971,017  78,913,393  -  78,913,393  - 

Prime Focus VFX 
Australia Pty. 
Ltd.

Australia  4,596  (1,714,312)  2,163,964  2,163,964  -  -  18,876  -  18,876  - 

Prime Focus 
North America, 
Inc

U.S.A.  227,620  1,051,289,955  2,031,828,111  2,031,828,111  -  1,843,017,550  464,523,789  36,465,800  428,057,989  - 

1800 Vine 
street,  Inc 

U.S.A.  -  553,608,663  1,069,798,116  1,069,798,116  -  -  (5,270,949)  -  (5,270,949)  - 

Prime Focus 
Technologies 
Pvt. Ltd. 

India  100,000  19,832,662  203,735,607  203,735,607  -  109,649,593  25,708,473  816,989  24,891,484  - 

Flow Post 
Solutions Pvt. 
Ltd. 

India  100,000  (25,919)  90,400  90,400  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Prime Focus 
Motion Pictures 
Ltd. 

India  500,000  (10,515)  650,464,978  650,464,978  -  -  -  -  -  - 

GVS Software 
Pvt. Ltd. 

India  100,000  (10,515)  100,000  100,000  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Exchange Rate : 1 GBP = INR 71.7151 ; 1 CAD = GBP 0.6409 ; 1 USD = GBP 0.6223.

Note

1 Formerly Known as Prime Focus Investments Limited

2 Formerly Known as 37 Dean Street Limited

* Subsidiaries that are liquidated during the year.
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Auditors’ report

To the Board of Directors of
Prime Focus Limited

1.  We have audited the attached consolidated balance sheet of Prime Focus Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries 
(collectively known as ‘the Group’), as at March 31, 2011, and also the consolidated profit and loss account and 
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended on that date annexed thereto. These financial statements 
are the responsibility of the Company’s management and have been prepared by the management on the basis of 
separate financial statements and other financial information regarding components. Our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

2.  We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We 
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.  We did not audit the financial statements of subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total assets of  
` 4,040,763,041 as at 31st March 2011, the total revenue of ` 4,300,868,883 and cash flows amounting to  
` 106,683,063 for the year then ended. These financial statements and other financial information have been 
audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion is based solely on the report 
of other auditors.

4.  We report that the consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Company’s management in 
accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standards (AS) 21, consolidated financial statements, notified 
pursuant to the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

5.  As more fully described in Note 16 to Schedule 18 to the financial statements, the Group has not revalued the FCCB 
of $ 55 million at the exchange rate prevailing as at March 31, 2011, March 31, 2010 and March 31, 2009, which in 
our opinion is not in accordance with Accounting Standard 11 “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates” 
and not provided for the premium payable on redemption of these FCCB. Had the Group revalued the bonds as 
at March 31, 2011, the profit for the year ended March 31, 2011 would have been lower by 13.48 million and the 
reserves as at that date would have been lower by 278.54 million and Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation 
Difference account would have been 13.48 million. Further, had the Group provided for the premium on redemption, 
the securities premium as at March 31, 2011 would have been lower by 598.16 million. Consequent to the above, 
the FCCB balance at March 31, 2011 would have been higher by 890.18 million. This had caused us to qualify our 
audit opinion on the financial statements relating to preceding year.
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6.  Based on our audit and on consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the 
other financial information of the components, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, subject to our comments in paragraph 5 above, we are of the opinion that the attached consolidated 
financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India:

 (a) in the case of the consolidated balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2011;

 (b) in the case of the consolidated profit and loss account, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and

 (c) in the case of the consolidated cash flow statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

For MZS & Associates 
Chartered Accountants   
Firm Registration No: 106400w

Abuali Darukhanawala
Partner (M. No. 108053)

Place:Mumbai
Date : June 20, 2011
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2011 

(Amount in `)
Particulars Sch No 31.03.2011 31.03.2010
 SOURCES OF FUNDS
 SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS 
 Share Capital 1  138,867,446  128,225,880 
 Share Warrant  138,695,000  - 
 Reserves and Surplus 2  3,367,521,809  1,797,830,884 

 3,645,084,255  1,926,056,764 
 LOAN FUNDS 
 Secured Loans 3  2,450,598,793  2,471,655,982 
 Unsecured Loans 4  2,162,696,800  2,162,696,800 

 4,613,295,593  4,634,352,782 
 MINORITY INTEREST  416,084,862  283,732,536 
 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (NET) 5  188,833,649  165,236,629 

 8,863,298,359  7,009,378,711 
 APPLICATION OF FUNDS 
 FIXED ASSETS 
 Gross Block 6  9,693,528,987  7,431,562,750 
 Less: Accumulated Depreciation / Amortisation  3,065,322,747  2,615,517,127 
 Net Block  6,628,206,240  4,816,045,623 
 Add : Capital Work in Progress (including Capital Advances)  116,400,749  740,637,013 

 6,744,606,989  5,556,682,636 
 INVESTMENTS 7  2,829,879  2,011,109 
 DEFERRED TAX ASSET (NET)  -  67,066,719 
 CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES 
 Inventories  2,745,828  20,212,318
 Sundry Debtors 8  1,693,800,520  1,150,656,642 
 Cash and Bank Balances 9  299,171,945  212,365,703 
 Other Current Assets (Unbilled Revenue)  56,315,230  62,187,006 
 Loans and Advances 10  1,110,888,455  898,381,403 

 3,162,921,978  2,343,803,072 
 Less : CURRENT LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS 
 Current Liabilities 11  1,045,039,876  959,367,866 
 Provisions 12  2,703,058  1,499,406 

 1,047,742,934  960,867,272 
 NET CURRENT ASSETS  2,115,179,044  1,382,935,800 
 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE 13  682,447  682,447 
 (To the extent not written off or adjusted) 

 8,863,298,359  7,009,378,711 
 NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 18

The schedules referred to above and notes to accounts form an integral part of the Balance Sheet.
As per our report of even date   For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For MZS & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 106400w 

Abuali Darukhanawala Naresh Malhotra Namit Malhotra Navin Agarwal
(Partner) (Chairman and Whole-

time Director)
(Managing Director) (Company Secretary)

Membership No.108053

Place : Mumbai 
Date  : June 20, 2011 
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 CONSOLIDATED PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2011 

(Amount in `)
Particulars Sch No 31.03.2011 31.03.2010

 INCOME 

 Income from Operations  5,029,582,721  4,527,837,574 

 Other Income 14  149,774,066  87,884,910 

 5,179,356,787  4,615,722,484 

 EXPENDITURE 

 Operating Costs 15  3,358,837,573  3,331,408,360 

 Exceptional Item - Miscellaneous Expenditure Written Off 16  69,954,691  137,380,420 

 Interest 17  263,047,066  218,339,893 

 Depreciation 6  545,573,993  425,869,260 

 4,237,413,323  4,112,997,933 

 PROFIT BEFORE TAX  941,943,464  502,724,551 

 PROVISION FOR TAX 

 Current Tax  55,526,444  85,365,872 

 Less : MAT Credit Entitlement  (55,526,444)  (136,108)

 -  85,229,764 

 Deferred Tax  60,062,820  23,564,344 

 TOTAL TAX EXPENSE  60,062,820  108,794,108 

 PROFIT AFTER TAX (Before adjustment of Minority Interest)  881,880,644  393,930,443 

 Less Minority Interest  121,017,350  59,692,252 

 PROFIT AFTER TAX  760,863,294  334,238,191 

 Balance brought forward from previous year  1,085,192,013  750,953,822 

 SURPLUS CARRIED TO BALANCE SHEET  1,846,055,307  1,085,192,013 

 EARNINGS PER SHARE 

 Basic - Nominal Value of Shares ` 1/-  5.74  2.61 

 Diluted - Nominal Value of Shares ` 1/-  4.86  2.26 

 NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 18

The schedules referred to above and notes to accounts form an integral part of the Profit and Loss Account.
As per our report of even date   For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For MZS & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 106400w 

Abuali Darukhanawala Naresh Malhotra Namit Malhotra Navin Agarwal
(Partner) (Chairman and Whole-

time Director)
(Managing Director) (Company Secretary)

Membership No.108053

Place : Mumbai 
Date  : June 20, 2011 
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2011  
(Amount in `)

 Particulars 31.03.2011 31.03.2010
Cash flow from Operating activities 
 Net Profit before taxation  941,943,464  502,351,638 
 Adjustments for : 
 Depreciation  545,573,993  425,876,707 
 (Profit)/ Loss on sale of Fixed Assets  4,955,331  (6,294,059)
 (Profit)/ Loss on sale of Investments  -  (2,025,000)
 Foreign exchange (Gain)/Loss (net)  10,509,384  (18,735,111)
 Tax Written Off  349,614  845,756 
 Interest Income  (33,742,985)  (42,867,172)
 Dividend Income  (23,306)  (26,381)
 Interest Expense  253,833,498  210,900,002 
 Bad debts Written Off  30,232,089  80,497,331 
 Provision for Doubful Debts  32,600,000  31,273,905 
 Undertaking Fees  -  (11,310,427)
 Sundry Credit Balances Written Back  (15,000)  (1,934,892)
 Provision for Share Based payment  -  7,209,394 
 Provision for Gratuity  1,203,652  274,554 
 Miscellaneous Expenditure Written Off - Corporate Restructuring  67,694,715  - 
 Impairment of Investment Adjustment  (681,814)  (529,371)
Operating profit before working capital changes  1,854,432,635  1,175,506,874 
 Movements in Working Capital : 
 Decrease / (Increase) in Sundry Debtors  (514,696,174)  (267,087,408)
 Decrease / (Increase) in Inventories  18,022,274  16,443,140 
 Decrease / (Increase) in Loans and Advances  (793,255,617)  (125,121,461)
 Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilities  718,309,316  245,189,192 
Cash generated from operations  1,282,812,434  1,044,930,337 
 Direct Taxes paid (Net of Refunds)  27,862,726  (60,824,026)
 Fringe Benefit Tax Paid  -  (210,212)
 Exchange Rate Difference  24,958,123  13,577,538 
Net Cash from Operating activities  1,335,633,283  997,473,637 
Cash flow from investing activites 
 Purchase of Fixed Assets (2,272,972,813)  (768,406,002)
 Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets  45,663,011  6,312,059 
 Purchase of Current Investments  (158,797,588)  (569,899,491)
 Purchase of Investment in Subsidiaries  (24,500)  - 
 Sale of Current Investments  644,807,231  140,964,177 
 Inter- Corporate Deposits given  (64,500,000)  (1,000,000)
 Inter- Corporate Deposits received back  16,552,116  1,000,000 
 Margin money and Fixed Deposits under lien  (4,777,092)  114,226,241 
 Interest Received  40,480,034  35,764,425 
 Dividends Received  23,306  26,381 
Net Cash from Investing Activities (1,753,546,295) (1,041,012,210)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2011 
(Amount in `)

 Particulars 31.03.2011 31.03.2010
Cash flow from Financing activities 
 Proceeds from long term borrowings  822,758,236  394,677,240 
 Repayment of long term borrowings  (968,570,388)  (358,863,826)
 Proceeds from short term borrowings  542,890,777  395,033,739 
 Repayment of short term borrowings  (436,609,223)  (405,249,923)
 Proceeds from issuance of Share Warrants  138,695,000  - 
 Proceeds from issuance of QIP  729,798,596  - 
 Expenses on issuance of QIP  (22,045,253)  - 
 Interest paid  (276,140,301)  (257,780,717)
 Dividends Paid (103)  (48)
 Foreign exchange Gain/(Loss) (net)  6,619,380  (51,032)
Net Cash from Financing activities  537,396,721  (232,234,567)
 Effect of exchange differences on translation  (39,830,261)  (23,133,050)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C+D)  79,653,448  (298,906,190)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the year  96,764,684  389,474,422 
 Translation adjustment on Opening Cash and Cash equivalents  2,227,887  6,077,819 
 Unrealised Gain/(Loss) on Foreign Currency Cash and Cash equivalents  19,100  118,633 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  178,665,119  96,764,684 
Components of Cash and Cash equivalents, as at March 31, 2011 
 Cash  1,779,545  2,038,594 
 With Banks: 
 - On Current Accounts  175,065,574  92,006,090 
 - On Fixed Deposits  1,820,000  2,720,000 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the year  178,665,119  96,764,684 
 Bank deposits having maturity of more than 90 days  119,351,444  114,574,353 
 Interest Accrued on bank deposits  1,155,382  1,026,667 
Cash and Bank Balance (Refer Schedule 9)  299,171,945  212,365,704 

As per our report of even date   For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For MZS & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 106400w 

Abuali Darukhanawala Naresh Malhotra Namit Malhotra Navin Agarwal
(Partner) (Chairman and Whole-

time Director)
(Managing Director) (Company Secretary)

Membership No.108053

Place : Mumbai 
Date  : June 20, 2011 
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(Amount in `)
 Particulars 31.03.2011 31.03.2010

 Schedule 1 

 SHARE CAPITAL 

 Authorised : 

  200,000,000 Shares of ` 1/- each 
(Previous year 15,000,000 Shares of ` 10/- each)  200,000,000  150,000,000 

 Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up: 

  138,867,446 Shares of ` 1/- each (Previous year 12,822,588 Shares 
of ` 10/- each) (Refer Note 8 & 9 to Schedule 18) 

 138,867,446  128,225,880 

 Of the above : 

 i.  36,000,000 Equity Shares of ` 1/- each (Previous year 3,600,000 
Equity Shares of ` 10/- each) each were allotted as fully  paid up 
pursuant to scheme of arrangement for consideration other than 
cash. 

 ii.  40,000,000 Equity Shares of ` 1/- each (Previous year 4,000,000 
Equity Shares of ` 10/- each) were allotted as fully paid up bonus 
shares by capitalisation of Reserves. 

 138,867,446  128,225,880 

 Schedule 2 

 RESERVES AND SURPLUS 

 Securities Premium at the beginning of the year  964,859,177  964,859,177 

 Add : Addition on account of QIP  719,157,030 -

 Less : Issue Expenses Pertaining to QIP  22,045,253  - 

 Securities Premium at the end of the year  1,661,970,954  964,859,177 

 General Reserve at the beginning of the year  13,400,000  13,400,000 

 General Reserve at the end of the year  13,400,000  13,400,000 

 Foreign Currency Translation Reserve  (153,904,452)  (265,620,306)

 Profit and Loss Account 1,846,055,307  1,085,192,013 

3,367,521,809  1,797,830,884 

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 

AS AT MARCH 31, 2011
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(Amount in `)
 Particulars 31.03.2011 31.03.2010
 Schedule 3
 SECURED LOANS 
 Loans from Banks (Refer Note 3 to Schedule 18) 
 Term Loans  1,356,310,985  1,334,378,847 
    (Amount repayable within one year ` 260,254,521/- 

(Previous year ` 214,085,190/)) 

  Buyers Credit  331,114,533  443,311,546 
    (Amount repayable within one year ` 130,352,069/- 

(Previous year ` 264,737,680/-)) 

  Cash Credit/Over Draft  373,995,044  295,716,154 

  Short Term Demand Loan  250,000,000  250,000,000 
  Hire Purchase Obligation  130,759,042  135,014,025 
 Loans from Others 
  Vehicle Finance  8,419,189  13,235,410 
   (Amount repayable within one year ` 4,545,620/- 

 (Previous year ` 4,733,070/-)) 

 2,450,598,793  2,471,655,982 

 Schedule 4 
 UNSECURED LOANS 
  Zero Coupon Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds 
(Refer Note 16 to Schedule 18) 

 2,162,696,800  2,162,696,800 

 550 (Previous year 550) Bonds @ USD 100,000 each 
 aggregating to USD 55,000,000 (Previous year USD 55,000,000) 

 2,162,696,800  2,162,696,800 

 Schedule 5
 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY 
 Difference in depreciation and other differences in block of assets 
 as per tax books and financial books  244,141,847  177,715,266 
 Gross Deferred Tax Liability  244,141,847  177,715,266 
 DEFERRED TAX ASSET 
 Provision for Doubtful Debts  54,765,089  10,536,900 
  Differences due to accelerated amortisation of intangibles under 
Income Tax Act  103,061  140,611 

 Share Issue Expenses  440,048  1,801,126 
 Gross Deferred Tax Asset  55,308,198  12,478,637 
 Net Deferred Tax Liability  188,833,649  165,236,629 

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 

AS AT MARCH 31, 2011
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Schedule 6

FIXED ASSETS             (Amount in `)

 Description of Asset 

 Gross Block  Depreciation  Net Block 

 As on  
01.04.2010 

 Op 
Revaluation 
Adjustment 

 Additions  Deductions  As on  
31.03.2011 

 As on  
01.04.2010 

 Op 
Revaluation 
Adjustment 

 Deductions  For the 
Year 

 Fair Value 
Reserve 

 As on  
31.03.2011 

 As on  
31.03.2011 

 As on  
31.03.2010 

(A)  TANGIBLE ASSETS 

 Land and Building 1,161,900,390 (8,520,836)  433,410,762  1,635,000  1,585,155,316  43,238,753  (293,293)  11,476,280  6,991,575  -  38,460,755 1,546,694,562 1,118,661,639 

 Leasehold Improvement  430,340,328 14,850,627  48,182,780  3,896,745  489,476,990  286,356,297  9,758,554  3,896,764  32,992,925  375,503  325,586,515  163,890,475  143,984,031 

 Plant & Machinery 4,268,878,374 32,310,609  690,786,039  119,447,840 4,872,527,182 2,073,805,321  17,723,220  100,261,247  433,817,552  (176,879) 2,424,907,967 2,447,619,214 2,195,073,057 

 Furniture & Fixtures  284,450,544 6,136,217  101,729,718  4,421,650  387,894,829  169,547,094  4,034,318  2,429,263  34,001,727  13,401  205,167,277  182,727,552  114,903,451 

 Office Equipments  25,751,256 87,723  40,627,207  -  66,466,186  10,885,613  66,111  -  7,929,682  5,227  18,886,633  47,579,553  14,865,643 

 Vehicles  46,905,469 341,588  5,616,543  6,570,162  46,293,438  12,069,537  83,118  1,608,237  5,782,011  20,254  16,346,683  29,946,755  34,835,932 

 Total (A) 6,218,226,361 45,205,928 1,320,353,049  135,971,397 7,447,813,941 2,595,902,615  31,372,028  119,671,791  521,515,472  237,506 3,029,355,831 4,418,458,110 3,622,323,753 

(B)  INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

 Goodwill  125,577,195 6,014,737  -  122,793,965  8,797,967  5,320,000  -  -  -  -  5,320,000  3,477,967  120,257,195 

 Goodwill on Consolidation  477,652,745 16,291,528  40,664,993  -  534,609,266  -  -  -  -  -  -  534,609,266  477,652,745 

 Rights  545,172,721 25,766,677  809,400,285  649,380,231  730,959,452  -  -  -  -  -  -  730,959,452  545,172,721 

 Software  64,933,729 963,966  916,980,880  11,530,214  971,348,361  14,294,520  250,528  8,220,388  24,058,520  263,736  30,646,916  940,701,444  50,639,209 

 Total (B) 1,213,336,390 49,036,908 1,767,046,158  783,704,410 2,245,715,046  19,614,520  250,528  8,220,388  24,058,520  263,736  35,966,916 2,209,748,129 1,193,721,870 

 Total (A + B) 7,431,562,751 94,242,836 3,087,399,207  919,675,807 9,693,528,987 2,615,517,135  31,622,556  127,892,179  545,573,993  501,242 3,065,322,747 6,628,206,240 4,816,045,622 

 Previous Year 7,339,558,095 (438,632,371) 1,269,147,346  738,510,319 7,431,562,750 2,810,679,718 (184,604,492)  414,521,514  425,869,260 (21,905,844) 2,615,517,127 4,816,045,622 

 Capital Work In Progress *  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 116,400,749  740,637,013 

* Note:- Borrowing Cost included in Capital Work In Progress - ` Nil (Previous year ` 93,764,502/-) 

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 

AS AT MARCH 31, 2011
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(Amount in `)
 Particulars 31.03.2011 31.03.2010

 Schedule 7 

 INVESTMENTS 

 Other than trade 

 Unquoted - fully paid up 

 The Shamrao Vithal Co-operative Bank Limited  100,000  100,000 

 4,000 (Previous year : 4,000) shares of ` 25/- each 

 Mainframe Premises Co-Operatie Society Limited  3,500  3,500 

 350 (Previous year : 350) shares of ` 10/- each 

 Current Investments 

 Other than Trade Quoted 

 Cinemax India Limited  413,567  413,567 

 9,172 (Previous year : 9,172) equity shares of ` 10/- each 

 Market Value ` 387,517 (Previous year ` 584,129) 

 Conexion Media Group Plc  878,510  1,494,042 

 1,750,000 (Previous year: 1,750,000) Ordinary shares of £1.00 each 

  (Market Value 878,510 (GBP 12,250) 
(Previous year: 1,494,042 (GBP 21,875)) 

 Other Investments 

 Busy Buses Limited  1,434,302  - 

 2,829,879  2,011,109 

 Aggregate amount of quoted Investments  1,292,077  1,907,609 

 Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments  1,537,802  103,500 

 Schedule 8 

 SUNDRY DEBTORS 

 Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months 

 Unsecured, considered good  1,030,049,904  191,965,877 

 Unsecured, considered doubtful (Net of Service Tax)  75,934,463  31,000,000 

 Other debts  1,105,984,367  222,965,877 

 Unsecured, considered good  749,518,999  1,038,472,714 

 1,855,503,366  1,261,438,591 

 Less: Service Tax  85,768,383  79,781,949 

 1,769,734,983  1,181,656,642 

 Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts (Net of Service Tax)  75,934,463  31,000,000 

 1,693,800,520  1,150,656,642 

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 

AS AT MARCH 31, 2011



106

(Amount in `)
 Particulars 31.03.2011 31.03.2010

 Schedule 9 

 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 

 Cash on hand  1,779,545  2,038,594 

 Balances with Scheduled banks 

 In Current Accounts  175,065,574  92,006,090 

 In Fixed Deposit Accounts (Refer Note below)  122,326,826  118,321,019 

 299,171,945  212,365,703 
 Note : 

 i.  As margin for Letter of Credit / Buyers Credit - ` 13,904,144/- (Previous year ` 42,831,484/-) 
 ii.  Lien on Fixed Deposit against Bank Guarantee availed - ` 35,953,432/- (Previous year - ` 33,369,679/-) 
 iii.  As margin for Term Loan - ` 50,000,000/- (Previous year - ` 37,500,000/-) 
 iii.  Accrued interest on Fixed Deposits - ` 1,155,381/- (Previous year - ` 1,026,667/-) 

 Schedule 10 

 LOANS AND ADVANCES 

 Unsecured - considered good 

 Advances recoverable in Cash or in Kind or for value to be received  587,395,306  350,464,779 

 Deposits  228,299,344  82,240,303 

 Inter Company Deposits  156,081,944  94,934,931 

 MAT Credit Entitlement  55,526,444  136,108 

 Advance Payment of Taxes  83,585,417  370,605,282 

 (Net of Provision for Tax - ` 121,650,956/- (Previous year ` 90,011,398/-) 

 1,110,888,455  898,381,403 

 Schedule 11 

 CURRENT LIABILITIES 

 Sundry creditors 

 Total Outstanding dues to Micro and Small Enterprises  
 (Refer Note 4 to Schedule 18) 

 -  - 

 Dues of creditors other than Micro and Small Enterprises  720,012,158  586,904,055 

 Other Liabilities  227,125,806  150,307,373 

 Bank Book Overdraft  2,088,035  2,894,405 

 Deferred Revenue Income  -  61,856,368 

 Interest Accrued but not due  6,064,822  8,746,293 

 Advances from Customers  89,734,323  148,644,536 

 Unclaimed Dividend *  14,732  14,835 

 1,045,039,876  959,367,866 
 * Note: Appropriate amount shall be transferred to “Investor Education and Protection Fund” if and when due. 

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 

AS AT MARCH 31, 2011
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(Amount in `)
 Particulars 31.03.2011 31.03.2010

 Schedule 12 

 PROVISIONS 

 Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 14(a) to Schedule 18)  2,703,058  1,499,406 

 2,703,058  1,499,406 

Schedule 13

MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE

(To the extent not written off or adjusted)

Preliminary expenses  682,447  682,447 

 682,447  682,447 

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 

AS AT MARCH 31, 2011
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(Amount in `)
 Particulars 31.03.2011 31.03.2010

 Schedule 14 

 OTHER INCOME 

 Dividend   

  Long Term Investments - Non Trade 23,306 26,381

 Interest Income 

  Bank Deposits (TDS - ` 1,344,185/- (Previous year ` 2,030,697/-))  14,092,188  30,030,694 

  Others (TDS - ` 1,251,582/- (Previous year ` Nil/-))  19,650,797  12,818,796 

 Profit / (Loss) on Sale of Investment  -  2,025,000 

 Profit / (Loss) on Sale of Asset  -  6,307,059 

 Exchange Gain (net)  -  18,732,883 

 Undertaking Fee  -  11,310,427 

 Excess Provision Write Back  15,000  1,934,892 

 Insurance Claim Received  2,172,666  - 

 Miscellaneous Income (Refer Note 17 to Schedule 18)  113,820,109  4,698,778 

 149,774,066  87,884,910 

 Schedule 15 

 OPERATING AND OTHER EXPENSES 

 Personnel Expenses 

  Salaries, Staff Remuneration and Bonus  1,077,092,508  1,025,418,109 

   Contribution to Provident and Other Fund 
(Refer Note14(b) to Schedule 18)

 4,542,975  60,815,182 

  Gratuity (Refer Note 14(a) to Schedule 18)  1,203,652  274,554 

  Staff Welfare  22,521,183  10,606,724 

 Technician Fees  941,734,776  903,419,395 

 Technical Services Payments  73,447,170  385,383,863 

 Communication Cost  46,267,566  35,207,717 

 Consumables Stores  53,644,516  83,287,000 

 Director’s Sitting Fees  262,000  180,000 

 Electricity Charges  114,398,440  93,177,525 

 Insurance Cost  41,753,245  48,379,569 

 Legal and Professional Fees  125,227,085  41,513,492 

 Loss on sale of Assets (net)  4,955,331  13,000 

 Rates and Taxes  2,266,673  14,671,016 

 Rebates and Discount  25,813,992  24,668,323 

 Rent  255,603,620  176,176,256 

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2011
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(Amount in `)
 Particulars 31.03.2011 31.03.2010

 Traveling and Conveyance  143,958,898  85,245,210 

 Miscellaneous Expenses  237,341,154  157,751,764 

 Repairs & Maintenance 

  Repairs and Maintenance-Equipment  70,049,747  58,425,010 

 Repairs and Maintenance-Studio/Office Premises  22,673,101  4,806,969 

 Bad Debts Written Off  30,232,088  80,496,939 

 Provision for Doubtful Debts  32,600,000  31,273,890 

 Hardware & Software Purchase  6,429,949  - 

 Exchange Loss (net)  10,509,384  - 

 Auditor’s Remuneration 

  Audit Fees  14,221,918  9,716,853 

  Other Matters  86,602  500,000 

 3,358,837,573  3,331,408,360 

 Schedule 16 

 EXCEPTIONAL ITEM 

 VAT Claim  -  (33,893,556)

 Liquidation Income  (50,226,807)  (111,885,626)

 Share Based Payments  -  7,209,406 

 Goodwill W/off  117,921,521  19,304,211 

 Damages for Loss of Employment  -  201,146 

 Legal Fees  -  101,420,522 

 (Write Back) / Written off during the year (Refer Note 18 to Schedule 18)  2,259,977  155,024,317 

 69,954,691  137,380,420 

 Schedule 17 

 FINANCIAL EXPENSES 

 Interest on Bank Overdraft  54,618,216  68,998,121 

 Interest on Term Loan  143,423,003  90,658,752 

 Interest on Buyer’s Credit  15,057,566  36,373,261 

 Interest on Others  38,017,172  7,313,380 

 Bank Charges  11,931,109  14,996,379 

 263,047,066  218,339,893 

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2011
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Schedule 18 

1. Nature of operatioNs:
  prime focus Limited and its subsidiaries are engaged in the business of post production and Visual effects services 

for films and television content.

2. statemeNt of sigNificaNt accouNtiNg poLicies:
 a. Basis of Preparation

   the financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects in respects with the Notified 
accounting standards by companies (accounting standards) rules, 2006 (as amended) and the relevant 
provisions of the companies act, 1956. the financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost 
convention on an accrual basis. the accounting policies have been consistently applied by the group and except 
for the changes in accounting policy discussed more fully below, are consistent with those used in the previous 
year.

   the financial statements of the subsidiaries used in the consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date 
as that of the holding company namely march 31, 2011. the financial statements are presented in the general 
format specified in schedule Vi to the act. 

 b. Principles of Consolidation

   the consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of prime focus Limited (‘the company’) 
and all its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as ‘the group’), which are more than 50% owned or controlled 
and have been prepared in accordance with the consolidation procedures laid down in accounting standard 
21- ‘consolidated financial statements’ and as 23, ‘accounting for investments in associates in consolidated 
financial statements’, notified by companies (accounting standards) rules, 2006 (as amended). 

  the consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

  i.  the financial statements of the parent and the subsidiary have been combined on a line-by-line basis by 
adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses after eliminating 
intra-group balances / transactions and resulting profits in full. an unrealised loss resulting from intra-group 
transactions has also been eliminated except to the extent that recoverable value of related assets is lower 
than their cost to the group.

  ii.  the assets & Liabilities of non-integral subsidiaries are translated into indian rupees at the rate of exchange 
prevailing as of the Balance sheet date. revenue and expenses are translated into indian rupees at an 
average closing rate. 

  iii.  the consolidated financial statements are presented, to the extent possible, in the same format as that 
adopted by the parent for its separate financial statements. However, as these financial statements are 
not statutory financial statements, full compliance with the act are not required and hence these financial 
statements do not reflect all the disclosure requirements of the act.

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 



111

 iv.  the consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies to the extent practicable 
across the group. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring 
the accounting policies used into line with those used by group, except in case of the accounting policies 
mentioned below, where there exists variance between parent and the subsidiary:

  a. fixed assets

  b. Depreciation

  c. foreign currency translation

  d. current investments

  e. goodwill on consolidation

  f. intangible assets

  g. revenue  recognition

 v. goodwill arising on consolidation

   the excess of cost to the parent, of its investment in subsidiary over its portion of equity in the subsidiary at 
the respective dates on which investment in the subsidiary was made, is  recognised in the financial statements 
as goodwill and in the case where equity exceeds the cost; the difference is accounted as capital reserve.   the 
parent’s portion of equity in the subsidiary is determined on the basis of the value of assets and liabilities as per 
the financial statements of the subsidiary as on the date of investment.

    However, for one of the subsidiary company, prime focus London plc, uK and its subsidiaries (‘pf London 
group’), goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value 
of pf London group’s share of the net assets / net liabilities of the acquired entity at the date of acquisition. 
if the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the group’s share of the net assets / net liabilities of the 
acquired entity (i.e. a discount on acquisition) then the difference is credited to the income statement in the 
period of acquisition. 

  goodwill of pf London is ` 3,477,967/- (previous year ` 120,257,195/-).

  goodwill arising on consolidation is evaluated for impairment annually.

 c. List of subsidiaries which are more than 50% owned or controlled and included in the Consolidated Financials:

Name of Subsidiary Principal Activity Country of 
Incorporation

Percentage 
of Holding

prime focus London plc. post production and 
VfX services.

england & 
Wales

59.96%

prime focus international Ltd. (formerly known as 
prime focus investments Ltd.)

media and other 
investments.

england & 
Wales

100%

prime focus technologies pvt. Ltd. Digital asset 
management.

india 75.50%

flow post solutions pvt. Ltd. Dormant. india 51%

gVs software pvt. Ltd. Dormant. india 100%

prime focus motion pictures Ltd. Dormant. india 100%
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Name of Subsidiary Principal Activity Country of 
Incorporation

Percentage 
of Holding

Subsidiary undertakings of Prime Focus London Plc. 

prime focus Visual entertainment services  Ltd. Broadcast post 
production.

england & Wales 100%

Vtr media investments  Ltd. media investments. england & Wales 100%

pf film uK Ltd. (formerly known as 37 
Dean street Ltd.)

Dormant. england & Wales 100%

Busy Buses  Ltd. Dormant. england & Wales 100%
pf Broadcast & commercial  Ltd. post production 

services.
england & Wales 100%

clipstream  Ltd. Digital content 
management.

england & Wales 100%

prime focus technologies uK Ltd. Dormant. england & Wales 100%
subsidiary undertakings of Vtr media investments  Ltd.
amazing spectacles Ltd. post production 

service.
england & Wales 100%

meanwhile content Ltd. post production 
of television 
commercials.

england & Wales 100%

prime focus productions 1 Ltd. Dormant. england & Wales 100%
prime focus productions 2 Ltd. Dormant. england & Wales 100%
prime focus productions 3 Ltd. Dormant. england & Wales 100%
prime focus productions 5 Ltd. Dormant. england & Wales 100%
Associates of Prime Focus London Plc. 
Vtr North Ltd. post production 

of television 
commercials.

england & Wales 20%

Subsidiary undertakings of Prime Focus International Ltd. (formerly known as Prime Focus 
Investments Ltd.)
prime focus VfX services i inc post production and 

VfX services.
canada 100%

prime focus VfX services ii inc post production and 
VfX services.

canada 100%

prime focus VfX technology inc post production and 
VfX services.

canada 100%

prime focus VfX pacific inc post production and 
VfX services.

canada 100%

prime focus VfX usa inc post production and 
VfX services.

usa 100%

prime focus VfX australia pty Ltd post production and 
VfX services.

australia 100%

prime focus North america inc post production and 
VfX services.

usa 100%

prime focus international services uK Ltd. Dormant. england & Wales 100%
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Name of Subsidiary Principal Activity Country of 
Incorporation

Percentage 
of Holding

subsidiary undertakings of prime focus North america inc.
1800 Vine street LLc Na usa 100%
subsidiary undertakings of prime focus London plc. – Liquidated during the year
machine effects  Ltd. graphics for feature 

films.
england & Wales 100%

subsidiary undertakings of prime focus London plc. – Liquidated during the previous year
pf (post production) Ltd. post production england & Wales 100%
K post Ltd. post production 

of television 
commercials

england & Wales 100%

the machine room Ltd. film transfer, Video 
mastering & DVD

england & Wales 100%

 d. Use of Estimates

   the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during 
the reporting period end.  although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current 
events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates.

 e. Fixed Assets

   fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. cost comprises the purchase price and any 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Borrowing costs relating 
to acquisition of fixed assets which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are also 
included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use.

 f. Depreciation

   Depreciation is provided using the straight Line method as per the useful lives of the assets estimated by the 
management, or at the rates prescribed under schedule XiV of the companies act, 1956 whichever is higher.

Asset Group Rates (SLM)
Schedule XIV 
Rates (SLM)

Land and Building 1.63% 1.63%

plant & machinery - computer Based assets  16.21% 16.21%

plant & machinery - Non computer Based assets 7.07% - 14.29% 7.07%

furniture & fixtures and electrical fittings 10.00% 6.33%

office equipments 16.21% 13.91%

Vehicles 9.50% 9.50%

  Leasehold improvements are depreciated on a straight line basis over the unexpired period of the lease.
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   However, one of the subsidiary company, pf London group, provides depreciation using Written Down Value 
(‘WDV’) method, to write down the cost of fixed assets to their residual values over the estimated useful 
economic lives at the following rates:

Asset Group Rates (WDV)

equipment 13.91%

fixtures and fittings 18.10%

motor Vehicle 25.89%

   gross book value of assets of pf London group is ` 1,455,429,312/- (previous year ` 1,784,483,060/-). Net 
book value of assets is ` 628,579,728/- (previous year ` 1,074,547,834/-) and depreciation charge for the year 
is ` 82,353,004/- (previous Year ` 92,303,358/-).

 g. Impairment

   the carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date, if there is any indication of impairment 
based on internal/external factors.  an impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset 
exceeds its recoverable amount.  the recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value 
in use.  in assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value at the 
weighted average cost of capital.  

 h. Intangible Assets

  Film Rights

   the group amortises film costs using the individual-film-forecast method. under the individual-film-forecast 
method, such costs are amortised for each film in the ratio that current period revenue for such films bears to 
management’s estimate of remaining unrecognised ultimate revenue as at the beginning of the current fiscal 
year. management regularly reviews and revises, where necessary, its total estimates on a film-by-film basis, 
which may result in a change in the rate of amortisation and/or a write down of the intangible asset to fair value. 
the period of amortisation only starts at the point at which the asset starts to produce economic returns.

   However, one of the subsidiary company, pf London group amortises film rights on a straight-line basis over 
their estimated useful lives viz, the life of the contract, approximately three years. 

  Value of films rights of pf London group is ` 51,579,221/- (previous Year ` 515,172,721/-).

   the other intangibles are amortised over a period of 10 years, reflecting the fact that the underlying technology 
will continue to provide benefit in the future.

  Software

  software is amortized on straight line basis over its estimate of useful life which is estimated to be six years.

 i. Leases

   finance leases, which effectively transfer to the group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to 
ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the lower of the fair value and present value of the minimum lease 
payments at the inception of the lease term and disclosed as leased assets. Lease payments are apportioned 
between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability based on the implicit rate of return. finance 
charges are charged directly against income. Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial direct 
costs are capitalised.
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   if there is no reasonable certainty that the group will obtain the ownership by the end of the lease item, capitalized 
leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term.

   Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased item 
are classified as operating leases. operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the profit and Loss 
account on a straight line basis over the leased term.

 j. Stocks

  stock is included at the lower of cost and net realizable value less any provision for impairment.

 k. Investments

   investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current 
investments. all other investments are classified as long-term investments. current investments are carried at 
lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual investment basis. Long-term investments are carried 
at cost. However, provision for diminution in value is made to recognise a decline other than temporary in the 
value of the investments.

   in case of one of the subsidiary prime focus London plc., quoted investments are revalued at each period end 
according to the movement in the share price at the time. the change in value of the investment is charged 
or credited to the fair value reserve in the balance sheet until its disposal or is impaired, at which time the 
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in fair value reserve is included in the profit and loss account.

  Value of current investments of pf London group is ` 2,312,812/- (previous Year ` 1,494,042/-).

 l. Revenue Recognition

   revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and 
the revenue can be reliably measured. 

   technical services receipts are recognized on the basis of services rendered and when no significant 
uncertainty exists as to its determination or realization using proportionate completion method.

   unbilled revenue represents revenue recognised based on proportionate completion not yet invoiced to the 
customers.

  revenue from tV program production services are recognized on delivery of the episodes.

   interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the 
rate applicable.

   in case of pf London group, interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding 
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

  interest income recognized of pf London group is ` Nil (previous year ` Nil).

   Dividends are recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive payment is established by the Balance sheet 
date. Dividend from subsidiaries is recognised even if same are declared after the balance sheet date but pertains 
to period on or before the date of Balance sheet as per the requirement of schedule Vi of the companies act, 
1956.

  undertaking fees is recognized on accrual basis over the tenure of the undertaking given.
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 m. Foreign Currency Transactions

  Initial Recognition

   foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount 
the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

  Conversion

   foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in 
terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the 
transaction; and non-monetary items which are carried at the fair value or other similar valuation denominated 
in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined. 

  Exchange Differences

   exchange differences arising on a monetary item that, in substance, form part of the company’s net investment in a 
non-integral foreign operation is accumulated in a foreign currency translation reserve in the financial statements 
until the disposal of the net investment, at which time they are recognized as income or as expenses.

   exchange differences, in respect of accounting periods commencing on or after December 7, 2006, arising on 
reporting of long-term foreign currency monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially 
recorded during the period, or reported in previous financial statements, in so far as they relate to the acquisition 
of a depreciable capital asset, are added to or deducted from the cost of the asset and are depreciated over the 
balance life of the asset, and in other cases, are accumulated in a “foreign currency monetary item translation 
Difference account” in the enterprise’s financial statements and amortized over the balance period of such long-
term asset/liability but not beyond accounting period ending on or before march 31, 2011.

   exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items not covered above, or on reporting such monetary 
items of group rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in 
previous financial statements, are recognized as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise.

   However, in case of one of the subsidiary, pf London group, all differences are charged to the profit and Loss 
account. this is in variance with the policy adopted by the group.

   total exchange (gain) / loss of pf London group recognized in profit and Loss account is ` 51,362,832/- 
(previous Year ` 40,206,957/-). the said exchange loss is included in exceptional item.

 n. Income Taxes

   tax expense comprises of current, deferred and fringe benefit tax.  current income tax and fringe benefit tax is 
measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the indian income tax 
act, 1961. Deferred income taxes reflects the impact of current year timing differences between taxable income 
and accounting income for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years.

   Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the 
balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists 
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities 
relate to the taxes on income levied by same governing taxation laws. Deferred tax assets are recognised only 
to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against 
which such deferred tax assets can be realised. in situations where the company has unabsorbed depreciation 
or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty supported by 
convincing evidence that they can be realised against future taxable profits.
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   at each balance sheet date the company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets.  it recognises  
unrecognised deferred tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the 
case may be that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can 
be realised.

   the carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. the group writes-down the 
carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, 
as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax asset 
can be realised. any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually 
certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available.

   minimum alternative tax (mat) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing 
evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.  in the year in which the 
mat credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in 
guidance Note issued by the institute of chartered accountants of india, the said asset is created by way of a 
credit to the profit and loss account and shown as mat credit entitlement. the company reviews the same at 
each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of mat credit entitlement to the extent there is no 
longer convincing evidence to the effect that company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

 o. Segment Reporting 

   the group’s operations predominantly relate to providing end-to-end digital post production services to the 
media and entertainment industry viz., films and television. the group’s operating businesses are organized 
and managed according to the services and are identified as reportable segment based on the dominant source 
and nature of risks and returns as primary and secondary segments. the analysis of geographical segments is 
based on the areas in which major operating divisions of the group operate.

 p. Earnings Per Share

   Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.  the weighted 
average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for events of bonus issue; bonus 
element in a rights issue to existing shareholders; share split; and reverse share split (consolidation of shares).

   for the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to 
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for 
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

 q. Provisions 

   a provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable 
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can 
be made. provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required 
to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. these are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted 
to reflect the current best estimates. 

 r. Cash & Cash Equivalents

   cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand, short term investments with 
original maturity of three months or less and fixed deposits with banks.
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 s. Derivative Instruments

   as per the icai announcement, accounting for derivative contracts, other than those covered under as-11, are 
marked to market on a portfolio basis, and the net loss after considering the offsetting effect on the underlying 
hedge item is charged to the income statement. Net gains, if any, are ignored.

 t. Retirement and other Employee Benefits

  post employment benefits and other long term benefits:

   retirement benefits in the form of provident fund and family pension fund is a defined contribution scheme and 
the contributions are charged to the profit and loss account of the year when the contributions to the respective 
funds are due. Liability in respect thereof is determined on the basis of contributions as required under the 
statue / rules. there are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective trusts.

   prime focus London plc and its subsidiaries operate a defined contribution pension scheme.  the assets of the scheme 
are held separately from those of the subsidiary companies in an independently administered fund.  the amount 
charged against profits represents the contributions payable to the scheme in respect of the accounting period.

   gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation done as 
per projected unit credit method, carried out by an independent actuary at the end of the year.

 u. Stock based compensation

   pf London group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation plan. the fair value of the employee 
services received in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. the total amount to be 
expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted.

3. DetaiL of cHarges proViDeD for secureD LoaNs:

Nature Value Security
term Loan ` 56,767,678 i.  subservient charge on the movable fixed assets and receivables 

of the company.
ii. personal guarantee of the promoter Director. 
iii. pledge of shares by promoters.
iv. escrow of rent payment receivable by promoters.

term Loan ` 130,888,966 i.  first charge on the company’s entire Book Debts, Bills whether 
documentary or clean, outstanding monies, receivables, both 
present and future and term Deposits.

ii.  first charge on the fixed assets of the company, both present 
and future (except royal palms property).

iii. personal guarantees of the promoter Director.
term Loan ` 248,616,978 i.  first charge against the property financed & project assets.

ii. personal guarantees of the promoter Director.
term Loan ` 72,428,796 i. first charge against the equipment financed.

Buyers credit ` 313,676,577 i.  first charge on the company’s entire Book Debts, Bills whether 
documentary or clean, outstanding monies, receivables, both 
present and future and term Deposits.

ii.  first charge on the fixed assets of the company, both present 
and future (except royal palms property).

iii. personal guarantees of the promoter Director.
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Nature Value Security
cash credit / over 
Draft

` 92,269,598 i.  first charge on the company’s entire Book Debts, Bills whether 
documentary or clean, outstanding monies, receivables, both 
present and future. 

ii. first charge on the fixed assets of the company, both present and future.
iii. personal guarantees of the promoter Director.

cash credit / over 
Draft

` 23,598,908 i. first charge on current asset. 
ii. personal guarantee of Director.
iii. pledge of shares by promoters.

short term Demand 
Loan

` 250,000,000 i. first charge on current asset. 
ii. personal guarantee of Director.
iii. pledge of shares by promoters.

Vehicle Loan ` 8,419 ,189 i. first charge on the Vehicles financed.
Bank Loans of 
subsidiary (prime 
focus London plc.)

` 357,170,600 i.  secured by a fixed and floating charge over the assets of the 
prime focus London plc subsidiaries and pf London group.

ii. secured against book debts.

Hire purchase 
creditors (prime 
focus London plc.)

` 130,759,042 i. secured against respective movable assets.

term Loan (subsidiaries 
of prime focus 
international Ltd.)

` 739,633,306 i. secured against property and other equipments.

cash credit/over 
Draft (subsidiaries 
of prime focus 
international Ltd.) 

` 1,637,938 i. secured against book debts.

4.  the group does not have suppliers who are registered as micro, small or medium enterprise under the micro, small 
and medium enterprises Development act, 2006 as at march 31, 2009. the information regarding micro, small and 
medium enterprises has been determined on the basis of information available with the management.

5. geograpHicaL segmeNt:
  although the group’s major operating divisions are managed in india, the following table shows the distribution of 

the group’s consolidated sales by geographical market, regardless of where the services were provided:

 Income from Operations by Geographical Area
           (amount in `)

2011 2010
india 838,111,056 857,669,677
united Kingdom 2,067,445,325 1,560,036,206
u.s. 1,731,789,178 988,846,184
canada 391,989,792 754,962,320
other countries 247,370 366,323,188

5,029,582,721 4,527,837,574



120

 Segment Assets by Geographical Area and additions to Segment Assets

(amount in `)

Segments Assets Additions to Fixed Assets and 
Intangibles

2011 2010 2011 2010
india 4,279,146,439 3,214,447,884 1,723,880,571 61,882,142
united Kingdom 2,291,386,170 2,079,149,253 427,280,664 602,767,247
u.s. 3,033,271,070 2,110,050,244 697,305,235 516,802,473
canada 453,383,370 469,581,648 261,878,902 154,620,716
other countries 1,655,526 4,172,164 Nil Nil

10,058,842,575 7,877,401,154 3,110,345,372 1,336,072,579

6. reLateD partY DiscLosures:
 a. List of related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

  i) Key management personnel     

   mr. Naresh malhotra - chairman and Whole-time Director

   mr. Namit malhotra – managing Director

  ii) relatives of Key management personnel

     mr. premnath malhotra 

  iii) enterprises owned or significantly influenced by Key management personnel or their relatives

    Blooming Bud coaching private Limited

   N2m reality private Limited

 Particulars of Related Party Transactions

(amount in `)

S.No 2011 2010

1 Key Management Personnel*

a . remuneration 

  Namit malhotra 3,000,000 3,000,000

  Naresh malhotra 3,000,000 3,000,000

6,000,000 6,000,000

B. share Warrant application received
  Namit malhotra 138,695,000 Nil

138,695,000 Nil

c.  payment made towards purchase of shares of prime focus 
technologies pvt. Ltd.

  Namit malhotra 24,500 Nil

24,500 Nil
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D. Balance outstanding at the year end – remuneration payable 

  Namit malhotra 192,528 168,700

  Naresh malhotra Nil 170,147

192,528 338,847

2 Relatives of Key management Personnel

 professional fees

 premnath malhotra Nil 140,000

Nil 140,000

3 Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by Key 
Management Personnel or their relatives

a  rent
 i) Blooming Bud coaching private Limited 24,000,000 24,000,000

B. Deposits given
 i) N2m reality private Limited 70,000,000 Nil

c. Balance outstanding at the year end – Deposits
 i) Blooming Bud coaching private Limited
 ii) N2m reality private Limited

48,000,000
70,000,000

48,000,000
Nil

  * Key management personnel have given personal guarantee and have pledged part of their share holdings for 
borrowings obtained by the company (refer Note 3 to schedule 18).

7. Leases:
 a. Operating Leases

   the company has taken the premises on non-cancellable operating lease basis. the tenure of lease is for 60 
months and further expandable for 10 years without non cancellation clause on mutual consent with escalation 
clause. in case of pf London group the tenure of lease for the premises taken on non-cancellable operating 
lease ranges from 5 years to 10 years without any escalation clause. future lease rentals in respect of the said 
premises taken on non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

           (amount in `)

2011 2010

Lease payments due within one year 78,051,848 74,453,081

Lease payments due later than one but not later than five years 291,958,631 291,311,734

Lease payments due later than five years 126,577,152 172,694,224

   the company has taken certain premises on cancellable operating lease basis. the tenure of the lease ranges 
from 11 to 180 months.

   amount of lease rental charged to the profit and Loss account in respect of operating leases is ` 255,603,620/- 
(previous Year ` 176,176,256/-).
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 b. Finance Leases

   plant and machinery includes machinery obtained on finance lease. the lease term is for 3 years after which the 
legal title is passed to the lessee. there is no escalation clause in the lease agreement. there are no restrictions 
imposed by lease arrangements. there are no subleases.

           (amount in `)

2011 2010

total Lease payments for the year 59,111,845 30,657,855

Less : amount representing finance charges 12,196,572 7,020,615

present value of minimum lease payments (rate of interest: 17% p.a.) 46,915,273 23,637,241

Lease payments due within one year [present Value ` 51,789,360/- as on 
31.03.2011 (`  26,483,980/- as on 31.03.2010)]

62,508,463 30,657,855

Lease payments due later than one but not later than five years 
[present Value ` 67,597,197/- as on 31.03.2011 (` 21,935,894/- as on 
31.03.2010)]

79,173,364 22,993,391

Lease payments due later than five years Nil Nil

8. stocK spLit/suB-DiVisioN of equitY sHares: 
  the company has sub-Divided the existing 12,822,588 nos. of equity shares from every oNe equity share of  

` 10/- each into teN equity shares of ` 1/- each (i.e. 12,822,588 equity shares of ` 10/- each in the capital of the 
company on which the sum of ` 10/- is credited as fully paid up into 128,225,880 equity shares of ` 1/- each of 
which the sum of ` 1/- is credited as fully paid up.) the record date fixed for the purpose of sub division of equity 
shares of the company was November 1, 2010.

9. quaLifieD iNstitutioNs pLacemeNt:
  the company has allotted 10,641,566 equity shares of face value of ` 1/- each to qualified institutional Buyers 

under qip as per chapter Viii of the seBi regulations at a price of ` 68.58 per equity share (including a premium 
of ` 67.58 per equity share), aggregating to ` 729,798,596/- on November 10, 2010. further the floor price in 
respect of the aforesaid qualified institutions placement, based on the pricing formula as prescribed in regulation 
85 of chapter Viii of seBi regulations is ` 68.58 per equity share and the relevant Date for this purpose in terms 
of regulation 81 of chapter Viii of seBi regulations is November 4, 2010.

10. issue of WarraNts:
  pursuant to the Board approval dated august 27, 2010 and shareholders’ approval dated september 30, 2010, the 

company has allotted 1,000,000 warrants convertible into equity shares on october 15, 2010 to mr. Namit malhotra, 
a member of the promoters and promoter group carrying an option/entitlement to subscribe to equivalent number of 
equity shares on a future date not exceeding 18 months from the date of allotment of such warrants. each warrant 
shall be convertible into one equity share of nominal value of ` 10/- each at a price not less than the minimum price 
determined in accordance with the provision of chapter Vii of seBi (icDr) regulations. the company has received 
from mr. Namit malhotra, a sum equivalent to 25% of the price of the equity share to be issued in surrender/
exchange of each of such warrant.
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11. earNiNgs per sHare (eps):

2011 2010

Net profit as per consolidated profit and loss account including exceptional 
items for calculation of basic and diluted eps. ` 760,863,294 ` 334,238,191

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic eps. 
(refer Note 8 and 9 to schedule 18) 132,540,816 128,225,880

add : Weighted average number of equity shares which would be
issued on conversion of fccB. 19,527,595 19,527,600

add : Weighted average number of equity shares which would be
 issued on conversion of Warrants. 4,575,342 -

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating diluted  eps. 156,643,754 147,753,480

Basic eps ` 5.74 ` 2.61

Diluted eps ` 4.86 ` 2.26

12. capitaL commitmeNt:
                     (amount in `)

2011 2010

estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital 
account and not provided for:

57,921,682 176,017,943

13. coNtiNgeNt LiaBiLities Not proViDeD for: 
                     (amount in `)

2011 2010

i.  on account of undertakings given by the company in favour of 
customs authorities at the time of import of capital goods under epcg 
scheme. the company is confident of meeting its future obligations on 
such undertakings in the normal course of business.

693,529,871 748,591,339

ii.  on account of undertaking given on future probable obligation on 
behalf of subsidiary company in the course of acquisitions made.(refer 
Note 20 to schedule 18) 

60,966,157 61,080,721

iii.  matters pending with tax authorities (Block assessment). company 
has been advised that it has a valid case based on similar decided 
matters.

112,684 112,684

iv.  matters pending with tax authorities towards addition made by the tax 
authorities for the aY 2007-08. company has gone for an appeal to 
cit (appeals) and has made full payment of demand under protest.

5,271,860 5,271,860

v. premium on conversion of fccB (refer Note 16 (c) to schedule 18) 598,162,095 420,381,905
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14. gratuitY aND otHer post-empLoYmeNt BeNefit pLaNs: 
 a. Define benefit plans: 

   the company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. every employee who has completed five years or more of 
service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. 
this plan is unfunded.

   the following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognised in the profit and Loss account 
and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans.

 Profit and Loss account

 Net employee benefit expense (recognised in employee cost)

(amount in `)

Particulars March 31, 2011 march 31, 2010
current service cost 1,203,652 736,074
interest cost on benefit obligation - 88,726
expected return on plan assets - -
Net actuarial( gain) / loss recognised in the year - (540,246)
past service cost - -
Net benefit expense 1,203,652 274,454
actual return on plan assets Not applicable Not applicable

 Balance sheet 

(amount in `)

Details of Provision for gratuity March 31, 2011 march 31, 2010
Defined benefit obligation 2,703,058 1,499,406
fair value of plan assets. - -
Amount recognised in the balance sheet 2,703,058 1,499,406

 Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows: 

(amount in `)

Particulars March 31, 2011 march 31, 2010

opening defined benefit obligation 1,499,406 1,224,852

interest cost - 88,726

current service cost 1,203,652 736,074

Benefits paid - -

actuarial (gains) / losses on obligation - (540,246)

Closing defined benefit obligation 2,703,058 1,499,406

 Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

  the company does not fund the gratuity nor it has plans presently to contribute in the next year and hence the 
disclosure relating to fair value of plan assets is not applicable.
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 The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

Particulars March 31, 2011 march 31, 2010

% %

Discount rate 8.25% 7.75%

expected rate of return on assets Not applicable Not applicable

employee turnover 2% 2 %

  the estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

 Amounts for the current and previous year are as follows:  [AS15 Para 120(n)] 

(amount in `)

Particulars March 31, 2011 march 31, 2010

Defined benefit obligation 2,703,058 1,499,406

plan assets - -

surplus / (deficit) (2,703,058) (1,499,406)

experience adjustment on plan liabilities (gain) / loss - (320,360)

experience adjustment on plan assest - -

 b. Defined Contribution Plan: 

   amount recognized as an expense and included in schedule – 15 as contribution to provident fund ̀  2,777,813/- 
(previous Year ` 1,585,924/-).

15. uNHeDgeD foreigN curreNcY eXposure:
(amount in `)

 March 31, 2011 march 31, 2010 Purpose

Particulars of Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure as at the Balance Sheet Date

Buyer’s credit (Liability)

265,901,172
(usD 5,957,724 

@ closing rate of
1 usD = ` 44.63)

439,771,909
(usD 9,777,138 

@ closing rate of
1 usD = ` 44.98)

for import of equipments.

47,775,405
(eur 753,999 

@ closing rate of
1 eur = ` 63.36)

3,539,637
(eur 58,175 @ 
closing rate of

1 eur = ` 60.84)

for import of equipments.

Zero coupon foreign 
currency convertible 
Bonds (Liability)

2,162,696,800 
(usD 55,000,000)

2,162,696,800 
(usD 55,000,000)

for strategic acquisitions 
and / or strategic alliances 
outside of india.



126

16. foreigN curreNcY coNVertiBLe BoNDs (fccB):
  a.  on December 12, 2007, the company issued 550 foreign currency convertible Bonds (fccB’s) of a face value 

of usD 100,000 each, aggregating to usD 55.00 million (equivalent – ` 2,162,696,800/-). the net proceeds 
from the issue of the Bonds are to be used for strategic acquisitions and/or strategic alliances outside of india, 
for investment into wholly owned subsidiaries and/or joint ventures outside of india, for announced and future 
acquisitions, for foreign currency capital expenditure or for any other use, as may be permitted under applicable 
laws or regulations from time to time.

  b.  as per the terms of the issue, the holders have an option to convert fccB into equity shares at a reseted  
conversion rate of ` 110.90 per equity share. further, under certain conditions, the company has the option to 
redeem the bonds on or after December 12, 2010. unless previously converted or redeemed or purchased and 
cancelled, the company will redeem these bonds, at 143.66% at the end of the five years from the date of issue 
i.e. on December 13, 2012. as at march 31, 2011, no bonds have been converted into equity shares of ̀  1/- each 
and the entire balance of 550 bonds have been included and disclosed in the schedule of “unsecured Loans”.

 c.  the fccB’s as detailed above are compound instruments with an option of conversion into specified number 
of shares and an underlying foreign currency liability with the redemption at a premium in the event of non 
conversion at the end of the period. the bonds are redeemable only if there is no conversion of bonds earlier.  
the payment of premium on redemption is contingent in nature, the outcome of which is dependent on uncertain 
future events. Hence no provision is considered necessary nor has been made in the accounts in respect of such 
premium amounting to ` 598,162,095/- (previous Year ` 420,381,905/-). However, in the event of redemption, 
the premium payable would be adjusted against the balance in the securities premium account.

 d.  the management is of the opinion that the bonds are a non monetary liability and hence, the exchange gain/ 
loss on translation of fccB liability in the event of redemption have not been recognized.

 e.  Had the company revalued the bonds as at march 31, 2011 considering it as a long term monetary liability, the 
profit for the year ended march 31, 2011 would have been lower by ̀  39,062,293/-  (previous Year ̀  46,124,146/-) .  
the reserves as on that date would have been lower by ` 252,963,508/- (previous Year  ` 265,060,354/-) and 
foreign currency monetary item would have been ` 39,062,293/- (previous Year ` 46,124,146/-).

17. misceLLaNeous iNcome:
  as the company is engaged in providing post production services, net income of ` 3,475,819/- (previous Year  

` 1,955,719/-) from production of tV programme (gross ̀  13,600,000/-  (previous Year ̀  27,096,993/-)) less: direct 
cost of ` 10,124,181/-  (previous Year ` 25,141,274/-) is disclosed under other income as miscellaneous income. 
the revenue of the group for the year including revenue from tV production income is ` 5,043,182,721/- (previous 
Year ` 4,554,934,567/-).

18. eXceptioNaL items:
  During the year, prime focus London plc. has liquidated one of its subsidiary named ‘machine effects Ltd.’ as per the 

restructuring plan. on liquidation of the above subsidiary, prime focus London plc. has booked an exception income 
of ` 50,226,807/- (gBp 709,039) relating to excess liabilities not payable by the group.
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  in addition to the above prime focus London plc. has also booked an exceptional income towards bad debts recovered 
amounting to ` 19,362,679/- (gBp 273,338), and reversal of License fee cost booked amounting to ` 29,740,143/- 
(gBp 419,834) and has booked an exceptional expense towards foreign exchange loss of ` 51,362,833/- (gBp 
725,076). in addition to the above, prime focus London plc. has also booked expense towards goodwill/branding 
written off of ` 117,921,521/- (gBp 1,664,668).

19.  No amortization has been done for film rights in the current year as the rights are not exercisable in the current 
year. since the rights of parent company are available for a period of more than 10 years the useful life of the rights 
in parent company is considered to be more than 10 years.

20.  During the fY 2008-09 the company was allotted 505,050 ordinary shares of 5 pence each in prime focus London 
plc, a subsidiary of the company, as fully paid up, for consideration other than cash, for providing an undertaking on 
certain future obligations, to the vendors under the share purchase agreement entered by prime focus London plc. 
to acquire machine effects Limited. the outcome is dependent on certain future events for which no reliable estimate 
can be made. further, in current year, the company has filed a suit in the Bombay High court alleging that the terms 
of the undertaking are not tenable and hence no provision is considered necessary.

21. previous year’s figures have been regrouped where necessary to confirm to this year’s classification. 

the schedules referred to above and notes to accounts form an integral part of the Balance sheet and profit and Loss account.
as per our report of even date   For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For MZS & Associates 
chartered accountants 
firm registration No.: 106400w 

Abuali Darukhanawala Naresh Malhotra Namit Malhotra Navin Agarwal
(partner) (chairman and Whole-

time Director)
(managing Director) (company secretary)

membership No.108053

place : mumbai 
Date  : June 20, 2011 
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